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ORDERS OF REFERENCE
FRrRIDAY, June 7, 1963.

Resolved,—That a Special Committee be appointed to consider matters
relating to defence and to report from time to time its observations and opinions
thereon; that the Committee have power to send for persons, papers and
records and to examine witnesses; that it be empowered to adjourn from place
to place; that Standing Order No. 67 be suspended in relation to the Committee;

and that the Committee consist of 24 members to be designated by the House
at a later date.

MonpAY, June 10, 1963.

Ordered,—That the Special Committee on Defence, appointed June .7,
1963, be composed of Messrs. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grice), Baldwin,
Béchard, Brewin, Churchill, Deachman, Fairweather, Granger, Groos, Hahn,
Lambert, Laniel, Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean), Lloyd, Maclnnis, MacLean,
Martineau, Matheson, McMillan, Patterson, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, and Winch.

TUESDAY, June 18, 1963.

Ordered,—That the Special Committee on Defence be empowered to print
from day to day such papers and evidence as may be ordered by it, and that
Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.

LEON-J. RAYMOND,
The Clerk of the House.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
TuEspAYy, June 18, 1963.

The Special Committee on Defence has the honour to present its

FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be empowered to print from day to
day such papers and evidence as may be ordered by the Committee, and that
Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation thereto.

Respectfully submitted,

MAURICE SAUVE,
Chairman.

Note,—This Report was concurred in by the House on the same day.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, June 18, 1963.
(1)

The Special Committee on Defence met at 10.00 a.m. this day, for organiza-
tion purposes.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grace), Baldwin,
Béchard, Brewin, Churchill, Deachman, Fairweather, Granger, Groos, Hahn,
Lambert, Laniel, Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean), Lloyd, MacInnis, MacLean,
Martineau, Matheson, McMillan, Patterson, Sauvé, Temple, Winch (23).

The Clerk attending, and having called for nominations, Mr. Matheson

moved, seconded by Mr. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grice), that Mr. Sauvé be
elected Chairman of the Committee.

There being no further nominations, Mr. Sauvé was declared duly elected
as Chairman.

The Chairman expressed his appreciation for the honour conferred on
him.

The Chairman invited nominations for the appointment of a Vice-Chairman.

Mr. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grdce) moved, seconded by Mr. Lessard
(Lac-Saint-Jean), that Mr. Matheson be elected Vice-Chairman.

Mr. Churchill moved, seconded by Mr. Fairweather, that Mr. Lambert be
elected Vice-Chairman.

Mr. Matheson requested that his nomination as Vice-Chairman be with-

drawn. By leave, Mr. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grice) and Mr. Lessard (Lac-
Saint-Jean) withdrew their motion.

Mr. Lambert was declared duly elected as Vice-Chairman.

& C})ln motion of Mr. Asselin (Notré-Dame-de—Gréce), seconded by Mr.
inch,

Resolved,—That a Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure comprised
of th}a Chairman, Vice-Chairman and four members, one from each party, be
appointed.

On the suggestion of Mr. Brewin, it was agreed that, if necessary, a

member of th_e sub-committee on agenda and procedure could be replaced by a
member of his own party who is on the Main Committee.

On motion of Mr. Laniel, seconded by Mr. McMillan,

Resolved,—That the Committee recommend to the House that it be em-
powered to print such papers and evidence as may be ordered by the Committee,
and that Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation thereto.

After discussion, it was agreed not to reduce the Committee’s quorum.

The Chairman congratulated Mr. Winch on the occasion of his birthday.

5



6 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Mr. Winch moved, seconded by Mr. Matheson, that the Minister of National
Defence be alerted to make a presentation at the next meeting, and that in
addition, the Steering Committee make further recommendations to the Main
Committee. Motion was carried on division.

At 10.40 a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

M. Slack,
Acting Clerk of the Committee.

THURSDAY, June 27, 1963.
(2)

The Special Committee on Defence met at 10:40 a.m. this day. The Chair-
man Mr. Maurice Sauvé presided.

. Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grace), Baldwin,
Béchard, Brewin, Churchill, Deachman, Fairweather, Granger, Groos, Hahn,
Lambert, Laniel, Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean), Lloyd, MacLean, Martineau,
Matheson, McMillan, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, Winch—22.

In attendance: Honourable Paul Hellyer, Minister of National Defence;
Hopourable Lucien Cardin, Associate Minister of National Defence; and Air
Chief Marshal F. R. Miller.

There being a quorum the Chairman opened the meeting with a brief
statement. Representatives of the various parties commented thereon.

The Chairman announced that the personnel of the Subcommittee on
agenda and procedure is as follows: Messrs. Lambert, Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean),
Maclean, Temple, Winch and Sauvé.

The first report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure was
presented as follows:

1. That the committee meet on Tuesday and Thursday mornings at
10:30 a.m.

2. tl‘hat the committee hold its meetings in Committee rooms located
in the West Block.

3. That the Quorum of the Committee be set at 13 members.

4. That pursuant to its Order of Reference of June 18, 1963, the
Cor.nmxt’gee print 1,000 copies in English and 500 copies in French
of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

5. That Interpreters be available at each meeting of the Committee
but that, for the present, an interpretation only be made of those
proceedings carried on in the French language.

6. That the Minister of National Defence be invited to make a state-
ment to the Committee on Thursday June 27, 1963.

7. ghat at subsequent meetings the Chairman of the Chiefs of Staff
Y ommittee, and representatives of the Navy, Army and Air Force

e requested to make statements in order to familiarize Committee
members with the work of the various armed services.

8. :1‘hat a representative of the Defence Research Board be invited to
inform the Committee of the work done by that Board.

9. That the Sgcretary of State for External Affairs be invited to make
a presentation to the Committee.
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10. That presentations and submissions by witnesses be received without
interruption, questioning of the witness being reserved until after
he has completed his statement.

Moved by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Lloyd,—

That the first report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure,
presented this day, be now concurred in. Carried unanimously.

The Chairman introduced the Honourable Mr. Hellyer, the Honourable
Mr. Cardin and Air Chief Marshal Miller to the Committee.

Mr. Hellyer read a prepared statement respecting National Defence. He
was questioned thereon.

Agreed.—That the Department of National Defence will attempt to produce,
for the information of the Committee, copies of the statement made by Mr.
McNamara before the Congressional Subcommittee on Appropriations, to which
reference has been made in the Minister’s statement.

. Members of the Committee were requested that whenever possible, they
direct notices of proposed questions to the Minister of National Defence or to
the Chairman of the Committee, in advance of the meetings of the Committee,

in order that the Department of National Defence may have an opportunity to
prepare the necessary information.

At 12:00 noon the Committee adjourned until 10:30 a.m. Tuesday July
2nd, 1963.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.






EVIDENCE

THURSDAY, June 27, 1963.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum and I will cal} the.meetlng
to order. For the convenience of the witnesses and myself, I believe it would
be desirable that we be seated during these meetings. e

I would like to start this meeting with an opening statement which is now
being distributed to the members of the committee and to the members of the
press. =

This is the first time since 1867 that the general problem of Canadian
defence has been submitted to a committee of the House of Commons charged
with the responsibility of reporting to parliament, although there have been
many committees on particular aspects of defence.

With the permission of the committee, I would like to make a short state-
ment on what I believe to be the purpose of this defence committee.

The discussions that have already taken place in the house during the
26th parliament show how important is the task of this committee.

You will recall that for many periods in the past defence policies were
supported in the House of Commons by all political parties in a non-partisan
way. Recently, this agreement has broken down. We will not restore it by
continuing arguments about past or present defence policy. We are not
interested in attributing blame or diagnosing responsibility. We are interested
in the future. We want to find out whether it is possible to develop for the
future a defence policy that will serve the interests of the Canadian people
and merit the support of the broadest possible range of political opinion.

It is my belief that the Canadian people would wish us to behave, for
this purpose, in a non-partisan atmosphere. The debates of the House of
Commons have made it clear that there is a sharp division among parties.
Our task is not to continue those debates here.

In order to make recommendations, we have to obtain information. We
have been asked to study present defence arrangements. I believe that we
should try to do this without reviewing the responsibility of previous govern-
ments in terms of commitments or defence weapons.

. I am pleased to report, as you will see later, that the steering committee
in its first meeting appears to be of that opinion. The steering committee hopes

that, after ga_thel.‘ing all the necessary information, we will be able to discuss
defence policies in the best interest of Canada.

There will certainly be need to have explanations of the technical aspects
of our defence now and in the past, but I say again that I hope we will not
discuss the pohiflcal decisions of the past. Qur purpose is to review what has
been and what is, purely in order to report for the House of Commons on the
future defence policy of our country. By so doing, I feel sure that we have the
opportunity to contribute to a better Canada.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr., Chairman, I am sure the committee welcomes your
statement, although I think it is a bit unusual. T can only accept it as an expres-
sion of your personal opinion. Certainly, we cannot accept it as a statement
which binds the committee as a whole. There are a number of sentences here
with which I am not in agreement. It is with that reservation that I acknowl-
edge the statement that you have made. If we are going to start off on the
right foot, I think it would be much better for the committee to determine
what is its purpose than for the chairman to give us a statement of what he

9
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believes is the purpose of the defence committee. We had discussions in the
House of Commons in respect of the setting up of this committee, and the field
is open for questions relating to problems whether past or present. We hope
that the policy for the future may be determined by this committee, but we
all are very aware that policy matters have to be determined by the govern-
ment and then examined by parliament itself.

This committee may—and I underline that word—be able to assist in the
formulation of defence policy.

Mr. WiNcH: Mr. Chairman, may I just say that, personally, I welcome the
fact that the chairman has seen fit to make a statement, and that it is made
at the most appropriate time in view of the fact that, according to a recom-
mendation which I hope will be accepted from the steering committee, today
we are to do what we in our group consider absolutely important, namely,
open our discussions and deliberations with a statement of government policy
through the Minister of National Defence.

However, sir, if I may, I have one additional word which I would like to
suggest to you. On the fourth line from the bottom of the first page of your
statement you say “We are interested in the future”. I hope I am right in
adding that we are interested in the present and in the future. What I have
to say in that regard also is applicable to the third line from the bottom on
page 2 where you say “—the future defence policy of our country”. I would
suggest it should be our present and future defence policy.

With those very few remarks, I welcome your statement and because of
your wording I do not believe you will try to restrain this committee in any
way in its efforts to obtain information, ask questions and carry on deliberations
1n respect of the present as well as future defence policy.

; Mr. LaNIEL: Subject to the amendments made by Mr. Winch, I move that
this statement be accepted as read, if it is the wish of the committee.

Mr. BarpwiN: I would take exception to that. I believe we are bound by
the resolution. This matter was referred to us by the terms of a resolution
passed by the House of Commons; this is our Bible: we must keep within the
terms of reference. This is one personal sentiment and, of course, all of us have
our own views. However, when it comes to what we do and how we do it, we
must go back to the terms of the resolution.

The CHARMAN: I do not think there is need for a motion, although I do
thank the member for moving it in any event.

I would like to announce the names of the personnel of the subcommittee
on.agenda as proposed by the four political parties: Messrs. Lessard (Lac-
Saint-Jean), MacLean, Temple and Winch, and ex officio Mr. Lambert and
myself. Also, I would like to present to you the first report of the subcommittee
on agenda and procedure. The subcommittee recommends that the committee
{neet on Tue_sday and Thursday mornings at 10.30; that the committee hold
its meetmgs In committee rooms located in the west block; that the quorum of
the commlttt_ee be set at 13 members:—I will come back to this later—that
pur.suar}t to 1t§ order of reference of June 18, 1963, the committee print 1,000
copies in Enghs'h and 500 copies in French of its Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence; that interpreters be available at each meeting of the committee but
that., for the present, interpretations only be made of those proceedings carried
on in the French language; that the Minister of National Defence be invited
to make a statement to the committee on Thursday, June 27, 1963; that at
subsequent meetings the chairman of the chiefs of staff committee, and
representatives of the navy, army and air force be requested to make statements
In order to familiarize committee members with the work of the various armed
services; that a representative of the defence research board be invited to
inform the committee of the work done by that board; that the Secretary of
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State for External Affairs be invited to make a presentatiox_l to th.e comlttee
and that presentations and submissions by witnesses be received without inter-
ruption, questioning of the witness being reserved until after he has completed
his statement.

Now, in respect of item number 3, to the effect that the quorum _be set at
13 members, the resolution adopted by the house mentions that standing order
number 67 be suspended in relation to the committee. Therefore, at our
last meeting we made a mistake when we decided to adopt the formula I had
proposed, and the steering committee felt that a recommendation from the
steering committee to this committee to set the quorum at 13 members would
be in order. :

Before we discuss the steering committee’s report, I will entertain a
motion, and then the discussion will proceed.

Mr. WincH: I would like to suggest that we take all the recommendations
seriatim. If that is agreeable to the members of the committee, I would move
that, at least for our first meetings until we see what happens, the quorum
be set at 13. I so move.

Mr. McMiLLAN: I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you not wish to look at the entire report ar}d thgn
come back, one by one, to the items, if there are any recommendations in
respect of the report of the steering committee.

Mr. SmrtH: I move that the report of the steering committee be accepted.

Mr. LLoyp: As a new member I am getting advice from senior members,
and I would second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: It is moved by Mr. Smith and seconded by Mr. Lloyd that
the report of the steering committee be accepted.

Mr. WincH: I certainly do not want to start off the proceedings in this
committee by taking an exception, but if that motion is accepted, it means you
are accepting the recommendations of the committee.

Mr. SmaTtH: If you want to debate you have to have a motion.

The CHAIRMAN: We need a motion to debate the recommendations. Is
there any discussion on the recommendations?

Mr. DEACHMAN: I move we accept the report of the steering committee.

The CHAIRMAN: To be sure that the report is accepted, will those in favour

g;ea_lsetraise their hands? Now, those opposed? There are 14 for and none
ainst.

I ham advised that some members of the committee did not vote. May I
say, ;gen, (';hat the report of the steering committee is accepted unanimously?
reed.

HellyT;:'e I\I;I?mx;s‘:;:r%folr\ll the agenda is to be a statement by the Hon. Paul T.
Hon. L’u i e atlona_l Defer.lcg.. He is herg today accompanied by the

s thn’ Afssﬁomate Minister of National Defenf:e. '
Gk aE si?i e Minister .to come to the head table to sit there with Mr.

€, and Mr. Miller at the end of this row.

The HON. PAUL T. HeLuyer (Minister of National Defence): Mr. Chairman,
and gentlemen; copies of my statement are available in both English and French
and they are now being distributed. I thought I should point that out at the
outset, the fact that they are available in both languages.

_ Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, unless there is to be a need for the trans-
1at1ng staff to bg here at this morning’s session, may we not say all right,
that is fine, and if they have other duties they might be excused? I say that
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because the statements here are in both English and French. Is there any
requirement to have the translating staff remain? I am sure the ladies would
appreciate having some leisure.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand your point very well. It depends on how
long the statement of the minister will take, and if we have questioning
afterwards. It has been agreed by the steering committee that the French
speaking members will ask their questions in French, and if so, those questions
will be translated into English. But since all the French speaking members are
familiar with the English language, there is no need to translate the English
into French. That is the report of the steering committee, and I think we
should abide by it for the time being at any rate.

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen:

First of all, may I say how pleased I am to have this opportunity to open
the discussion of defence matters with a general statement. This committee
gives honourable members an excellent opportunity to inform themselves on
defence matters and to contribute to the determination of a defence policy for
the years ahead. On behalf of the associate minister and myself, I would like
to assure you of our utmost co-operation during the course of your deliberations.

Canada’s defence policy is an extension of its foreign policy. In particular,
we have been members of and closely identified with three international
organizations which have made demands on our armed forces and made it
possible for us to contribute to the maintenance of peace. These organizations
are the North Atlantic Treaty Organization, the North American air defence
command and the United Nations.

THE NORTH ATLANTIC TREATY ORGANIZATION

Canada was one of the original 12 (now 15) nations signatory to the
North Atlantic Treaty in April 1949, and played a leading role in the formation
of the Alliance, the members of which are, in the words of the treaty “deter-
mined to safeguard the freedom, common heritage and civilization of their
peoples . . . (and) are resolved to unite their efforts for collective defence
and for the preservation of peace and security.” NATO continues to be an
essential foundation of Canada’s foreign and defence policies.

NATO was the response of the free countries of the west to communist
expansion in Europe after the second world war, and to the impasse that arose
in the United Nations when, by the use of its veto in the security council, the
Soviet Union obstructed western efforts to make that organization an effective
instrument for peace. Faced with the threat to their security and to the basis
of their civilization, the western powers resolved to group themselves in an
alliance that would indicate clearly their determination to resist aggression,
from whatever quarter it might come, and to maintain peace.

In the years since its inception, NATO has built up, in Europe, a formid-
able military force. This force is composed of contributions from member
nations. At the outset it was planned that a large army of 90-100 divisions
should be built up. For a number of reasons both political and economic this
goal has never been achieved and it is unlikely that it will be in the future.
To redress the balance of power a family of tactical nuclear weapons have
been employed. The existence of these tends to neutralize any advantage a
Potential enemy might have through greater manpower. The NATO land force
In central Europe of approximately 28 divisions has a considerable capacity
althoggh there are a number of critical deficiencies from the standpoint of
reaching desired goals. This force is backed up by the striking power of the
west’s strategic forces, mainly the United States Strategic Air Command.
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The United States Strategic Air Command is probably the most powerful
and best organized military force in the history of the world. Supplen;ented
now by the Polaris missile-firing submarines it has adgquate capac1ty to
deliver nuclear weapons to strategic targets. Canada has assisted the oper'athnal
effectiveness of this command by providing refuelling bases, communications
links and overflight privileges. We will continue to provide these facilities
to the extent required. :

At the same time that the free world has an adequate or better capacity
in strategic forces, there remain demonstrable deficiencies in its cor’lvent1qnal
and tactical capacity in Europe. The doctrine of “measured response” requires
a strengthening of conventional capacity in order to reduce the necessity for
immediate or early use of nuclear force and to allow the time necessary for
political consultation and decision. At the same time, the supreme .alhe.d
commander Europe has been given responsibility for military targets in his
sector. This includes, of course, Soviet missile launchers based against westgrn
Europe. To meet this responsibility he has a requirement for additional tactical
nuclear capacity.

Force goals for the alliance are set by negotiation and agreement betwgen
members of the Alliance. In consultation with the supreme commander, in-
dividual countries decide the nature and extent of their contribution. For a
small country like Canada there is considerable choice of contribution, but
once a contribution has been agreed to we are conscience bound to live up to
the bargain during the time period in question. To the extent that nations are
responsible in meeting and keeping their agreed commitments, the supreme
commander is able to fulfil his responsibility.

Canada has had a good record for fulfilling its defence commitments in
NATO. Our contribution to the defensive strength of the alliance includes
ships and maritime patrol aircraft earmarked for the supreme allied com-
mander Atlantic, an air division of eight, formerly twelve, squadrons and an
‘army division of which one brigade group is stationed in Europe. These forces

do not operate in isolation but as part of larger integrated forces united for
a common purpose.

Maritime Forces

From the beginning of NATO, there was an apparent and pressing need for
strong naval and maritime forces

in the Atlantic. The Atlantic council agreed
that a separate command must be formed to preserve the integrity of the
At%annc Ocean and in Def:ember 1950, the Council decided to appoint a supreme
allhed.commander Atlantic as soon as circumstances would permit. After much
b. &;mmg, the first international Ocean Command in peacetime was formed
in a';luary 2‘:352 with headquarters at Norfolk, Virginia.
dutieso fi?iesea;he NATQ Atlantic commander to carry out his peacet?me
Uilite the come periodically placed at his disposal for combined training.
permanently as mander of thg NATO forces in Europe, SACLANT has no
for aSSignmentSIgned- forces; instead, he has to depend on forces earmarkgd
arfan t to his command in an emergency. The reasoning for this
gemen 1s that the maritime powers of NATO maintain flexible naval
force:s ar}d maritime air forces to protect their national interests on the high
seas in time of peace. Such forces are highly mobile and it was decided, there-
fore, that the Atlantic maritime powers would maintain their own naval
forces and maritime air forces in peacetime and transfer control of an agreed

number of units to SACLANT on the declaration of an emergency.
By the end of 1959,

; é Canada was able to provide one carrier and 29 escorts
to be readily available to SACLANT for duty in the north Atlantic in the event
Of' an emergency. In addition, 14 escorts stationed on the west coast and 10
minesweepers were provided for the Canada-U.S. region.
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In 1959, Canada approved the construction of a further six escort ships—
the Mackenzie class—to replace older vessels in commission so that there would
be no reduction in the naval commitment.

Technological improvements, aimed at increasing the anti-submarine
effectiveness of our forces, have been steadily introduced. The conversion pro-
gramme now under way for the seven St. Laurent class ships includes the
fitting of variable depth sonar together with the installation of a platform
and operating facilities for an anti-submarine helicopter.

With the development of nuclear submarines, however, the problems of
anti-submarine warfare have been greatly increased. As in other areas of
advanced military technology, the “offence” is more effective than the “defence”
at the present time. Increased importance is being given to research and de-
velopment in anti-submarine devices. One new contribution to the pool of
knowledge on this subject will be the development of a prototype hydrofoil
craft which has just been authorized. It is but one of the options being studied
with great interest by this department.

In addition to naval forces, Canada agreed that the R.C.A.F. should ear-
mark 40 maritime patrol aircraft to SACLANT. Lancaster aircraft were joined
for this assignment by Neptunes in the latter part of the 1950’s with the long-
range Argus coming into service as a replacement for the former aircraft in
1959.

Army

For some years the Canadian army has maintained a brigade group in
Europe. It is part of the northern army group. Canada has also agreed to supply
the balance of a division in the event hostilities should occur. The agreed time
lapse before the reserve brigade would be available, however, and the unavail-
ability of shipping brings into question the effectiveness of this “reserve” under
conditions prevailing in any future war. A review seems warranted to deter-
mine whether the commitment should be changed or whether steps should
be taken to substantially increase the “reality” of the reserve components in
today’s circumstances.

Air Force

The Royal Canadian Air Force has maintained in Europe one air division.
Until recently it consisted of twelve air defence squadrons at four bases. In
1959 the government of Canada agreed to change the role of the air division
from air defence to strike-reconnaissance and obtained the concurrence of
the supreme allied commander Europe to a reduction from twelve squadrons
to eight. Each base will now accommodate two squadrons instead of three.
This change was agreed to by SACEUR because the new aircraft, the CF104, is
a very sophisticated aircraft which requires more technical support than the
aircraft it replaces, and because of the demanding nature of the strike role. The
strike role is one requiring the ability to drop atomic bombs on enemy military
targets in the event of hostilities.

The acceptance by the government of Canada of the strike role for the
air division committed Canadian forces to the use of atomic devices. This brings
up the question of NATO nuclear policy. As far back as December 1955, the
NATO ministerial meeting demonstrated the clear intention on the part of all
member governments to see the Atlantic forces equipped with the most modern
weapons. In 1957, the NATO council stressed the fact that the U.S.S.R. was
steadily proceeding with the development of its own nuclear armament. The
foreign ministers affirmed the right of the alliance to the possession of
modern arms necessary in its defence against aggression.
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The heads of government meeting in December of the same year publicly
confirmed the NATO decision to establish stocks of nuclear- weapons which
would be readily available for the defence of the alliance in case of need.
Again, in February 1959, NATO authorities affirmed that after the required
bilateral agreements had been reached, the United States had delivered nuclear-
capable weapons for the nuclear deterrent to NATO forces in Europe and
that this transfer was being continued.

The dependence upon nuclear weapons against both strategic and tactical
Fargets has been brought about for two basic reasons:—the marked superiority
In Soviet manpower vis-a-vis NATO forces in being, and the knowledge that
the Soviets have similar weapons in operation. This dependence, however, has
no? reduced the requirement to increase the conventional capability of the
alliance, but NATO authorities have never called for this requirement to be
met at the expense of its nuclear capability. Thus, at the ministerial meeting
in De_cember of last year it was agreed “that it was necessary to increase the
effectiveness of conventional forces,” but it was also agreed “that adequate
and balanced forces, both nuclear and conventional, were necessary to provide
the alliance with the widest possible range of response to whatever threat may
be directed against its security”. As members of the committee are aware, at
the recent meeting of ministers here in Ottawa it was agreed to establish an
Interallied nuclear force in NATO which was considered to be a measure lead-
Ing to an increase in the effectiveness of the nuclear capability at the disposal
of the alliance.
admiIn' Case. anyone here might suspect_ that this policy is not held by the
Unit éldlStratlon in Washington, I should like to refer to recent testimony of the
o Stgtes secretary of defence, Mr. McNamara, given to a congressional
Sy t;ﬂllljll'gtee on appropriations. Following his ren}arks with regard to the
mean th uild up the conventional forces, he had this to say: “This does not
Dhs he cat the NATO forces can or should do without tactical nl_lclear weapons.
nuelesr Ontra.ry,. we must continue to strengthen and modernize our tactical
Weapons‘-‘gpablhmes to deal with an gttack where the opponent emp_loys such
of bei; rst, or an attack by conventional forces which puts Europe in danger
e Ng overrun. We mean to defend Europe with whatever kind of weapons

€ needed.”
vau’il‘s}ilggicc;pfnce by Canada of the strike rc_)le for the air division and the
mitted us tg t e_HOnest.J ohn rocket for our ‘r_mgade group in Europe has com-
10 permit thesilgnmg 2 bilateral agreement with the United States of America
B e oo t};mnedlate availability of nuclear devices. This does not make us
us and other m: nt';ICIear clup. It only fulfills the gemneral undertgklng. given by
ber 1957 ang th:gn €r countries at t.he heads of government meeting in Decem—
role. In signing al}{emﬁc undertaking of Canada, in _1959, to accept tlj.e §tr1ke
our NATO Mlics ilateral agreement we will be doing what the majority of

ment given to thgal‘\;e already done and we will be implementing the commit-

ATO Council in 1959.
estions have been raised about the strike role being truly
f the ability of the weapons carrier, the CF104, to penetrate
Y. The designation “tactical” is basically related to the type
an to the weapons carrier used although in common usage the
targets which Wottleled often dpes have a relafcionship to targgt assignment. The
This type of target be a_551gned tq our air force are military targets on.ly,
Bebls: padar i 3 Ct?uld involve military bases including dockyards and air-
and d’umps conta? .atlons and military command and control centres; depots
e nmg fuel or other supplies directly supporting enemy combat
b a’m 356 o 'I,‘hrall' or waterway facilities used for supporting the combat
: * +1€ yield of the bomb assigned would depend on the particular

: number of

.‘tactical”, because(%)u
Into enemy territor
of target rather th
range of the vehj
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target but in most of these cases would be relatively low-yield—a very small
fraction of figures which have been used in the House and in the press. “Tac-
tical” targets do not include population centres as such. Now, I am not suggest-
ing that all civilian populations would be left untouched by the use of these
tactical weapons, but I am saying that all targets assigned to the air division
will be of direct and immediate significance to a possible battle in allied com-
mand Europe.

I know some honourable members are concerned about the moral aspects of
these assignments. It is a matter of concern to all of us. As a member of NATO
we have agreed to a strategy of nuclear deterrence. As long as we remain a
member of the alliance we cannot separate ourselves, morally, from the general
policy. We rely on the protection of the strategic air command and approve of
its constant flights over our territory. Additionally, we have sold the uranium
for most of the free world’s arsenal and would, no doubt, sell more for military
purposes if our friends were interested in buying it. Any attempt to get out of
our part of the collective responsibility on moral grounds seems ahollow
gesture.

It is important to bear in mind that NATO is a defensive alliance and that
the forces assigned to it in the European theatre are for defensive purposes.
The more effective these forces are, the more credible is the deterrent to any
aggression in that area.

NORTH AMERICAN AIR DEFENCE

In the fall of 1957 the North American air defence command came into
being. It is charged with the responsibility of protecting, in so far as that is
possible, the North American land mass from attack by air. The headquarters
of this command is located in Colorado Springs, Colorado. The commander-in-
chief is U.S. general John K. Gerhart, and the deputy commander-in-chief is
Canadian air marshal Roy Slemon.

To assist this command in its function, information is funnelled into its
headquarters from a network of warning lines and control stations. These
include the pinetree radar system roughly along the Canada-U.S. border, the
mid-Canada line approximately along the 55th parallel, the distant early warn-
ing line along the northern periphery of the continent and the ballistic missile
early warning system with stations in Alaska and Greenland, and under con-
struction in England.

These systems have been altered and augmented from time to time in
accordance with changing requirements and circumstances. For example, it was
agreed in 1959 that seven additional heavy radars should be constructed in
Canada as reinforcement for the Pinetree line. A number of exposed semi-
autpma_tic ground environment (SAGE) combat centres located on U.S. stra-
tegic air command bases and considered redundant, are being abandoned. A
new hardened SAGE centre near North Bay is just nearing completion. Addi-
tional changes are contemplated.

.Tl.1e ai; threat to North America consists of long range intercontinental
ballistic missiles (ICBM’s), submarine or ship-launched intermediate range
ballistic missiles (IRBM’s) and manned bombers. At the moment there is no
protection against ballistic missiles. The United States has under development
an anti-missile missile known as the Nike-Zeus but no decision has been
taker} to put it into operational service largely because of the considerable
cost u}volved. Development is continuing of potentially more effective means
of anti-missile protection.

At thi; moment the active air defence is limited to the anti-bomber field,
and a considerable effort is expended in this direction. If members of the com-
mittee recall statements I made when in opposition, you may wonder why I
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now support the use of some of our resources for this purpose. The op1;1110n§c
I expressed during the last few years were based on knowledge of the t rezll
made available to us at that time—1959. The estimates havg subseggentg
turned out to be incorrect. The rate of Soviet missile production antlclpa’fe

at that time has not materialized. In consequence the bomber threat remau:is
at this date a very much larger proportion of the total threat than was expected.

On the basis of present information I feel that active air defence is a proper
demand on part of our resources.

Our contribution to the active air defence consists of a substantial pgrtici-
bation in the radar warning lines, five squadrons of QF-IQIB—Voodoo, inter-
Ceptors, and two squadrons of BOMARC surface-to-air missiles.

At the outset Canadian authorities had noted that the init§a1 .U.S. plans for
the installation of these missiles confined them completely within the bounds
of the continental United States. Canadian comments on thesg U.S. plan;
€xpressed concern that this proposed deployment would result in c;onduct 0
the air battle over the most densely populated areas of Canada, particularly in
the area between Montreal and Toronto. The proposition was advanced_ that
this undesirable situation could be easily rectified without any compromise to

-S. air defence by moving a small portion of the planned BOMARC deploy(-:-
ment further northward. In particular, it was proposed that the twq BOMAR
Squadrons programmed for a site in northern Michigan and another in northern
New York state, just south of Montreal, should be deployed further north.

Meanwhile, the North American air defence command had come 1pto beu?g
and, Operating through these channels, little difficulty was experienced in
Persuading the U.S. to locate the northern Michigan squadron to North Bay,
Ontario, and the northern New York state squadron to La Macaza, P.Q. From
the NORAD point of view, this deployment was desirable not only because
it moved the defence line outward toward the periphery of the ground radar
System, but also the two BOMARC squadrons, previously.programmed. for
location at SAC bases in the U.S.A., were moved to more isolated locations.

Many of the early tests of the BOMARC B were not successful and it was
also subject to electronic counter measures. Consequently a number of
Observers, myself included, were extremely critical. More recently the defects
Ve been solyed and a device has been developed to overcome the effects of
€lectronic counter measures. It is now an effective anti-bomber weapon—
ood a5 anything we have available. Like Mr. McNamara, the US defen(;e
Secretary, 1 believe that after approximately $3 billion has been 1nve§ted in
i BOMARC System, practically all by the United States, the effectiveness
of the system igs sufficient to justify the maintenance costs involved. :

Ip order to bhe effective, however, the BOMARC must be armed with an
g Warhead. No COnvent’ional warhead exists and none was ever develop.ed,;
The gdvaptage of the nuclear warhead is twofold. First, it has a good “kill
apacity in that a direct hit is not required. Second, the bomb or ’l,)ombs
;?;Iged : t-h 5 attacking bomber can be rendered harmless by “cooking”. I]:f> zi
the ree;fll‘i)lpswe Warhead was available it might bring down the bombgr u
compariszlxr;g €Xplosion from the bombs being carried would be devastating in

It is expected
These fuses that

enemy bombs are designed with ‘“dead man” fuses.
Permit the

; i ft
; bombs to detonate on impact even though the aircra
or other deva Which is carrying them has been shot down in flames or has
dlslntegrateq ‘0 the air. There is therefore considerable advantage in the use
gf nuclear air defenge warheads which will kill the weapon and not just the
arrier.
In all, there are mor i squadrons in the
e than 40 regular fighter-interceptor sq
NO;:I;)I_) 3_sgstem, of which five are the recently re-equipped RCAF CF-101B
1
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squadrons. The CF-101B Voodoo aircraft are designed to carry both conven-
tional and atomic air-to-air missiles. At present the Canadian squadrons are
armed with the conventional missiles only. The advantages of having atomic
missiles available are obvious since the “kill” capacity of the Genie atomic
rocket is several times greater than that of the conventional Falcon rocket.

The bilateral agreement now being negotiated with the United States
will permit the stockpiling in Canada of nuclear devices to be immediately
available in an emergency. It should be remembered that these weapons are
purely defensive. They do not constitute a threat to other nations. NORAD
forces go into defensive action only after absolute proof is established that the
North American continent is under attack by aggressor forces.

Another point, the Voodoo interceptors would not be flying around during
day-to-day operations with nuclear rockets aboard. Normal training and opera-
tional interceptions would be done, as they are by the USAF, with aircraft
equipped with high explosive—not atomic—rockets.

The nuclear-equipped Canadian interceptors would only take off under the
authority of the Canadian government subsequent to the release of the weapons
themselves by the President of the United States. Similarly, the BOMARC
could not be fired without the prior approval of both the U.S. and the Canadian
governments. And, I repeat, both weapons systems would only be put into action
if North America was under attack.

THE UNITED NATIONS

It is an important aspect of Canadian defence and foreign policy to support
the peace-keeping operations of the United Nations. Apart from U.N. action
in Korea, Canada over the years has undertaken a number of military com-
mitments to the United Nations. In November 1956, the United Nations emer-
gency force in the Middle East was formed to secure and supervise the cessa-
tion of hostilities between Israel and Egypt. Since the inception of this force,
Canada has made a major contribution of Canadian army personnel and has
furnished an air transport unit operated by the RCAF. At the present time,
there are over 800 members of the Canadian army and some 80 RCAF person-
nel serving in UNEF. It should be noted here that we recently agreed to con-
tribute to the U.N. force—made up in part from personnel in UNEF—which is
being sent to Yemen in an effort to stabilize conditions in that country.

In accordance with the security council resolution of July 14, 1960, the
Canadian government approved a request by the secretary general for the
provision of a signals unit to provide communications facilities for the United
Nations headquarters in the Congo and the first Canadian element arrived in
that country in August of that year. In addition to signals personnel, we also
supply a small number of staff officers at United Nations headquarters, a
provost section operating under the direction of this headquarters and repre-
sentatives of the RCAF are in the Congo in support of United Nations air
operations.

The RCAF supplies airlift for personnel and equipment not only to and
from Egypt, but also for our forces in the Congo. At the present time there
are some 280 army and 24 air force personnel in the Congo.

. Canadian servicemen also form part of the United Nations truce super-
visory organization in Palestine. The duty of this team is to observe and main-
tain the cease-fire ordered by the United Nations council in 1949 and to assist
the parties to the general armistice agreements in the supervision of the terms
of the general armistice agreements concluded severally between the govern-
ments of Egypt, Lebanon, Jordan and Syria on one hand and Israel on the
other. There are a total of 18 Canadian army officers on this team.
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The United Nations military observer group was formed as the r_esult of a
resolution by the United Nations commission for India and nglstan in August
1948. The military observer group is made up of representatives from various
countries and of the total 35 officers involved, Canada supphgs elght._

Although the truce team in Indo-China is not under United Natlor‘xs con-
trol, it is, I think, related to the peace-keeping operations of that organlgatlon.
The truce commission is composed of representatives from Canada, India and
Poland and has been functioning continuously since 1954 under the terms
agreed to by the United Kingdom and the Soviet Union. There are at the
moment 75 representatives of the Canadian army, two from the RCN and two
from the RCAF in Indo-China. !

In addition to the Canadians serving abroad on behalt: of t}}e United
Nations, since September 1960 an army battalion has been aval}able in Canada
for Uniteq Nations service. Plans have been made and exercises _have taken
blace in order that this battalion could be provided on short not}ce in the event
of a request being received. The 1st Battalion, Royal 22e Eeglment has been

esignated as the main element of the group. This battahgn took over tl}e
responsibility from the 2nd Battalion, the Royal Canadian Regiment in
April 1961,
From time to time suggestions have been made that we shogld turn over
bart of our armed forces to the U.N. To date there has been no inclination on
the part of the U.N. to accept this kind of offer, and the maintenance of a
standby battalion which would be available if required seems to be the best
alternative in these circumstances.

CANADIAN DEFENCE POLICY

id at the outset, Canadian defence policy is an extension of our

¢y. We provide contributions to the collective defence of _the free

World and to the maintenance of peace. Our contributions are pooled with those

Nasther nations through the agencies of NATO, NORAD and the United
ations,

As I s
foreign pojj

Our contributions at this time are those which have been agreed to in the
=%t They are as T have set them out for you. It is the policy of the govern-
ment to make effective those weapons systems which have been acqulrgd as
part of the Canadian contribution, including making immediately avallgb!e
nudear. devices required to make our contribution credible. Furthermore, it is
the. Policy of the government to undertake a thorough review of our defence
p°11°¥ and commitments in order to determine the best and most effective
contribution we can make to the collective defence ef the free world and to

he maintenance of peace in the years ahead.
In org

proc o facilitate the review, certain action has been taken. All major
) urement_ Programs are being reconsidered. In particular, any procuremgnt

gram which Would tend to limit future policy or interfere with the exercise
of future options i

On S 1s being carefully reviewed. ;
projecte' . tI{eSe Programs is the general purpose frigate program. It is a
_ovolving the e€xpenditure of large sums of money. For this reason

all pres : :
S cI:e edier?gt_ and likely futyre options have to be carefully considered before

I Ago’;her major Program under review is the acquisition of additional CF-104
HEEralt for bk v the eight squadrons being formed in Europe. We are

considerably concerne, ; four squadrons to be
located on the tyyq d about the effectiveness of the four sq

; rench bases at Marville and Grostenquin. As me;nbers of
the committee knoy, the French government has so far not permitted the
stockpiling of nucleay Weapons for NATO on its territory. In consequence, the
Weapons for the four

' ily at hand, and those
29120-3—23 Squadrons would not be readily
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aircraft to be maintained on quick reaction alert would have to be deployed
to other bases. This raises the further question of vulnerability. In view of
these problems, it is considered desirable to review at once the alternatives
which may be available now or in the future. The CF-104 is specially designed
for the strike role and does not readily lend itself to other employment. Con-
sequently we intend to carefully review the question before proceeding with
any additional procurement.

To assist in the review of current procurement programs and in the
consideration of future policy, a special advisory group has been set up in
the department under the chairmanship of Dr. R. J. Sutherland, chief of
operational research in the defence research board. This group has undertaken
a number of studies intended to demonstrate the reasons for and against a par-
ticular course of action and to list the available options. It does not make
recommendations. This committee which has been functioning for some weeks
now reports directly to the Minister.

As soon as a review of existing procurement programs is complete and
decisions taken, which I hope will be within a few weeks, the general review
of future policy will commence. It is intended that it will be a most thorough-
going study. We will consider not only the best tasks and contributions which
Canada can make in future years but also how they can be most efficiently
organized. The recommendations of the Glassco commission are being studied
and will be considered in the context of future policy. The relationship be-
tween our forces and those of our allies will be considered. In this connection
I am pleased that General Lemnitzer, the new Supreme Allied Commander
Europe, will pay a visit to Ottawa on July 23rd and that we will have the
opportunity to discuss mutual problems. It is also fortunate that the general
review of NATO strategy being undertaken by the standing group will be
going ahead simultaneously with our own studies. This should greatly facilitate
our appreciation of future requirements of the alliance and the best use of
available resources to meet those requirements. An interim report by the
standing group is expected to be available in time for the ministers’ meeting
in December. Assuming this to be the case, it is hoped that notwithstanding
the considerable scope and magnitude of our own studies we will be in a
position to reach conclusions early in the New Year. I am sure that the views
of this committee will be most helpful in assisting us to determine the best
role for Canada to play in future years.

Before concluding my remarks I would like to repeat the essence of my
admonition to the graduating class of Royal Military College on May 31st. It
was my opinion that the world’s problems could not be solved by force of
arms. The object of our readiness is to provide an umbrella under which men
of goodwill may work toward the solution of those problems. It was gratifying

to learn that my view was shared by the young graduates who are enlisting in
the service of their country.

May I thank honourable members of the committee for their courtesy

and repeat_the undertaking on behalf of the associate minister and myself to
do everything we can to assist the committee in its deliberations.

The CHAIRMAN: I would like to thank the minister for his statement.
I have just conferred with the minister and I am advised that he will have to
leave at 12 o’clock. If there are questions which members of the committee
would like to direct to the minister, there is time to do so. When you are
recognized by the Qhair please direct your questions to the minister. In order
to assist the Committee Reporters, please speak slowly and clearly.

Mx.'. FAIRWEATHER: I am wondering whether members of this committee
are going to be cleared by NATO security procedures so as to enable us to
receive and consider classified or sensitive information.

Lo WP
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Mr. HELLYER: If your question is directed to me, I may say that there has
been no formal suggestion from this committee that this be done_, and I would
doubt very much whether the committee members would wish it to be dpne.
I think that all the information which really is essential to your deliberations
can be made available on an unclassified basis.

M. Lessarp (Lac-Saint-Jean): Monsieur le président, le .m‘inistre de la
Défense pourrait-il nous informer si les Etats-Unis ont réussi a trouv:er un
dispositif de sécurité pour prévenir toute explosion possible pogl\{ant résulter

e I’écrasement d’un bombardier ou transporteur d’engins nucléaires? :

Je pose cette question parce que j’ai lu dans un article gu’un’ bombardier
qui, effectivement, transportait une bombe atomique s’était écrasé aux Etats-
Unis et que des trois dispositifs de sécurité, deux n’avaient pas fo_nctlonne et
que, par conséquent, un seul avait empéché ’explosion de se produire.

¢ (Note: English translation of the above question appears at the back of
this issue.)

Mr. HELLYER: Yes, they have had very great success. Every possible precau-
tion is taken. I think the best witness to the effectiveness of those precautions is
the fact that in all the years during which the United States has had a
stockpile of atomic weapons of various kinds, there has never been any

accidental explosion, any fissionable explosion of any kind in all the years
they have had those weapons.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, the point I wanted to raise is this: I under-
stood you to say that Mr. Hellyer can only be here for another 15 minutes
at this time, 1 have a number of questions I would like to ask the minister,
but T would Jike to have an opportunity to think about them, and I wondered
iIf it woulg not be better for us to adjourn, in order that we may have timg
to think about the question that we want to ask the minister. I make this
Tequest, in view of the fact that he has given us a very full and interesting
statement today, and in view of the fact that we want time to digest it before
We proceed to question him, and that we want to think out our questions
very carefully and not throw them haphazardly at the minister. So I would
ike to sugegest, as far as I am concerned, that while I have a few questions to
ask, I would rather not pursue them at the moment. I do not know what other
mem?ers of the committee may think about this.

he CHATRMAN: Well, if it is the wish of the committee we could perhaps

idjourn I0W, or we could go on until 12 o’clock. The minister will be available
et Tuesday for questioning.

o Mr. Smrry: Mr. Chairman, why not go on to 12 o'clock today and then
Jot}? to come back on Tuesday? :
e

CHAIRMAN: All right. Let us proceed. You will ask your questions
next Tuesday, Mr. Brewinr'?lg s :
Mr. BrEwTy: Yes.

= CHARMAN; Now, Mr. Laniel.

ment ar.r;;? iEL: I wonder if the Hon. Mr. Hellyer could joir} W'ith his state-
of armed for on the different contributions by NATO countries in the matter
policy on a ECG‘S, Or even in the form of money, so that we might judge our

ancial basis at the same time.

of o'?l/fg.r Hrsz;?m I do not think I am at liberty to disclose the contributions
SvAilable o €IS of the alliance to the total. There may be some ﬁguFes
of this order o omparative basis with regard to expenditures, or something
to th > 80d if T eoyg find something available, I would make it av::nlable

© committes ki 1 not the practice for one member nation to disclose

. tOMmalI{_,e Publi the contributions of any other member nation.
S we get from you whatever is available?
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Mr. HELLYER: I shall look into the question to see if there is any informa-
tion which could be helpful and could be made available.

Mr. WincH: I have a question to ask, and perhaps the minister might
consider it and be able to answer it next Tuesday. I was very interested in
what the minister had to say in paragraph two on page 18 of his presentation,
where he indicated that if we have defensive weapons equipped with atomic
warheads they will be able to shoot down aggressive atomic attackers on us,
and by shooting them down in the air, that will result—to use his own term—
in cooking.

My question is this: in view of his statement, has the minister had an
opportunity, or will he check the statement made by Mr. McNamara before the
defence appropriation committee this year of the house of representatives of
the 88th congress, as far as they permit security measures to make it public?

It is most interesting because Mr. McNamara and others who were called
before that committee gave evidence to the effect that any defensive operations
using atomic warheads to shoot down atomic attackers would mean a greater
radiation fallout over Canada and the United States. I think the minister will
understand, in view of the evidence given this year by Mr. McNamara before the
congress. How does it tie in with what, I presume, is the suggestion of the
minister here that by Canada having atomic warheads to shoot down atomic
attackers, and with defensive weapons of an atomic character, it might result
in cooking. I cannot put the two together.

Mr. HELLYER: I would not want to answer your question without first
getting the text of that statement. It may be that it is a verbatim report, but I
would have to see the context.

Mr. WincH: I draw it to the attention of the minister. It is a statement
made by Mr. McNamara before the appropriations sub-committee this year of
the house of representatives.

Mr. HELLYER: Could you say if the reference is to shooting down inter-
continental ballistic missiles?

Mr. WincH: Yes, definitely. What is the difference between an atomic
warhead carried by a manned bomber, and one carried by an ICBM?

Mr. HELLYER: There is a very substantial difference and I will try to get
you some information.

Mr. SmiTH: Mr. Chairman, on page 8 of the minister’s statement he said
that in 1959 the government of Canada agreed to change the role of the air
division from air defence to strike-reconnaissance.

I wonder if that is the actual sequence, or if there was not a change made
after a request by the supreme allied commander in Europe, of NATO head-
quarters, asking Canada to change its role, or to accept a changed role?

Mr. HELLYER: I am not sure I can answer that question.
Mr. SmatH: Could we get an answer for it?

Mr. HELLYER: I do not know if it is really relevant, because these contri-
butions are worked out in agreement between the supreme allied commander,
the standing group and the individual nation. As is well known to members
of the committee, some of the military officers in NATO are anxious that our
air division do this role because of its extreme competence. I would not be
surprised if they were anxious to have it taken on. All decisions as to the
general necessity of contributions are made by the members involved.

Mr. SmirH: I seem to recollect General Norstad coming and speaking to
members of the house in relation to that particular matter.

?ﬂr. HeLLYER: He came at that time to discuss the matter with the govern-
ment.
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Mr. SmiTH: And he spoke to members of parliament supporting it.
Mr. HELLYER: I do not recall whether he did or not.

- : f head
Mr. MATHESON: May I ask the minister if ther;a is a non-nuclear war
availabie for the Bomarc and for the Honest John?

i c B,
Mr. HELLYER: There is no nuclear warhead available foirS t:enggﬂilear
and thére has not been, nor is any hrfontemplated. There
Wwarhead available for the Honest John. g b
Mr. Lroyp: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the question O(fnﬂ:flehggﬁtfilgution
to the minister which was designed to obtain information

i ini id it was
made by other countries, and I appreciate it that the minister said
not customary to do that.

release
Mr. HELLYER: No, I do not think it is customary fo}' one country to
rmation in respect of contributions of other countries.

: : ink that

Mr. Lroyp: I have had some experience in this ?elg;ta;ldissl a?;,noppor_

With a little imagination on our part we should certainly of the effort that is
tunity to use our skills so as not to effect an overlapping

2 . 3 Obtained,
being made by the respective countries. If this information can be
I think we should obtain it.

info

e ; i from
Mr. HELLYER: I think this can be done. There is information available fr
other sources, but we cannot do it.

frain
The CHAIRMAN: In order to help the reporters, would you please re

ann tch all your
from cutting in to the answers, because the reporters cannot ca
Comments,

: . Winch.
Mr. CHURCHILL: I would like to support the qpestéon :S;I: el(iitttl)g flgxfther and
In fact, I wag going to ask it myself. But I would 'hke : ;gn lete evidence with
Suggest that we have brought before the committee co bg cooked by a blast
regard to the allegation that nuclear tipped bombs can
rom a nuclear missile, S as made
My second Question is this: On pages 11 and e thz n;}llr::‘:e; :}: notation
reference to Mr, McNamara and statements made by him. }? re i s
On page 11 by M. McNamara I think the committee should rzye Ay e
to it the full text of what is available for public mfo.rmalmnbcommittee on
With that statement by Mr. McNamara to the e i Sureferred to on
aPPropriations, as well as the full text of the cher eVldegce ara. Could we
Page 18 wherein the minister says he agrees with Mr. Mc ‘amstn;ent ke
have Mr, McNamara’s actyal statement in respect of the inve
Bomare system. '

. : : idence
Mr. HELLYER: I think the statements are included in pub}lls}kl)tfg ;V;ublic
of the subcommittee On appropriations and, therefore, are availa

: : i ittee
libraries for the honourap]e gentleman and other members of this commi
to see.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Yes, but—

The CHAIRMAN: Iam sorry, but could we have one speaker. at a ':ufe_.
Mr. HELLYER: If the committee would like to get those g Sfeses.
ments I am syre they could be made available by the United States cong

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: I move t
The CHARMAY. There is no

Is it agreed that w

hat the committee request this information.
need to make a motion to that effect.

€ request the necessary documents.
Some hon. MEMmEg

RS: Agreed.
The CHAIRMAN:

I am informed that either the minister or some of his
officials will look after this for us.
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Mr. BALDWIN: Could the minister say what other countries now have
bilateral agreements with the United States for the use of nuclear warheads or
missiles under the terms of the Atomic Energy Act.

Mr. HELLYER: I am sorry but I cannot. If you look at some of my speeches
which I made previously you would obtain what I believe to be the names of
some of them and if you would care to check other sources I am sure you
would find most of them. However, it is not permissible to give these names
officially.

Mr. BaLpwin: But the agreements you refer to are agreements negotiated
with the United States under the terms of that act?

Mr. HELLYER: They are bilateral agreements which permit the stockpiling
of nuclear devices to be immediately available for use in an emergency by the
signatory nations.

Mr. BALDwWIN: And, any flexibility of negotiation is limited by the terms of
the Atomic Energy Act?

Mr. HELLYER: Yes.

Mr. LamBERT: At the top of page 9 of your statement it says:

The strike role is one requiring the ability to drop atomic bombs. ..
Does that really mean the strike role is one requiring, among others, the
ability to drop atomic bombs?

Mr. HELLYER: The strike role as defined in the NATO text is this.

Mr. LAMBERT: In other words, it is exclusive?

Mr. HELLYER: Yes.

Mr. McMiILLAN: I was interested in the increased effectiveness which you
report for the Bomarc. Have you actual reports of the increased effectiveness
of that nuclear arm?

Mr. HELLYER: Yes. As far as we are concerned, the evidence is quite clear
that both the kill capacity of the nuclear warhead is several times that which
the non-nuclear would be if it is available, which it is not, and also it has
this additional advantage which I have stated, which is a very important one.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is now twelve o’clock. The minister will be
available for questioning at our next meeting.

Mr. WincH: I would like to place one question on the record, if I could,
because I think the minister would like prior notice of some of these questions.

Would it be permissible, Mr. Chairman, if we directed through you in
the next day or two questions which we would like to have information on
from the minister?

Mr. HELLYER: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it would be very helpful if honourable
members submitted to the Chairman questions which they would like to have
answered as in this way we could get fuller and more accurate information
than would be possible if it was done spontaneously.

The CHAIRMAN: The meeting stands adjourned until Tuesday morning at
10.30.
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THE FOLLOWING IS AN ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THE DELIBERATIONS
CARRIED ON IN FRENCH ON THIS DAY:

Special Committee on Defence
Page 21.

Mr. LEssarp (Lac St-Jean): Mr. Chairman, could the Minister of National
Defence inform the Committee as to whether or not the United States have
found a safety device capable of preventing any possible explosion which could
result from a crash landing of a bomber or carrier of nuclear arms?

5 I am asking this question because I have read in an article that, when a
Omber carrying an atom bomb crashed in the United States, two of the three

safety .devices failed to operate and, therefore, only one device prevented the
explosion.
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The Special Committee on Defence met at 10.40 a.m. this day. The Chair-
man, Mr. Maurice Sauvé, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Brewin, Churchill, dDI(\a/? cclimm::ir;
Granger, Groos, Hahn, Lambert, Lessard (Lac-:Samthean)» Lloyv;,r a111 (19)’
MacLean, MartineaU, Matheson, McMillan, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, Winc t
In attendance: The Honourable Paul Hellyer, Minister of Nationafl Def-eng.?x;'

e Honourable Lucien Cardin, Associate Minis@er of National De "ifclce‘, gz
Chief Marshal F. R, Miller, Chairman of the Chiefs of Staff Committee;
Dro @ s Field, Chief Scientist, Defence Research Board.

Mr. Hellyer Proceeded to supply answers to questions asked at previous

meetings by M

essrs. Churchill and Winch; he was questioned on these answers
and relateq matters,

Agreed,hthat the question of calling certain outside witnesses be referred
to the Steering Subcommittee.

The Chairman announced that the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure
Would meet in his office at 5.00 p.m. this day.
Lt )

SV panis ‘ ' until 10.30 am. Thursday,
July 4, 1963, he Committee adjourned

E. W. Innes, )
Clerk of the Committee.

29122-9—13 27






| &

EVIDENCE
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tin,
The CHATRMAN: Gentlemen, we now have a quorumbalndfgrcsgutlzi 2’:}‘; t%
to order. In order to facilitate things, if it is at all pOISlSl ien his own document,
the minister’s statement in the printed report rather than
it would be very helpful to the reporters. : T
I now call u);(m xﬁembers of the committee to pursue their questions

ies
Mr. LamserT: It is not entirely possible unless you have other cop

i eport when
available, because 1 had not received my copy of the printed rep
I left my office this morning.

Mr. WincH: Nor had I.

: inister?
Mr. DEACHMAN: Are you ready for guestions to the minister:
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

;s S=
Mr. DEACHMAN: There has been some coqs1derable cogmﬁ%;t::g, ilnd
cussion in regard to the Bomarc which is defensive o Tol'ofn ‘es of the west
the industrial east, but not too much in regard to the de elnixappen to be a
coast. I am particularly concerned with that coast }?ecause‘ h to direct to the
member from Vancouver. I have a few questions Sriich & Wl? ce of the west
minister which are concerned with the problem of the de erd1 bomber attack
coast. Is the city of Vancouver within target range of manne
by Russia?

; ; : er to
The HON. Paur, T. HELLYER (Minister of N ational Defence): The answer
that question is yes.

Mr. DeAcmman: Is it also within target range of stand—}c;ﬂ; bombers,

capable of firing self-propelled drones or unmanned flying bombs? o
Mr. HELLYER: Well, Mr. Chairman, we do not know the ranges

stand-off bombps which might be carried by Russian bombers.

- - Iner-
Mr. DEACEMAN: And from rocket launching submarines, gt Rt
able on the west coast to them as well?

. : m
. Mr. HELLYER: If a potential enemy were to use .mlssﬂesldl%un“’:l‘igei;%le
ships or from submarines on the west coast, those cities wou 3
to that type of attack.

Mr. DEACHMAN: If Russian bombers, or drones from stand-off Cborzgg:
Were identified while approaching Canada’s west coast today, vghat an
units would move to intercept them and to defend Vancouver:
Mr. HELLYER:

i t
I thi i icular area would be better dealt with a
the time when the ;111;11;‘;:‘1;2 %ﬁ:ﬁ? is before the committee, where (31'01;
will be told what units are available, and where they are situated, ancitY
statement giving you g3 better backgr’ound in respect of just whgt Capahich
we have in that regard. I think there may be quite a few‘ questlon% Wthat
hon. gentlemen would put along those lines, which are fairly speciiic, cis
could better be dealt with after the service briefings. Many of your qu§§ 1’c 1
Wil be Stuew o during the course of the service briefings. Immedia fez
concluding the service briefings those questions that have not been answe
can be dealt with.

Mr. DEACHMAN: Would it be possible to answer questions s;:ieeg;i’};rwtlg;
regard fo weaponry and agreements in regard to weaponry an
structure of such agreements or proposed agreements?

29
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Mr. HELLYER: I think they could answer most of your questions. I would
be in attendance at each meeting, and if a question arose which offered
any difficulty, it might be dealt with at a subsequent meeting.

Mr. DEAcHMAN: Very well, I shall reserve the balance of my questions.

Mr. HELLYER: Thank you. Before we proceed, there were two or three
questions asked at the last meeting. If it would be convenient to the hon.
members we might deal with them at this time. One of the questions was
asked by Mr. Winch, I believe, and Mr. Churchill in respect of the effectiveness
of nuclear weapons in air defence in cooking the bombs of incoming attacking
bombers.

The evidence that offensive nuclear weapons can be cooked by an ex-
plosion of defensive nuclear weapons has been supplied to the government
by its top air force military and scientific authorities. Such information upon
which our authorities have based their advice was supplied to them on a
classified basis, under the agreement between the governments of Canada
and the United States regarding cooperation in respect of the uses of atomic
energy for mutual purposes which was entered into in 1959. The information
has been confirmed by our advisors as being consistent with scientific theory.

The committee will appreciate that I am not at liberty to reveal the
classified information upon which our statements concerning the cooking effect
are based. I should like, however, to introduce to you Dr. G. S. Field, who
is the chief scientist of our defence research board. He will answer questions
referring to this subject and conceivably other questions asked at the last
meeting.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, just before Dr. Field answers, might I ask
the minister just what he means by classified information in view of the fact
that I have here—as I had at the last meeting,—a photostat of the submission
of Mr. McNamara before the appropriations committee this year, wherein at
page 439—which I assume cannot therefore be classified—I find this state-
ment:

Mr. Forp: Mr. Secretary, for the first time I have heard a witness
say that our own anti-ICBM program will create a fallout problem.
I have never heard that expressed here before.

Secretary McNAMARA: I cannot speak with accuracy about the past,
but I think I am right in saying that our own program will create a
fallout problem. We are using nuclear warheads, of course, and there
are literally hundreds of them that would be detonated under these
circumstances.

We are using nuclear warheads, and here is an illustration, and I think

there may be continuity under these circumstances. I give you that as an
illustration.

Mr. HELLYER: That information is not classified and we are quite prepared
to deal with that question and with other ones raised in respect to our defence.
May I now call on Dr. Field.

Dr. G. S. FIELD (Chief Scientist, Defence Research Board, Department of
National Defence): Mr. Chairman, with respect to the subject of cooking, I
think we should first of all say that these defensive weapons were not intro-
duced originally to cook bombs, but merely to be more effective in bringing
down bombers or ICBM’s; and when I say more effective I mean it in the
sense that the range of destruction of the nuclear warheads in a defensive
weapon, has a much greater range of destruction than a high explosive: so
that these weapons were introduced orlgmally to have a greater range and
thus to have greater success in bringing down incoming missiles or bombers.

However, it turned out on later examination of the nuclear weapons and
the nuclear defensive warheads that it showed that it did something called

o
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cooking. Although the details of this are not fully known to us in Cwa;i)dt;’l
basically what happens is that when the neutrons from a defeniilvtfc B
strike an incoming warhead, the latter becomes heafced so much aiodes )
pletely distorts the warhead, and if it distorts, then it no longer exp
full-scale nuclear weapon. .

These nuclear weipons are very critical @n their manufactilr&e:‘h‘g ilf;a.
highly complex and if any part of them is disturbed they no long st
As members of this committee no doubt know, there have been ;asﬁave not
bombers have crashed carrying nuclear warheads and the warhel';l S Ny e
gone off; just banging them or crashing them does not MRS ; g f longer
and if they are subjected to something which distorts ?;hem i 3 forming
go off as full scale nuclear warheads. So “cOOking’_’ e A 1enuclear
the incoming bomb so that it is no longer effective as a full scale
weapon.

g . 2
Mr. McMILLAN: Then the “cooking” is not associated with heat?

Mr. FIELD: Yes, it is, through the attack on it by neutrons from the

defensive warhead. The defensive warhead emits a great number of neutrons
Which heat the bomb and render it inoperable.

Mr. WincH: Have you read the evidence of Mr. McNamarg and lesle;;;
Taylor at the subcommittee meeting which you will find recorded on pag
to 447 inclusive?

Mr. FIELD: Yes, we have that evidence in front of us and it i'.»:b mybog\lzgli?:a
that that concerns a question of fall-out rather than “cooking” the bomb,
we are discussing.

~Mr. WINcH: But that is the very point; that concerns the ut‘lhgatl'onhc‘)lf a'x;
anti-attack Weapon and, according to this evidence, as I rgad it, if 1td its lu
does not cook but means there will be a fall-out. Dr. Field, how Pd yo
explain what you now say, that it will cook, whereas, as I read the evidence

her?, it means there will be fall-out, and an e T s B AT oy
anti-missile hits an atomic warhead.

Mr. FIELD: Actually, in this testimony there are two points, and perhaps
I could deal with them one at a time and, in turn, explain each of them.

I think we have to distinguish between two kinds of fall-out. If a nuclear
Wweapon explodes on the ground in such a position that the fire ball of the
bomb touches the ground that bomb sucks up with it into the atmosphere
3 tremendous amount of debris from the ground, including pieces of earth,
stones, rocks and so on. These particles are very heavy and they are con-
taminated by the bomb; they are loaded with nuclear material and become
very dangerous as fall-out. And, as these particles are heavy they fall out
quickly in the form of agh: so. in the immediate neighbourhood of a bomb
which has engulfed the gro{md ,you get these particles falling out 1n the form
of very highly dangerous ash over the countryside. If a bomb 1s detonated
in the upper atmosphere it does not involve the ground itself but is blown
into extremely sma]l] fragments and, as ybu know, these remain in the upper
atmosp}}ere for days, weeks and sor,netimes months, and so we have the case
of particles from nucleqr tests which often come down thousands of miles
away days and weeks later. This fall-out is very small and, as you know,
some of l.t has occurreq over Canada in the last few years as a result of these
tests. This fall-out is very light; the particles are very small and the con-
tamination on any particular part of the ground is, in fact, very small. But, as
I said earlier, if yo

U are near a bomb which has engulfed the ground you often
do get these larger particles which are very highly dangerous.

Mr. McNamara, in his testimony, referred to both of these though, perhaps,
not quite in the way 1 have done.
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In respect of the second kind, fall-out from bombs detonated in the upper
atmosphere, he said if you had 100 of these detonated in the upper atmosphere
there would be fall-out. Now, that fall-out would be spread over a long
period of time and would be of the same kind we have now from the tests
of nuclear weapons only much more intensified. It would result in genetic
hazard which may harm our progeny—that is, our children—but it would not
be a great danger to us because it is so fine and spread out over so much
territory.

Mr. McNamara referred to the other kind; he said if we install a Nike-Zeus
system designed to defend a city we will shoot up our defensive weapons
around the city and keep the atomic warheads away. He said if we do that
the enemy will try to destroy us by fall-out; they will then shoot their ICBMs
so that they will hit the ground some distance from the city. This will have
the effect of sucking up into the atmosphere some of this heavy fall-out which
is dangerous and then this will come down in cities, with the result that it
will be a considerable hazard to people. I think this is what he said on pages
439 to 440; he says:

There is an almost certain serious fall-out problem associated with the
deployment of an anti-ICBM system.
And that is what he was referring to particularly, this danger of large particles
in the form of fall-out on a city.

Mr. WincH: I would like to refer you to page 438 where it is stated:
As a matter of fact, any one of these programs demands a complimentary
civil defence program, because there will be such a huge amount of
fall-out generated by our own anti-ICBM system and the incoming
warheads of the strike that it would be foolhardy to spend funds of
this magnitude without accompanying it with a civil defence program.

This does not concern bombs landing but the anti-ICBM’s which are in
the air.

Mr. FI1eLD: I think he says our own warheads and the incoming weapons.

Mr. WincH: It is based on a strike, as I understand it.

Mr. F1eLp: I am sorry but this is not too clear here on my copy.

Mr. WincH: I have a photostat of it.

Mr. FieLp: Your last remark was: “and the incoming warheads”.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Winch, would you read it again.

Mr. WincH: And, in answer to a question by Mr. Ostertag. Mr. McNamara
says:

i I think that is a good question. I would say the quickest way to provide
for a saving in lives under these circumstances is to advance the civil
defence program at an expenditure which is just a small fraction of
this. As a matter of fact, any one of these programs demands a com-
plementary civil defence program, because there will be such a huge
amount of fall-out generated by our own anti-ICBM system and the
incoming warheads of the strike that it would be foolhardy to spend
funds of this magnitude without accompanying it with a civil defence
program.

This I have read before; it is based, as I understand it from the previous pages,
on an anti-ICBM with a nuclear warhead being able to actually hit an
incoming offensive missile.
Mr. FreLp: I have this now; he says: “and incoming warheads”. Mr.

Ford said:

Mr. Secretary, for the first time I have heard a witness say that our own

anti-ICBM program will create a fall-out problem. I have never heard

that expressed here before.
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Then Secretary McNamara goes on to say:

I cannot speak with accuracy about the past, but I think I am right in
saying that our own program will create a fall-out problem. We are
using nuclear warheads, of course, and there are literally hundreds of
them that would be detonated under these circumstances.

Then, as a result of another question by Mr. Ford, he says:

So, in a sense, it is an academic question. There is an almost certai.n
serious fall-out problem associated with the development of an anti-
ICBM system.

Then, Secretary McNamara goes on to say:

On this point, may I add one further thought: if we had a Nike-Zeus or
X system in being, the Soviets almost certainly would target some of
their missiles outside the range of those systems. They would know
where the defence systems were located and they would target their
missiles outside the range of those systems with ground bursts fo
insure that we had a substantial degree of fall-out even though the
defence system might have been successful in intercepting some or
even a majority of the warheads targeted against the urban areas
themselves.

Mr. Ford: So, it is an academic question.

Secretary McNamara: So, in a sense, it is an academic question.

There is an almost certain serious fall-out problem associated with the
deployment of an anti-ICBM system.

He explained why. He said that it is because of this great fall-out arising
from this weapon hitting the ground some distance away.

This is testimony which occurred after the comments which you indicated
were made when he first of all stated that there was fall-out and then went on
to indicate that most of it would come from this large fall-out from enemy
warheads detonating on the ground in an attempt to circumvent the defence.

Mr. LaMBERT: Dr. Field, referring back to this problem of cooking or the
distortion of the nuclear weapon in the air, there is some scientific disagreement
about this, is there not?

Mr. FieLp: There is no scientific disagreement in respect of the capability
of this method. There have been discussions in respect of the range at which
this can happen. There is no question or disagreement about the possibility or
the certainty of this within certain ranges.

Mr. LamBERT: Within the field of unclassified information, are there not
certain physicists who maintain that this is not possible?

Mr. FieLp: I am not aware of that disagreement.

Mr. LAMBERT: Is there some suggestion that this is not effectively possible?

Mr. F1eLp: I am not aware of that.

Mr. LamBerT: I ask these questions because I understand there has been
Some expression of this disagreement.

- Mr. SmatH: Dr. Field, you referred to the upper-upper atmosphere. What
i1s meant by that term? Would you define that term? :

Mr. F1eLp: I really had in mind somewhere above 40,000 feet. Basically the
point is that the fire ball of the bomb must not engulf the ground. :

Mr. SMITH: What is the greatest height at which the Bomarc 1S feffectwe?

Mr. FIELD: I am sorry, but I would sooner you ask questions of th1§ type of
the air force personnel later, because some of these points are classified and
I am not sure whether that point is or not.

Mr. SMITH: I was trying to find out whether or not the Bomarc would be
effective in the upper atmosphere.
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Mr. F1eLp: It would be effective above 40,000 feet, yes.

Mr. SmiTH: In that regard, the lower an explosion takes place the greater
fall-out there would be from cooking a weapon, is that right?

Mr. FieLp: That is true.

Mr. SmiTH: The comparative amount of fall-out depends in some respects
on whether the weapon was cooked or exploded in the air as well as on the size
of the attacking weapon and the size of the cooking weapon?

Mr. FieLp: That is true.

Mr. SmiTH: The height at which this weapon was detonated would also
have some bearing?

Mr. Fi1eLD: Exactly, yes.

Mr. LAMBERT: In this regard, Dr. Field, in view of the fact we are consider-
ing Bomarcs designed to attack manned bombers, and a manned bomber has a
certain accepted maximum range, even though that range might be within
50,000 feet, this is below the stratosphere and therefore a danger zone?

Mr. F1eLp: One would expect these to come in above 40,000 feet, as I said
earlier in respect of the height of the Bomare.

There is, of course, one point which I have not mentioned. If one brings
down a bomber or weapon in an uninhabited area it is obvious that the danger
is much less than if the weapon itself is detonated on a city. The principal
objective is to attempt to bring the weapons down before they are anywhere
near cities. This is, of course, the prime objective.

Mr. BREwIN: Mr. Chairman, I have a question on a completely different
subject so perhaps if other members of this committee have related questions
they should ask them now.

The CHAIRMAN: Other members have raised their hands in order to get the
floor and if they wish to ask related questions they should proceed before the
subject is changed.

Mr. LaMBeRT: I think as a matter of procedure, Mr. Chairman, you will
find from experience that it is much better to exhaust one range of questions
rather than to adopt a policy of letting the witness go now and catching him
tomorrow.

The CHAIRMAN: You may proceed to ask your questions.

Mr. LAMBERT: I should like to put a further question in so far as the
distortion of an enemy bomber and its load, is concerned, because we are not
talking about missiles here but rather about Bomarcs. Am I correct in my
understanding that there is still a danger of ultimate fall-out possibly effective
to 300 miles even though the distortion took place in an uninhabited area?

Mr. FieLp: I cannot give you the exact details in respect of fall-out in an
uninhabited area with certainty, but fall-out is still a danger.

Mr. LamBerT: I am referring to the potential of an unexploded nuclear
bomb because after all the atomic warhead is used only to cook. If you are not
going to cook with it, then we are sure that the knocking down of that bomber
will result in a nuclear explosion?

Mr. FieLp: When a bomber is shot down and the bomber is carrying an
atomic weapon several things may happen. The warhead of the atomic weapon
may be cooked, as we have said, so that it would be rendered almost completely
harmless. It may not be cooked, being beyond the range of cooking, but the
bomber might suffer sufficient damage making it come down. The bomb may be
fully cooked or partially cooked in which case there might be a very small
nuclear explosion. It might well be that the weapon itself is not in any way
harmed but the aircraft carrying it is damaged forcing it to bring the weapon
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down. In that event the weapon may or may not explode when it hits tl}e
ground. It would explode only if the crew of the aircraft triggered something in
the weapon to make it explode when it hit the ground.

Mr. WINcH: Mr. Chairman, in view of what has been said, I should like to
direct a question to the minister. In view of the fact our Bomarcs are to _be
equipped with nuclear warheads, are our Bomarc installations located in unin-
habited areas?

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, as hon. members will appreciate, these things
are relative. The Bomarc has a considerable range and presumably any explo-
sion would take place perhaps hundreds of miles from the actual location of the
squadrons themselves. I think one must look at the map and check the relative
density of population several hundred miles north of La Macaza or North Bay,
with the 100 mile strip immediately north of the great lakes.

Mr. WincH: May I ask you, sir, whether it is the Bomarc B with which we
are concerned?

Mr. HELLYER: That is correct, yes.

Mr. WincH: It is my understanding that the range of the Bomarc B is 400
miles. If my understanding in that regard is correct, does that include the
distance up as well as the distance away?

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, in round figures this is the horizontal range.

Mr. Groos: My question, Mr. Chairman should perhaps be directed to the
minister.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Granger is next.

Mr. GRANGER: With reference to cooking a bomb, I think you said there
would not be a full-scale nuclear explosion. Does that mean there 1s apt to be
a partial explosion of the bomb?

Mr. F1eLp: If the bomb were completely cooked there would be no nuclear
explosion at all. There might be a “high explosive” explosion; only a few yards,
In radius which would not amount to very much. If the bomb were f.ully cooked
there would be no nuclear explosion at all. The bomb might be partially COOke_d
in the sense that the defending weapon had been partially successful in
neutralizing the bomb. In that event there would be only a small scale nuclear
explosion. In other words, let us say the bomb was originally of the ordelj of
50 kilotons and following the distortion it was of the order of one or two kilo-
tons, that would be a very inefficient nuclear explosion and pot nearly as
dangerous a one. In other words we might expect a full cooking or partial
cooking, or perhaps none at all.

Mr. CHURCHILL: 1 would like to ask Dr. Field a question on the same
subject matter: what would be the effect of a blast from a Falcon conventional
missile making a direct hit on a plane and therefore a direct hit on the nuclear
bomb? Would that cause any distortion in the delicate mechanism of the
bomb? :

Mr. FieLp: This depends on how close to the nuclear bomb it actually 03—
curred, but it would have to be almost right up against it, In other worlg
the Falcon warhead would almost have to hit the nuclear bomb before it cou
do any damage.

Mr. CHURCHILL: I understand the Falcon warhead ho
does make a direct hit?

Mr. FIELD: On the aireraft but not on the b
need to be only a few feet away from the point
e ek : ined the effect of

Mr. CHURCHILL: My second question is this: you explaine e A
neutrons from a nuclear explosion penetrating the nuclear boml?’. as this
actually been tried out in an experiment or is this based on theory?

mes on the target and

omb, and the bomb would
of impact before it would
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Mr. FieLp: We understand from our American sources that this has been
theoretically and experimentally confirmed.

Mr. CHURCHILL: In other words, there has been a nuclear explosion
where an anti-aircraft nuclear-tipped missile hit a nuclear bomb and the
result was that the nuclear bomb failed to explode?

Mr. FieLp: We have not been given details on what was actually done
because of the nature of this information. We have been told that the Americans
have carried out work on this problem and are fully convinced that this is
what happens. We have been informed of this.

Mr. Winca: Will the minister explain why, since we are partners with
the United States and tied up with them by agreements in NATO and NORAD,
this information has not been made available to Canada? I am speaking now
in view of the statement made by Dr. Field.

Mr. HELLYER: I cannot give you a detailed answer, but as you know
the exchange of information is governed by U.S. law and there are certain
classes of information which they just cannot make available. It is also a fact
that once a bilateral agreement has been signed between the two countries
in respect of the stockpiling of weapons, certain additional information will be
made available in respect of the performance and characteristics.

Mr. WincH: And we in Canada are expected to make our decisions with a
partner without having full information?

Mr. HELLYER: I think on this subject the information we have and the
verification which has been done by our own scientists is sufficiently adequate
for reaching a judgment.

Mr. MATHESON: Dr. Field, I would like to ask you one question: Is a direct
hit not pretty theoretical?

Mr. F1eLp: I do not think I used the term “direct” except in respect of the
question involving the Falcon.

Mr. MATHESON: Is the probability of a direct hit with a conventional
weapon very great?

Mr. FieLp: If it is a homing weapon, it has a reasonable chance of a direct
hit.

Mr. MATHESON: Is there a high probability of a direct hit with a homing
device?

Mr. FieLp: Yes, the probability is quite good with a weapon such as the
Falcon.

Mr. MacInnis: In answer to a previous question, the minister indicated
the potential of a Bomarc and its capabilities north of the Bomarc site. What
is the intention should an enemy bomber bypass the Bomare site and instead
of 250 miles north, as he suggested, it would be necessary to bring down a
bomb 250 miles south and close to a fairly populated area?

Mr. HeLLyeER: In that case I think, although it would have been much
more desirable to intercept it north of the site, it would certainly be imperative
that it be intercepted by the Bomarc, and that the weapons of the incoming
bomber were cooked. I think that its value and effectiveness would probably
be even more important under those circumstances.

Mr. CuurcHILL: Is there anything in the evidence of the congressional
committee before which Mr. McNamara appeared concerning the alleged
cooking of a nuclear bomb?

Mr. Ferp: I am not aware of any.
Mr. HeELLYER: I could not say.
Mr. CHURcHILL: Where did this originate?
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Mr. HELLYER: This information would originate in respect of information
which is exchanged between friendly governments.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr. Chairman, it strikes me as rather strange that a topic
as important as this should be of such major concern in Canada and apparently
not mentioned in the discussion and in the investigations in the United States.

Mr. HELLYER: I think, Mr. Chairman, that this would be because they
would have had so much more information for a longer period of time so
that this would be accepted by them. It would not be a matter of current
controversy.

Mr. WincH: Why should it not be available to Canada?

Mr. HELLYER: It just has not been discussed here in the past to any great
extent.

Mr. BAaLpwiN: Mr. Chairman, the minister indicated we must first enter
into a bilateral agreement, which by implication suggests a bilateral agree-
ment by which we take atomic missile weapons, before we have information
available to us. In section 144(b) of the U.S. atomic energy act it says that
the president may authorize the department of defense with the assistance
of the commission to cooperate with another nation in the regional defence
organization to which the United States is a party and to communicate to that
organization restricted data necessary for the development of defence pla'ns,
training of personnel and evaluation of the capabilities of potential caeiEss
Nothing is said in this section about the necessity of a bilateral agreement being
a condition precedent. Is it not possible, under the terms of that section, _for
'the United States to make this type of information available to Canada wh1(;h
Is a partner in a regional defence organization both on this continent and in
Europe?

Mr. Frerp: I think it should be made clear that Canada is given all the
information on weapons effects which it needs in order to plan the defence
System. We are not told the mechanism of some of these effects; we are not
told exactly what happens inside one of those bombs under a certain set of
circumstances. We are told what the bomb will do when used as a weapon.
Full information on weapons effects is made available to us and has been
made available to us, which is all we need in planning our defence system.
We do not really need to know what the inside looks like, any more t.han
we need to know the inside of a watch in order to tell time. We are given
the weapons effects information, and that is all we need.

Mr. BALpwIN: I am relating my question to what you said before and to
the minister’s amplification that certain details will not be made known to us
until we do sign a bilateral agreement. Now, I do not want to refer back to
those points—the minister knows what they are. Has any effort been made
at this time, prior to a bilateral agreement being entered into, to obtain that
information? Has that request been presented? =

Mr. HELLYER: The information is made available on a “need-to-know
basis, as Mr. Field said. We were given the information that we should have
and must have in order to plan a defensive system. In the event that we were
to have weapons stockpiled for our use, such additional information would be
made available as was necessary, that is what we would need to know to
exercise the systems available to us. ;

Mr. BALDWIN: In an effort to evaluate and make up our minds whether or
not we are going to have these nuclear weapons, should we not have that
information prior to our decision? : :

Mr. HELLYER: We have all the information which is required upon which
to make a decision.
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Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask one more question. I want
to be clear in my mind on this point and at the moment I am not clear on it.
Mr. Field said a little while ago, when explaining cooking, that the Bomarc
could hit directly or within the immediate neighbourhood of 40,000 feet, and
that it would then cook the bomb. He then came out with the statement which
I would like to have clarified that there would be a greater fall-out if the
offensive weapon with the nuclear warhead were closer to the ground. The
point I wish to get clear is this: if he is correct that, when a nuclear warhead
on the defensive weapon strikes a nuclear warhead on an offensive weapon,
it cooks it at 40,000 feet, why not also at 10 or 20 thousand? There should
not be any fall-out at all if the cooking is correct.

Mr. F1eLp: This is true; a defensive weapon will cook at these lower
altitudes, but the fall-out I thought we were talking about was not from the
bomb cooked, but from our own weapon.

Mr. WincH: Is that not cooked also?

Mr. FieLp: No. Your own weapon goes off and in going off cooks the
opposing weapon, but in going off your own weapon exploding produces a
certain amount of fall-out. I pointed out earlier that that fall-out likely
would be very small because the particles are tiny and most of them will go
into the upper atmosphere.

Mr. WincH: To me this is rather important. If one atomic warhead cooks
the other, why is it itself not cooked?

Mr. FieLp: This is a good question. Your own weapon explodes; if it
cooks the enemy weapon then that weapon does not explode at all, but simply
collapses or distorts and is not usable; it is a piece of “dead” uranium or
whatever happens to be in it. It does not cause anything in the nature of an
explosion on the part of the enemy weapon. You just have nuclear material
which is in the compact form and does not cause fall-out. The only time
you get fall-out is when the weapon has exploded. Your own weapon explodes
and generates fall-out, but the enemy weapon which is cooked does not
explode and is not capable of generating fall-out.

Mr. WincH: The way to kill ourselves is to stop the enemy.

Mr. FieLp: I do not think I suggested that.

Mr. WincH: If we are going to have fall-out, it would be from our own
defensive weapons.

Mr. FieLd: The only time you get a large amount of fall-out is when
the weapon is allowed to touch the earth. When you explode them up in the
air, the amount of fall-out that is generated is quite small.

Mr. McMiLLAN: My question has largely been answered. Mr. McNamara
said there would be a lot of fall-out from an anti-ICBM, and I think the answer
was that we have no such system now.

Mr. Fierp: That is right.

Mr. HELLYER: We have no anti-ICBM system. I think the point should
be clearly made. Dr. Field indicated that in an anti-ICBM system, if the
incoming warhead was intercepted by a defensive warhead it would be cooked;
but as Mr. McNamara said, the enemy might divert its fire upwind away
from the industrial target, outside the defensive area, and have a ground
burst which would create fall-out to drift into the urban area with devastating
effects, and that this could cause a very serious problem which would involve
a major civil defence effort.

Mr. McMiLLaN: Within the range of cooking have any experiments been
done?

Mr. HELLYER: We have been given information on the range of cooking.
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Mr. McMiLLAN: That is classified?
Mr. HELLYER: Yes.

Mr. SmitH: I suppose it is reasonable to assume that at the same time
Scientists are trying to develop cooking methods for nuclear weapons coming
from a foreign country other scientists are trying to develop systems that
will prevent them cooking.

Mr. FIELD: Yes. In fact, one of the possible defences is to armor your
nuclear warheads. If you can put a big sheet of steel around it, you would have
a protective device. There certainly are experiments going on to make ICBM’s
more effective, as you said.

Mr. SmitH: We seem to be talking about ICBM’s and yet the weapon
Systems under immediate concentration are those of the Bomarc and
Voodoos.

Mr. FIELD: Yes.

Mr. SmrtH: Has there been any specific communication from the United
States authorities to the Canadian government as to the effectiveness of the
cooking powers of the nuclear warheads with which the Bomarcs and
Voodoos will be armed.

Mr. F1ELD: We have that information.

Mr. SmrtH: There has been a specific assurance in that direction?

Mr. F1ELD: Yes indeed.

Mr. HAHN: With regard to the fall-out situation and again dealing with
Mmanned bombers, and the Bomares, surely the maximum fall-out we could
get would be if the weapon that is being sent to us explodes on the ground.

Mr. F1eLp: Yes.

Mr. HAHN: And there is no way to stop that happening by using a high
explosive means to shoot the weapon down.

Mr. F1eLp: Yes, but the high explosive war-heads are not nearly so effective.

Mr. HAHN: So that by using nuclear Bomares we run the risk of having
two nuclear explosions. The Bomare might bring the weapon dovxfn and
not cook it, but would also stand a fair chance of cooking and neutralizing the
main weapon.

Mr. F1eLp: Yes.

Mr. Haun: If this happened at an altitude above the ground where the
Bomare itself would suck up radioactive debris from the ground, would the
amount the Bomarc would suck up cause severe radioactive reaction.

Mr. F1eLp: No. In this case the Bomare would not suck up any deb'ns from
the ground because it would be detonated at a high enough level that it wm_.tld
not do this. With the Bomarc we suffer no danger from ground particles being
sucked up.

Mr. HAHN: We do have a possibility of minimizing the fall-out from the
main weapon?

Mr. F1ELD: Yes. ]

Mr. MAcCINNTS: Mr. Chairman, Dr. Field previously referred to the COOku}llg
of the enemy weapon and he made reference to the fact that he thouglt
something could be done to the bomb to ensure explosion. Does this necessil‘ld%’
mean that they could activate the bomb to ensure explosion when. cooked?

Mr. FIELD: No. If the aircraft were brought down, and the bomb ltsellfant
damaged, the crew could fuse it so that when it crashed the boméb could go
off; but this they could do only if the bomb itself were not damaged.
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Mr. Haun: Or if they pre-arranged this activation of the bomb before
they reached the target sight. If within a few thousand miles of the target
area they activated that bomb, which would be a very simple thing for them
to do, what would be the result of the cooking then?

Mr. FieLp: If the bomb were cooked, it would be effectively destroyed, no
matter what they did with it.

Mr. MACINNIS: You have already indicated that the bomb itself, the weapon,
could be very easily protected against cooking.

Mr. FIELD: I am sorry, I did not mean that it could be very easily protected.
I thought the question was whether or not the attacking side might try to
avoid cooking. But the effect of all this, I think, would be only to limit the
range of the cooking; that is, to lessen the space in which it could be
cooked; for example if it were a mile without any protection, then by protec-
tion you might be able to reduce it to one-half or three-quarters, and so on.
But any protection you gave the bomb would only shorten the range at which
it could be cooked, but it would still be cooked, if an atomic bomb were close
enough.

Mr. MacInNIS: Would it not be a simple matter to operate a bomb outside
the range of the Bomare, so that any disturbance would explode that bomb
rather than cook it?

Mr. FreLp: No, that is not possible.

Mr. MATHESON: On page 17 of his evidence the minister said that “our
contribution to the active air defence consists of a substantial participation in
the radar warning lines, five squadrons of CF-101B-Voodoo, interceptors, and
two squadrons of Bomarc surface-to-air missiles”. If we had not taken these
five squadrons of Voodoos and two squadrons of Bomarc’s, would the American
forces have been stronger to that extent, and would they have been nuclear
armed, or does the minister know?

Mr. HELLYER: Well, I think any contribution to the total defensive capacity
reduces the danger from the threat as it presently exists. What someone else
might have done under different circumstances is, of course, hypothetical. But
any contribution we can make to active air defence would make it that much
stronger.

Mr. MATHESON: If we did not have this equipment would the Americans
have this same equipment, or would we take it out of service from them?

Mr. HELLYER: Yes, in both cases it would be equipment which would
have been available to the United States of America. And if the second part
of your question was: would they then have armed them with nuclear type
of missiles, warheads, I think the answer categorically is that they would have,
because they have other equipment of the same class armed with nuclear
warheads.

Mr. LamBEeRT: Is it true that the American air components or air defence
are all nuclear armed, or only a portion thereof?

Mr. HELLYER: I do not know.

Mr. LamserT: Is it not general information that only a portion thereof,
and maybe as low as 50 per cent of it?

Mr. HELLYER: I am reluctant to answer, because it involves the United
States of America. I think they would have nuclear capabilities and I think
it has already been stated publicly.

Mr. MacLean: I have a couple of questions. I gathered from Dr. Field’s
reply to Mr. MacInnis that we can be assured that it is not possible to design
a fuse for an atomic weapon which would be more sensitive to the cooking
effect, other than the weapon itself; in other words, that it is considered not



DEFENCE 41

Possible to design a fuse which would result in disintegration if it were cooked,
and by the same effect?

Mr. FieLp: This I believe to be the case but assuming that it were not,
Would there be any advantage in doing it? If you were, let us say, up 60 to
80 thousand feet or so, and if you had a fuse which would explode the bomb
before cooking started, this would do nothing much except to destroy its own
aircraft which is what we want to do anyway, and the explosion would be
Up in the air where it would do the least harm to anybody else.

Mr. MacLeaN: I have a couple of other questions: is there any evidence
that a potential enemy might have stand-off bombers which could fire atomic
arms or missiles and which would do their final approach, let us say, the last
thousand miles or so, at a low altitude, rather than to have the intervention of
the Bomarc, which might cause a high fallout effect?

Mr. FieLp: I think since we are talking about specific weapons, it would
be better if it were discussed with the air force, because your question has
more to do with the behaviour of weapons than with the nuclear side.

Mr. MacLeaN: I have a question which may fall in part in the same cate-
gory. What about the possibility of distinguishing atomic weapons? Is it
Possible to distinguish on the approach of a weapon, between one carrying
a8 dummy and one which actually carries an atomic warhead? I think it would
be relatively simple to launch a number of dummies which would have
the effect of setting off your Bomarc missiles, while reserving the real attack
until later?

Mr. FieLp: It is true that one might conceive of dummies; and think your
Suggestion is that an enemy in this case might try to have dummies come over
Which would look like bombers. But those dummies would have size, speed
Capability, and so on, similar to a bomber and so it is not an easy thing to
have such dummies coming in in place of bombers. I think the possibility exists,
but it is not really a simple solution, because it means that it must be something
ctomplex and something like a bomber, if you like.

Mr. MacLeanN: Would it not be possible to have something easy to carry
which a bomber might launch far off at some distance and which would
fool the radar defences?

Mr. Frerp: This comes under the heading of electronic counter-measures;
and I think that electronic counter-measures have not only been recognized
but that much work has been done to counter such attacks. This is part of the
defence system, so that the defending people are trained to be aware of the
fact that they are being attacked by the real thing and not by dummie.S, or at
least by the real thing accompanied by dummies in the sense in which you
use the term; and this is part of the over-all defence problem. Defencg recog-
hizes it and there has been a great deal of work done to try to avoid being
Caught under the circumstances you mention. So it is in any case a well
recognized threat.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Dr. Field mentioned earlier the possibility of an enemy
shielding a bomb against the effects of missiles, Bomarc missiles. Is this shield-
ing against a blast effect or against the effect of neutrons? :

Mr. F1eLp: We could conceive of trying a defence against both things, but
it is not simple, particularly with neutrons, and it is likely to make the bomb
S0 heavy that you would not be able to carry it. It is not easy to shield a bomb.
You can do something toward shielding it, but it is not easy to make the
shielding effective. So while you might reduce the effectiveness of the defence
Somewhat, you are most unlikely to be able to offset the defence very much
by such tactics.

29122-9—2
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Mr. CHURCHILL: What happens in an atomic explosion? How is the chain
reaction developed? Can you explain that to us in layman’s language?

Mr. FieLp: Well, actually the mechanism of the bomb we cannot discuss,
because we do not have the exact details, although we do have a pretty good
idea. But in respect of a chain reaction in general-—and this applies of course
to power plants as well as to bombs—what happens is that there are two
main types, the so-called fusion and the so-called fission. It was discovered
that certain substances could be made to break into two pieces. Now, in break-
ing into two pieces they gave out energy and heat, and, in addition, they
gave out neutrons; and it was found that you could trigger a fission and make
one of those substances break into two parts by hitting it with neutrons. So,
the general reaction consists of some neutrons which start off by one piece
of this fission material breaking into two parts. As it breaks it liberates heat,
and as it breaks, it gives off more neutrons; these neutrons themselves hit
other pieces of the same material and make it break up and give off neutrons
and heat. Therefore, the more you have breaking up the more neutrons you have
and the more heat you have, hence the expression ‘“chain reaction” because
one fission or separation starts a whole series of fissions and separations, and
as it does you get neutrons and heat, with the total result of a tremendous
amount of heat and neutrons. This is what happens in a bomb explosion—
and that is in the first kind, the fission explosion.

The fusion explosion consists of making two substances join together or
fuse and, as they do, they liberate a tremendous amount of heat and start
other parts of the material joining together. So, the so-called hydrogen bomb
is a fusion bomb, where certain substances containing hydrogen are brought
together and as they join together they give out this tremendous amount of
heat as well as neutrons. So, we have the two kinds.

Mr. CHURCHILL: What bothers me in connection with the alleged “cooking”
of the bomb is this: as you said earlier, when the material explodes the anti-
aircraft missile explodes and neutrons are released which penetrate the bomb
and cook it; why on penetration do they not cause a chain reaction?

Mr. FIELD: Because the penetration of neutrons is so intense before the
chain reaction can occur that the whole thing is distorted and rendered
inoperable—in other words, deformed. The deluge of neutrons from an atomic
bomb is so great there is not time for a chain reaction to occur; it is destroyed
before then. The chain reaction has a slow build-up, starting with few and
then more and more and this gives time for the whole thing to be in a
fissionable and explosive state. But if this deluge of neutrons is of sufficient
intensity and rapidity the whole thing is destroyed before the chain reaction
occurs.

Mr. Lroyp: My question is directed to what we hope to arrive at during
this stage of the proceedings. From what Mr. Field has said I gather that the
role of the Bomarc as a defensive weapon is relevant to all the other defensive
weapons systems and it is my belief that you cannot evaluate its true relation-
ship without knowing of the other weaponry systems you propose.

Mr. HELLYER: This is part of the total active air defence of the North
American continent.

Mr. Lroyp: My next question is related to the one asked by Mr. MacLean
in connection with sending over prototypes to explode and, therefore, exhaust
your supply of weapons with a wave of weapons later; I gather the whole
defensive system must be oriented to the destruction of carrying vehicles?

Mr. HELLYER: It is preferable to destroy the vehicle before it has a chance
to launch any sub-vehicles.

ﬂm
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Mr. Lroyp: So you will have to examine the total air defence picture
before you can evaluate the use of the Bomare.

Mr. HELLYER: I think that is a fair statement.

Mr. LAMBERT: Referring back to the minister’s statement as to the nature
of the American air arm for continental defence, is it his information tha_t a
Part of the American air arm is composed of conventional weapon carrying
aircraft?

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, I do not think I should say anything more
about that at the moment.

Mr. LAMBERT: But in the event that the answer would in the affirmative
Would it not be that the original conclusion that the conventional weapon
Carrying fighter aircraft is satisfactory would apply?

Mr. HELLYER: No, I do not think so, Mr. Chairman, because the question
is relative effectiveness, that is which type of defensive weapon can do the
best job, and I think that is what we really are concerned with.

Mr. LAMBERT: Then let us use a concrete example, a squadron of Voodoos
located in Michigan armed with conventional weapons; would there be any
difference between that squadron and a squadron which is relatively north at
North Bay or Uplands?

Mr. HELLYER: If they were the same type of squadron, the same size and
Carrying the same armament the only difference would be in the effectiveness of

€ crews or the geographical location.

Mr. LamBERT: But I am referring to weapons as between the conventional
and atomic or nuclear tipped type.

Mr. HELLYER: If the weaponry was the same, then the effectiveness would
be only subject to these other considerations.

Mr. LamBerT: All things being equal, the effectiveness would be the same?

Mr. HELLYER: Right.

Mr. TEMPLE: My question arises out of the same subject. Do I take it then
that the farther north our defensive squadrons, say of Voodoos, are then the
better it is?

Mr. HELLYER: I think as a general statement it is fair to say the farther
away from the prime target areas that interception is made the better will be
he resuit,

M. Lessarp (Lac-Saint-J ean): Monsieur le président, les permis de survol
du Canada accordés aux appareils américains sont-ils émis sur une base men-
Suelle ou annuelle? Le Canada a-t-il un contréle constant de tous les appareils
américains qui survolent le Canada?

(Note: English translation of the above question appears at the back of
this issue.) :

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, there are a number of controls and I think
the answer that the honourable gentleman would be interested in is that we
actually control the matter right down to the number of flights. Ak

Mr. McMILLAN: Once in a while the subject is brought up of us hw{dlsg =2
Possible danger from the handling of Bomarc missiles and nuclear warheads on

0odoo planes; would the doctor comment on that? ; 1

Mr. FIELD: 1 do not know of any particular hazard. There is a hazard in
the handling of any weapons, of course, but if the proper precautions are
there would be no special hazard about this.

: ?
Mr. McMILLAN: I understand the United States has not had any accidents?

Mr. FieLp: No.
29122-9-21
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Mr. BREWIN: I was wondering about the scope of our discussions. Are we
discussing now, Mr. Chairman, the general usefulness of the Bomarc, in which
case I have some questions, or are we discussing the effect of ‘“‘cooking”? If
we are discussing the general use of the Bomarc I have some questions which I
would like to pose.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you proceed with your question?

Mr. BREWIN: I am referring to an article which the minister wrote on
January 25 of this year in the VARsiTy WEEKEND REVIEW; in that article he
says:

In respect to the value of air defence of North American continent, it is
generally admitted that the Bomares usefulness as a protection for the
deterrent is diminishing rapidly.

The article then continues as follows.

It can then be argued that the marginal usefulness of these installations
has been extended by a year or two.

I should like to ask the minister at this time whether this statement
still stands or whether he would like to comment further at this time.

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Brewin, I do not think that it would be helpful for me to
stand necessarily just on statements that I made at that time.

Mr. BRewiN: I should like to receive a direct answer to the question then,
Mr. Chairman. Is it true that the Bomarc’s usefulness as a protection for the
deterrent is diminishing rapidly?

Mr. HELLYER: I do not think I would place the same emphasis on that
statement, Mr. Chairman, if I were now writing the article. All we can speak
about is this moment in time and perhaps the preceding few months. I
made the point in my opening statement that the bomber threat was not
diminishing as a proportion of the total anywhere near as rapidly as I had
thought previously, or as indicated by the information upon which the article
was based. Secondly, I would say its usefulness has not declined as rapidly as I
had thought.

Mr. BREWIN: I should like to point out to the minister that in this article
he dealt with the fact that the Russians were producing missiles at a slower
rate, and then went on to say that the marginal usefulness of these installa-
tions has been extended by a year or two. Does the minister still think that
is an appropriate and correct statement?

Mr. HeLLyER: Mr. Chairman there are two or three considerations in-
volved in this situation. First of all, my appraisal of the total situation is, of
course, based on new and much more complete and up-to-date information than
was available to me at the time I wrote that article. I think that fact should
be kept in mind as an important consideration and that hon. members should
understand that that is the situation.

In respect of the interpretation of that phrase—and I hope that we will not
set a pattern of going back to a discussion of things that have been discussed
and said by me previously—Mr. McNamara said in testimony that the ex-
penditure in respect of the total Bomarc system was something of the order
of $3 billions and that if he had to go back and do it all over again he
did not believe that the system would justify the expenditure of that amount
of capital. However, he suggested that the situation was that the capital had
been spent and the alternative or options avallgble to him actually involved
weighing the operating cost of the system against its effectiveness in active
air defence. I think that is my position also. The operating cost of the Bomarec

g o
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Squadrons is of the order of a magnitude which is justified on the basis of
the effectiveness of the weapons system as part of the active air defence
of North America.

Mr. MaRTINEAU: T should like to ask a supplementary question related to
Page 16 in reference to the effectiveness of the Bomare. The minister made the
following statement:

The opinions I expressed during the last few years were based on
knowledge of the threat made available to us at that time—1959. The
estimates have subsequently turned out to be incorrect.

. Were the opinions of the minister based upon his knowledge of the probable

Iminishing threat of the Bomare and the manned bomber, or were they based
Ubon his knowledge of the ineffectiveness of the weapon itself, and I refer to
the Bomarc B?

Mr. HELLYER: I think they were largely based on the reduction of the
Manned bomber as a proportion of the total threat with perhaps a residual
Question mark as to the effectiveness of the weapons system.

Mr. Groos: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a related question.

The CHAIRMAN: Several members have indicated that they would like
t? ask questions which may or may not be related to the subject under discus-
Slon. I should like members to make note of unrelated questions and ask those
Questions at the time at which the subject is being discussed. Every member
Will pe recognized according to the list I have before me. I am very sorry
to have to impose this order of procedure but otherwise I do not 'thmk we Wlll
Proceed in an orderly fashion, and I am sure the reporters will have diffi-
Culty in keeping track of your names.

Mr. MARTINEAU: Mr. Chairman, on that point of order, it does seem to me
that if our deliberations are to proceed we must exhaust certain questions.
erwise members who propose to ask questions relating to the subject matte:r
Under discussion may have to defer their questions while another member is
asking questions of a completely foreign nature. I am afraid if we follow such

@ procedure we will get absolutely nowhere.

The CHAIRMAN: That is not the procedure I suggested at all. Sev_eral mem-
bers have asked a number of questions in respect of a specific subject. Many
Other members wish to ask similar questions regarding the same field of con-
Sideration, I think it is only fair to ask members to make note c_>f qugstxon;
Telating to other subject matters until we have reached our _conmderatmg o

Ose matters. In this way I am sure we can come to some satisfactory under-
Standing,

Mr. Groos: Mr. Chairman, I did have the feeling that we were straylng
aWay from our subject of discussion. I should like to ask several questions
ased on the minister’s statement but I can appreciate that we are still dis-
CUssing the Bomare so I will yield to another member. :

Mr. BALDWIN: Mr., Chairman, my question has relation to my earlier
Yemarks and deals with a matter referred to by Mr. Brewin. ;

I have been informed that until we sign a bilateral agreement we Wlll_be
limited in the degree and the quantity of information received. I should like
0 ask what additiona] information we will receive after the signing of a
bilatera] agreement, ;

Mr. HELLYER: Only that additional information will be supplied, Mr. Chair-
Man, that is required in order to use a particular weapon or weapons system
effectively.
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Mr. BALDWIN: So the fact is that despite the fact that we have signed a 1957
NATO communique and are partners with the United States in NORAD, until
we sign a bilateral agreement on nuclear weapons we cannot receive that addi-
tional information?

Mr. HELLYER: I am sorry, I did not hear your question.

Mr. BALDWIN: Despite the fact that we signed a 1957 NATO communique
and are a partner with the United States in NORAD, we are unable to get this
additional information to which you have referred until we sign a bilateral
agreement which requires us to take nuclear missiles?

Mr. HELLYER: I would put it the other way round. We get all the informa-
tion we require at any stage and that will continue to be so.

Mr. BALDWIN: Mr. Chairman, I should like to take this question one step
further. Does this information come almost exclusively from United States
intelligence as analyzed and assessed by us?

Mr. HELLYER: I thought your previous question was related to weaponry
and the technical aspects of weaponry.

Mr. BALpwiIN: I should like to know now if the detailed information we will
receive will be generally based on United States intelligence?

Mr. HELLYER: In respect of weaponry a question of intelligence is not in-
volved. What is involved is United States development and research data only.

Mr. BaLpwin: Let us deal with the question of weaponry for the moment.
The information we do receive is from United States sources?

Mr. HELLYER: I think the hon. gentleman is mixing two considerations. He
is mixing information in respect of weapons or a weapons system and intel-
ligence, which is really the evaluation of the enemy’s capability.

Mr. BaALpwiN: I wished to tie in the question with that which the minister
said regarding his own evaluation of the diminishing or increasing bomber
threat, as the case may be. I should like to know whether the information he
receives and his department officials receive as to this diminishing threat of
manned bombers comes from United States intelligence.

Mr. HELLYER: The information that we have, Mr. Chairman, is pooled
intelligence.

Mr. BALDWIN: Would you agree that a large portion of it does come from
the United States?

Mr. HELLYER: A significant portion of this information comes from the
United States, yes.

Mr. BaLpwiN: I understand there is considerable variation in the United
States assessment of the situation from time to time. I have particular reference
to the statement in 1960 during the presidential election that there was a mis-
sile lag and the fact that within a year an admission was made by secretary
McNamara that that assessment was incorrect and that there was not a missile
lag but that the United States had a preponderant majority.

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, there has been some variation in the
estimates in the past, but I have looked into the situation very carefully and
am satisfied that the information which is presently available to us is quite
adequate.

Mr. DEacHMAN: I want to come back to a line of questioning which was
opened up earlier by Messrs. Matheson and Lambert in respect of the Voodoo
and the Bomarc. Do I understand that the Voodoos which we have in service
in Canada were taken out of service in the United States in order to be brought
here?

Mr. HeLLYER: That is correct.
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Mr. DEacEMaN: And do I understand that the Voodoos in the United
States—or some of them—are equipped with Genie nuclear-tipped rockets
but that that is not available in Canada?

Mr. HELLYER: It is available in the United States but not in Canada.

Mr. DEACHMAN: Are any Voodoos in the United States equipped with
brackets or attachments to carry either the Genie or the Falcon rocket inter-
Changeably if they are so required?

Mr. HELLYER: All of the Voodoo aircraft are equipped that way.

Mr. DEacHMAN: Concerning Mr. Lambert’s question in respect of the
Voodoos in Michigan, would they be equipped with brackets to house both the
Falcon and the Genie rocket if they were required for that purpose?

Mr. HELLYER: That is correct. ;

Mr. DEacHEMAN: The next question, in the same line of questioning, is
this: was the Bomarec largely paid for by the United States?

Mr. HELLYER: That is correct.

Mr. DEaCHMAN: These Bomares would be in service in the United States
today if they had not been placed in service in Canada?

Mr. HELLYER: I am sure.

Mr. DEaACHMAN: Our policy has been to reduce the defensive fire power
of the North American continent by accepting the Voodoo and the Bomare.
Is that correct?

Mr. HELLYER: That is a fair conclusion.

Mr. MATHESON: Mr. Chairman, the minister, on pages 12 to 14 of his
Statement, refers to NATO. He says that to redress the balance of power a
family of tactical nuclear weapons have been employed. He then refers
Specifically to an undertaking given by us in December of 1957. This is a
Specific undertaking by Canada in 1959. My question is whether, vyhen NATO
decided to employ this family of tactical weapons, Canada was privy to thgse

Iscussions and a party to the decisions taken. Having once agreed to specific
Military contributions within the NATO alliance, how soon does the minister
feel it might be practical for Canada, without doing a disservipe to her allies,
to effect a change in the nature and the extent of her contribution.

; Mr. BREwIN: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman, this is an ext{e_mely
nteresting question and I would have liked myself to put it to the minister.
Owever, it is right off the point we are now discussing which, I thought, was
the usefulness or otherwise of the Bomarc missiles in defence ag;unst air
Ombers attacking this continent. I suggest, with respect to my friend Mr.
atheson, that we defer his question until we have exhausted the other one.

Mr. MaTHESON: If I may say this, the only basis on whx,ch we havte
Questioned the minister today is as a result of the chairman’s §ta;<;mef1:);
dbpearing on page 24, where he says the minister will be availa emed
duestioning at our next meeting. I understood at our last meeting it waslzssuo -
We were having the service chiefs here, and it seems to me we cou bgcause
for months and months on every little part of this defence_staternen‘f?d ?coda
1t covers virtually everything. I did not realize we were being confin tioning .

do not know how often we may hope to have the minister here for ques E

Mr. WincH: He is going to be here for a long time. e

The CHAIRMAN: We are not confined to any specific ﬁeldlof queStlomli’ﬁgé
but T would tend to agree with Mr. Brewin. As we started to discuss zli‘ spec o
aspect, it would be more valuable for the committee to follow this t::;e’l a?er
you, Mr. Matheson, could keep your question in mind for the minis R

e minister will be available at other meetings of the committee as he
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tioned himself at the beginning of his statement this morning. He will be
attending most of the meetings of this committee. I take it from that that he
is ready to appear before us to answer the questions which members will put
to him for many more meetings to come if need be. Mr. Matheson, is this
agreeable to you?

Mr. MATHESON: If our questioning at the moment is confined to the NORAD
agreement, I would like to ask the minister what in fact are the provisions
respecting over-flight privileges? I would be curious to know whether or not
our Voodoo interceptors are under joint command with American aircraft
interceptors? I would like to know if, for example, Canadian aircraft have been
denied over-flight privileges in the United States and American aircraft have
been denied over-flight privileges in Canada? How is this matter resolved?
I am thinking of the sovereignty of each of the nations with respect to air
space.

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, the total answer to this question is long and
intricate. However, in general, I may say that there are reciprocal arrangements
in respect of over-flight privileges. These are worked out between the two
governments, and they give the aircraft of each country the privilege of flying
into the territory of the other country on a reciprocal basis. Now, this is all
part of the whole, part of the total of the North American air defence
command, and our interceptors, as you know, are part of our contribution to
the North American air defence command. The arrangements between the two
governments cover not only our contribution but also that of the United
States air force and of other American military components which are assigned
to NORAD under certain circumstances.

I think that on this particular question the hon. members should consider
the desirability of going to NORAD and of getting a briefing there as to just
what elements are assigned by Canada and by the various forces of the United
States, the command and control arrangements and the interworking of the
elements of the two countries in this combined command.

Mr. MATHESON: Is this tantamount to saying that the boundary between
- Canada and the United States does not really exist for defence purposes?

Mr. HELLYER: I think, Mr. Chairman, it is difficult to separate the two
parts of the North American continent when thinking about air defence
because obviously any attack that might take place against North America
would involve the air space of both countries, therefore it has to be looked
at in its entirety. For this reason it is not possible to just draw an arbitrary line
and say that one set of rules shall apply to one area and one to another; at
least, that would not be an effective defensive arrangement.

Mr. Lroyp: I have a question of procedure, Mr. Chairman. There was some
mention about the frigate program being reviewed. Do I take it from the
explanations given today that when the navy chiefs of staffs are here this
matter will be then examined?

Mr. HerLyER: I did not intend to give that impression, Mr. Chairman.

The review is being carried on by the department and a decision one way or
the other will be announced when the review is completed.

Mr. Lroyp: Does this mean that this committee will not have an oppor-
tunity to review this program?

Mr. HeLLyER: If the committee wishes to inquire into the program, I feel
it is at liberty to do so, but the review was going ahead in the department
because, as you will all appreciate, the government has a responsibility in
these matters and we cannot wait indefinitely before coming to some decision.

N
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Mr. LLoyp: There is a sense of urgency and that is why I asked this. I
understood the position had been taken and that it was proposed to allocate
certain ships to what I believe was a maritime or equivalent agency. I was
concerned with this.

Mr. HELLYER: No decision has as yet been taken.

Mr. LrLoyp: I took it from the statement that was made. I cannot find the
bage at the moment. Some mention was made to the effect that the program
would be under review. You did not mean by this committee?

Mr. HELLYER: Not necessarily, unless the committee so wishes.

Mr. Lroyp: To come back to the matter of the Bomare, I would like to
emphasize this point which I believe has been answered, but is not clear in my
mind. Is the Bomarc detonated by a ground control system?

Mr. HELLYER: It is a combination; the first part of its flight is controlled
by ground control and the balance by the mechanism itself.

Mr. Lroyp: Is the actual detonation of the nuclear warhead ground con-
trolled, or is it on contact, or what?

Mr. HELLYER: During the first part of its mission it is ground controlled

"and after that there is a lock-on device.

Mr. Lroyp: I do not know what a lock-on device is.
Mr. HELLYER: Perhaps Dr. Field might answer that.

Mr. F1eLp: This refers to a built-in device. Once the Bomare is within a
certain range of the oncoming bomber it heads to it automatically. It is an
automatic device which makes it go to the target. It is fused so that it goes off
at the closest point to the target. If it goes by, it would detonate as it goes by.

Mr. GRANGER: If it comes within a certain range of the target, it would
explode.

Mr. FieLp: Yes; but generally it would go off at the closest distance at
which it comes to the target.

Mr. LLoyp: If somebody miscued in its direction, what would happen to
the Bomarc? Can it be destroyed by ground control?

Mr. FIELD: Generally these weapons can be destroyed from the ground.
But to be specific, I cannot answer it; it is an air force responsibility.

Mr. WincH: I would like to ask a question of the minister. I feel that if
he agrees he will be of great assistance to this committee. In this last hour and
a half you will note that we have been discussing, and have been most interested
in, the question of the Bomarec. The question was even brought up of the range
or the possible range over North America of attacking assault weaponry and
other matters which are of keen importance to us.

Now, sir, last January Mr. Drury, then in the opposition but now a membgr
of the cabinet, and I had an opportunity at Victoria College in British (_'Jolumb.1a
and at U.B.C. a day later of attending a meeting open to the public but in
camera.

An hon. MEMBER: Open to the public and in camera?

Mr. WincH: I say open to the public. If you paid $10 you could ?éten%
these meetings, and anything that was said there could be used but co‘1/_1' : no
be applied to the person who had said it. Now, sir, at that meeting at Victoria
College and the university of British Columbia were present—

An hon. MEMBER: What is the question? o

; tion. There

Mr. WINcH: I have to make a statement in order to put the quest:
were present higher ranking officers of the Canadian and also the United States
services from Colorado Springs, and they produced there I think ten charts
which outlined all the Bomare stations, not only the two in Canada, but also all
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the Bomarc stations just south of our international border. By those charts they
showed the range of possible attack, both by ICBMs and submarines.

In view of the discussion we have had this morning on defence, on nuclear
weapons, and on Bomares, I think it would be most valuable to this committee
if the minister could arrange to have the United States officers or the Canadians,
whichever is required, or both, produce before this committee in camera, if
necessary, the information and the detailed charts that we saw last January.
I think I can say to the members of the committee that it would be most valuable
to us early in our discussions if this could be done.

Mr. HELLYER: I agree with you, Mr. Winch, and I think it can be arranged.
It can be done either in our air force brief or, if members of the committee
wish, they could go to Colorado Springs and it could be done there.

An hon. MEmMBER: With the $10 cost.
Mr. HELLYER: I think we can keep the cost to a minimum.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I have a series of statements here which were
made by General Guy Simonds in February of this year. They deal with the
usefulness of the Bomarc. I am wondering if the minister might care to com-
ment on these statements, perhaps not now, but I might give them in summary
and then he might deal with these points at some time. I do not know whether
or not the minister has the article. The one I have is dated February 20, and
is in a newspaper called the Toronto Daily Star. The article is written by
Mr. Ross Harkness. A series of statements were made on the usefulness of the
Bomare which I think is of great interest to the committee. I would like the
minister’s comment on these statements. I see here that my friend Mr. Smith
has another copy. I think it is the same article. Perhaps I might read one or
two of them. General Guy Simonds who was chief of the Canadian General
Staff said as follows:

Even when Canada was making the decision to accept the Bomarc in
1959 military men in the U.S. were saying it was useless as a defensive
weapon.

Our poor little Bomarc bases couldn’t knock out more than .0001
per cent of an attacking force. They will not defend Canada, they will
not defend America, they do not make the slightest bit of difference in
the present world balance of power.

Then he goes on a bit further:

The Russian military leaders would be crazy—which they are not—
to launch an attack upon this continent with manned bombers, giving us
three to four hours warning to get ready for them or launch a retaliatory
attafzk: Their first attack, if they make one, will be by intercontinental
bal}lstxc missiles, for which there is only 15 minutes warning, and for
which there is as yet absolutely no defence.

Half America could be destroyed before a Bomare could be got ready
for launching.

He recalled that at the time Canada was deciding to accept the

Bomare, General_Maxwell D. Taylor of the U.S. army said the weapon
was “neither feasible nor economical”.

~ He also ‘feferred to Bl‘igadigr General Thomas R. Phillips as having said
it would be “enormously expensive” and that the U.S. congress had ordered a
re-appraisal of its worth.

Then there is the comment, I think by General Simonds:

Within six months of the time Canada agrees to accept nuclear

warheads for the Bomare, I am convinced the United States will declare
it obsolete and recommend another nuclear weapon.

&
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Then he points out later:

Even should the Russians be so foolish as to tip their hand by
sending over manned bombers first, the Bomarc would be of limited
effectiveness.

If only one bomber gets through it can wipe out a city. Even if we
kill two-thirds of those launched against us, a bomber attack could
destroy 100 cities.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I take it that General Simonds, a former Canadian
Chief of General Staff, would be qualified, experienced and expert on these
matters, and I would like at some time to have the minister’s comments in
Tespect of these statements. There certainly is some doubt in respect of the
usefulness of this particular means of defence.

Mr. HELLYER: One of the experts that General Simonds quoted was General
Maxwell D. Taylor. As hon. gentlemen know, he now is chairman of the United
States Chiefs of Staff Committee and is probably the closest military adviser
to the president of the United States. I would suspect that if he now felt that
the usefulness of the Bomarc-B did not justify the cost of maintenance, he
Would not recommend that it be carried on. But I would just like to qualify
that by saying that if after the air force or the NORAD briefing there are any
Questions relating to this article, I would be glad to deal with them.

Mr. MARTINEAU: Mr. Chairman, would it be proper for me to move at this
time to have General Simonds appear as a witness before this committee?

Mr. LLoyp: Mr. Chairman, on this matter of bringing witnesses to discover
facts, I think we should first be informed about the facts of our position, and
then if we want to call witnesses, it would be more appropriate.

Mr. MARTINEAU: That would be the purpose of having witnesses, for us
to be informed on the facts.

Mr. WincH: May I remind the committee that there was unanimous
acceptance of the steering committee’s report at the last meeting, when it was
stated that we should get all we can now, but that in the meantime we would
Welcome any submission from those who have an opinion to give, and that
following upon our study we would consider an invitation to outside witnesses.
That was accepted by the committee when they accepted our report.

The CHAIRMAN: I was about to say that this matter would be brought to
the attention of the steering committee—I mean the question of having other
People appear before the committee—and we would make a report in due time.

Mr. Lroyp: Surely the time of their appearance is related to the progress of
this committee.

The CuARMAN: Certainly.

M. Lessarp (Lac-Saint-Jean): Monsieur le président, je désire poser o
question trés courte au ministre. Le ministre nous a dit que le fait d’acquerir
prochainement des armes nucléaires n’est pas une indication que nous devenons
membre du club nucléaire. Pourrait-il nous dire quelles sont les c.on‘dltlon‘s
requises, selon lui, pour devenir membre du club nucléaire, et COI’lSldeI‘e’—t‘-ll
que nous devions nécessairement fabriquer entiérement une arme nucléaire
pour étre membre du club nucléaire?

(Note: English translation of the above question appears at the back of this
issue.)

Mr. HELLYER: To become a member of the nuclear club, as it is commonly
known, requires the custody and control of nuclear weapons. There are at the
Present time in so far as we know only four countries which have custody and
control of nuclear weapons. They are the United States, the Union of Soviet
Socialist Republics, Great Britain and France. They are the only countries
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which have weapons which they can use on the basis of a decision made by their
own governments. No other countries have, that we know of, and it is the four
countries which are considered to be members of the nuclear club.

The fact that in NATO some countries have weapons stockpiled under the
custody and control of another country for use by them in case of an emergency
does not mean that they may use those weapons independently. Quite the
contrary; they could not, and for that reason they are not considered to be
members of the nuclear club.

Mr. LAMBERT: In other words, they have to be “independents”?

Mr. HELLYER: There seems to be some independence.

Mr. BREWIN: Would the minister not agree that it is a sort of junior mem-
bership in the nuclear club in the case of those who have these weapons under
their control which can be removed at some time, or do they feel they are
full members?

Mr. WincH: An associate membership?

Mr. HeELLYER: No, I do not think it is the same club.

Mr. SmaTH: Referring to Mr. Deachman’s question in which it was sug-
gested that the Americans had diverted the Voodoo bombers or planes from
their own forces to the Canadian forces, is it not true that General McNamara,
when giving evidence to the budget committee of Congress this year, made it
very plain he did not want any additional Voodoos in the American forces
and that one of the reasons he was keeping them was they were built and
paid for?

Mr. HELLYER: I am not familiar with that evidence; I would presume the
reason he would not be considering them at the present time is that they are
no longer in production.

Mr. SmiTH: And that they are not considered to be very useful for the
future?

Mr. HeELLYER: I would not say that; I think the reason would be that if
future production requirements occurred they would be of a later mark.

Mr. WincH: Are they not actually obsolete?

Mr. HELLYER: No, I do not think they would be classified in that category.

Mr. SmitH: Another question along the same lines: originally how many
Bomare sites, stations or installations did the American service plan?

Mr. HELLYER: I do not have that information with me but if it is of
general interest I could find out.

Mr. SmitH: Was it not 24 or 26?

Mr. HeLLYER: I think, Mr. Chairman, it was considerably more than that
at the outset.

Mr. SmrtH: Of those how many were built; was it 6 in the United States
and 2 in Canada?

Mr. HELLYER: I would not care to give a figure today.
Mr. Smrta: Would that be correct?

Mr. HeoLyer: It could be but I would not want to take responsibility for
it without checking.

Mr. SmrrH: Would you mind getting the answer to that question, please.

Mr. HeLLYER: I would be pleased to do so.

Mr. Groos: I notice that in the minister’s statement at page 26 he says:

As soon as a review of existing procurement programs is complete and
decisions taken, which I hope will be within a few weeks, the general
review of future policy will commence.

ol
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In respect of this existing procurement program, I take it this includes
nuclear defensive weaponry and so forth which, I must say, confuses me
because I understand this calls for decisions to be taken on what equipment
we are going to have, first of all, and then we will get on with the business of
deciding policy. Was this intended? It was my understanding that it was one of
the duties of this committee to recommend the future defence policy of this
country to the government. If so, this depends upon the theatre to which we
intend to apply our defence effort. This, in itself, will affect the future equip-
ment we require. Would you care to clarify this?

Mr. HELLYER: I will try to do so. What I had in mind was that by proceed-
ing along a certain course at the present time any real reorganization of policy
would become impossible or made extraordinarily difficult owing to the future
commitments that are involved and the allocation of resources which, in fact,
would already have been decided. I think it is necessary for the government in
its review of policy, and in order that any suggestions which might come from
this committee or other sources could be given practical consideration in so far
as implementation is concerned, that some major items be reviewed at once.
This is in order to provide, if necessary, a greater flexibility and a greater num-
ber of options for choice of task and role in years ahead. In fact, it is a prelimin-
ary look at policy in a sense that we are trying to decide now whether it would
be a good idea to bind our hand and to rubber stamp, in effect, programs which
have been initiated which might seriously limit the more general review we hope
to undertake shortly and the implementation of any views which the committee
or others might have on the subject of future policy after they have had a
chance to think about it.

Mr. McMiLraN: I would like to ask if nuclear warheads are being ex-
tended for the use of our naval forces.

Mr. HeLLyER: I did not hear your question.

Mr. McMiLLaN: I should like to know whether the use of nuclear arms is
to be extended to the naval forces?

Mr. HELLYER: No decision has been taken in this regard as yet, doctor.

Mr. McMILLaN: I have read something in the newspapers regarding a
possible strike on the DEW line as well as the resignation of some personnel.
Has this situation had any serious effect on North American defence?

Mr. HELLYER: So far, Mr. Chairman, this has not had any serious effect.

Mr. HasN: Mr. Chairman, I would like to direct two questions to thg
minister. We have been discussing the Bomare and Voodoo situation. Is it
correct to assume that when we reach the stage in our deliberations of receiv-
ing a brief from the air force we will be given some better understanding of the
respective roles of each of these sectors of that defence system, and will that
be the appropriate time to ask questions in this regard?

Mr. HeLnyer: Ishould hope, Mr. Hahn, that following the air force !orleﬁng
and the possible visit of this committee to NORAD, the members of. this com-~
mittee will have a much better idea of the prospective relationships of our
contribution to the total North American air defence.

Mr. SMmiTH: I assume that understanding will relate to air defence only?

Mr. HAHN: The whole usefulness of the Bomarc and Voodoo depends on
the relative strength of manned bombers versus ICBM’s. We realize that manngd
bombers some day will go down in usefulness while ICBM’s will come up in
usefulness. May we expect to receive, somewhere along the way, some estimate
or guesstimate of the relative change in importance of these two means of
attack?
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Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, I hope at the time the air force brief is pre-
sented members of this committee will be given ball park figures. For obvious
reasons we cannot give you accurate figures, but you will receive some figures
close enough to enable you to assess the relative threats at the present time.

Mr. SmiTH: Mr. Chairman, we are not familiar with much of the termi-
nology apparently used by the armed services. I had difficulty in understanding
the word ‘“cooking” and I now find it difficult to understand what a “ball
park” figure is.

Mr. HELLYER: I understand the difficulty the hon. member faces in under-
standing these terms. I found some difficulty in understanding them for some
time. However, as I understand it, the phrase “ball park figure” means a round
figure. Some of these ball park figures are more rounded than others.

Mr. SmatH: Is it a guess?

Mr. HELLYER: No, this will not be a guess.

Mr. WincH: I understand this involves an approximation.

Mr. HauN: Mr. Chairman, my third question is perhaps a general question
which should be put to the steering committee. We seem to have been dealing
with problems of NORAD. Is it worth while for the steering committee to
consider following right through to the conclusion of this general line of ques-
tioning before we jump to something completely unrelated?

The CHAIRMAN: I intended to inform members of the steering sub-
committee that I should like to discuss the procedure of the last two meetings
of this committee in my office this afternoon at 5 o’clock and at that time decide
whether we should change our proposed plans.

Gentlemen, it is now 12.30.

Mr. MARTINEAU: I move the adjournment.

The CnAaRMAN: This meeting stands adjourned until 10.30 Thursday
morning.
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THE FOLLOWING IS AN ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF THE DELIBERATIONS
CARRIED ON IN FRENCH ON THIS DAY:

Special Committee on Defence
Page 43.

Mr. Lessarp (Lac-Saint-Jean): Mr. Chairman, are permits to U.S.A. air-
craft for flight over Canada granted on a monthly or annual basis? Has Canada
a continuous control over all aircraft flying over Canada?

* * * *

Page 51.

Mr. Lessarp (Lac-Saint-Jean): Mister Chairman, I have a very brief
question for the Minister. The Minister has told us that the fact that we shall
soon acquire nuclear weapons does not indicate that we are to become a member
of the nuclear club. Could the Minister tell us what, to his way of thinking, are
the requirements for such membership and whether he considers that it is
necessary to produce every part of a nuclear weapon to become a member of
the nuclear club?
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, July 4, 1963
(4)

The Special Committee on Defence met at 10:40 a.m. this day. The Chair-
Mman Mr. Maurice Sauvé presided.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (N otre-Dame-de-Grice), Béchard,
Brewin, Churchill, Deachman, Granger, Groos, Lambert, Laniel, Lessard (Lac-
Saint-Jean), Lloyd, MacInnis, MacLean, Martineau, Matheson, McMillan, Pat-
terson, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, Winch.—(21)

In attendance: Honourable Paul Hellyer, Minister of National Defence;
Honourable Lucien Cardin, Associate Minister of National Defence; and Air
Chief Marshal F. R. Miller, Chairman of Chiefs of Staff Committee.

The meeting being called to order, Mr. Churchill advised that he had a
Point to raise respecting certain information that had been supplied to the Com-
mittee, and he expressed the wish that the Minister of National Defence be
bresent when this matter is being discussed.

The Chairman submitted the Second Report of the Steering Subcommittee
as follows:

The Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure recommends:

1. That, following the meeting on Thursday, July 4, 1963, the Com-
mittee defer, until a later date, the questioning of the Minister,
respecting the contents of his statement of June 27, 1963;

2. That, on Tuesday, July 9, 1963, the Committee proceed with its
schedule of hearings as set forth in paragraphs 7 and 8 of this Sub-
committee’s First Report, dated June 27, 1963.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. Smith,—

Resolved,—That the Second Report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure, presented this day, be now concurred in.

Mr. Miller was called and he supplied information respecting contributions
to NATO by various member countries. He then made a brief statement respect-
ing the North Atlantic Treaty Organization, and was questioned by members of
the Committee.

During his questioning Mr. Miller tabled information respecting Total
Defence Expenditures of NATO Countries—1949-1962.

Agreed,—That the above mentioned information be included in the Com-
mittee’s proceedings. (See this day’s Evidence.)

The Minister of National Defence having arrived, Mr. (;hurchill again
raised the question of certain information that had been supplied at previous

Meetings. Mr. Hellyer replied to the points raised by Mr. Churchill.
The Minister of National Defence and Mr. Miller answered additional ques-
tions respecting Defence.
At 12:35 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 10:30 a.m. on Tuesday, July
9, 1963.
E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

THURSDAY, July 4, 1963

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I see a quorum. May I ask whether or not the

minister is going to be able to attend this morning?
: The CHAIRMAN: Unfortunately, the minister had to attend a cabinet meet-
Ing at Harrington lake. In his absence, he has asked Air Chief Marshal Miller,
Chairman of the Chiefs of Staff, to make a presentation to the members of the
committee. Following this you will be able to put questions to Mr. Miller.

It is the minister’s hope that he will be back here sometime this morning
in order that members of the committee may question him. He regrets very
much his non-attendance this morning. However, as I say, he had to attend
this cabinet meeting at Harrington lake.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr. Chairman, these other commitments are understand-
able; however, I have a very serious problem to raise, which I would like to
raise in the presence of the minister. If, however, he does not appear within
half an hour before the committee is adjourned this morning I will undertake
to raise the problem in any event. I will give you the information right now;
it has to do with information supplied to this committee which in my judgment,
is incomplete inaccurate and misleading. I shall raise this matter later this
morning, if the minister is present, but even if he is not here I intend to raise
it this morning, so perhaps word might be sent to the minister to return rather
quickly from his cabinet meeting.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, before you call on the Chairman of the Chiefs
of Staff, may I ask if there is any report you wish to make on behalf of the
steering committee?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, it is my intention to make a report.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, there is another question I would like to raise
this morning. In connection with the roster of questions, I think it should
have been made clear that even though the minister may give an answer
to an honourable member the fact a question is not immediately asked by another
member to challenge the statement does not mean the statement is being let
go by default. We understand the Chairman has to recognize honourable
members in the order they have asked to be recognized. For instance, .the
other day there were certain statements which were made in reply to que_stmns
I asked and, unfortunately, other members were being recognized. It is my
Opinion that these should have been stored for reference.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand all this. ]

We will have some information later on as to what time the minister will
be here this morning. I will report later to the members of the comm1ttee?.

Now, following a number of meetings and consultations the Sub-committee
on Agenda and Procedure recommends as follows:

(1) That, following the meeting on Thursday, July 4, 1963, the
committee defer until a later date, the questioning of the minister,
respecting the contents of his statement of June 27, 1963.

(2) That, on Tuesday, July 9, 1963, the committee pmceedfv:}if'h
its schedule of hearings as set forth in paragraphs 7, 8 and 9 of this
sub-committee’s first report dated June 27, 1963.

59
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Also it was discussed at this sub-committee meeting that we should go
to NORAD in Colorado Springs. In this connection we have no final report
to make because arrangements have to be concluded with the NORAD people
for our visit to their headquarters. In any case, the visit will last only one full
day, 24 hours. If we left one evening we would be back the following evening.
It will be arranged in such a way that members of this committee will not miss
too many of the sittings of the house.

I would like a motion for concurrence in the said report.

Mr. LAMBERT: Did you say item number 9 of the steering committee’s initial
report?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, 7, 8 and 9.

Mr. LAMBERT: But not 9.

The CHAIRMAN: I am sorry, 7 and 8.

Mr. WincH: I would like to ask one question at this stage of the proceedings,
and if I am out of order I know the Chairman will tell me quickly. I understood
that the decision of our steering committee was that you as Chairman should
give consideration to an orderly conduct of business, which would include
the breakdown of questions to the minister under certain categories so that
we do not go jumping from one place to another.

The CHAIRMAN: Before I answer your question may I ask someone to move
and second the adoption of this report so that we will be in a position to discuss
it?

Mr. WincH: I will move the adoption of the report.

Mr. SmrtH: I will second the motion.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Does that include the proposed visit to Colorado Springs
or is it in connection with paragraphs 7, 8 and 9?

The CrAIRMAN: No, paragraphs 7 and 8.

It has been moved by Mr. Winch and seconded by Mr. Smith that the report
be adopted.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, in answer to your question, Mr. Winch, this matter
to which you referred was discussed during our steering committee meeting
and it was left to me to decide how we should proceed with the statement
of the n_linister. After consideration of this, I felt that the proper way to
proceed is as we have done for the first two meetings.

Is the report of the committee, with the amendment that number 9 be
deleted, agreed to?

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: At this time I will call upon Air Chief Marshal Frank
Miller to make a statement to the members of this committee.

Air Chief Marshal FRANK R. MILLER (Chairman of the Chiefs of Staff):
Mr. Chairman and honourable members of the committee. I have not a prepared
statement for you. However, I have the answer to a question in connection
with contributions to NATO which might very well lead into a short discussion
and a statement whxc}} I cguld make about NATO. This could be followed by
any exploratory questions into any area which you would like connected with
NATO, as it is of the utmost importance in Canadian defence matters.

The question concerned the percentages or what contributions the various
members of NATO make. Of course, there are various ways of measuring
contributions; the usual one and probably the most nearly representative one
is the percentage of gross national product that is devoted to defence by the
various countries. The figures I am about to give now represent the percentages
and this conforms more to a standard formula adopted by NATO. You may

il
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see different figures quoted at different times because of the variations in
methods of computing gross national product. The figures I am giving are for
1962. The figures for 1961, which are somewhat at variance with these, were
given in the house last October 15. The following is the percentages of gross
national product of the various contributing members of NATO: Belgium
3.4 per cent; Canada, 5.1 per cent; Denmark, 3.5 per cent; France, 7.6 per cent;
the Federal Republic of Germany, 5.9 per cent: Greece, 5.1 per cent; Italy,
4 per cent; Luxembourg, 1.5 per cent; the Netherlands, 5.1 per cent; Norway,
4.1 per cent; Portugal, 8.5 per cent; Turkey, 6.1 per cent; the United Kingdom,
7.4 per cent and the United States, 10.8 per cent.

I should urge you to treat those figures again with the same caution.
There is really no standard way of comparing the amount of sacrifices the
citizens of one country make with those of another. It is hard to say, for
example, whether the United States, devoting 10.8 per cent of its gross national
product, is making a greater sacrifice than say Turkey, with a very considerably
smaller percentage. I would urge you to use this as a guide to what the mem-
bers of NATO are doing in the interests of the coalition.

I think that it would be useful if I say just a few words in respect of
NATO and Canada’s position in NATO. Perhaps then we could explore those
areas in which you may be especially interested.

Canada has been a charter member of NATO, and that membership in
NATO is the cornerstone of our defence policy. The forces that Canada has
raised and maintained have been in direct support of NATO, either in the
North American area, in Europe or in the ocean areas. Our obligations to NATO
have in large measure defined what our forces are today and, therefore, our
military estimates.

The essence of NATO is that it is a coalition of like minded nations, and
each member is prepared to do a fair share toward maintaining the common
defence of that coalition. I touched on that fair share in the answer to the
question which I have just read out.

The original idea of NATO was that it was a military defensive alliance.
There have been efforts made since then, and it is provided in the charter,
toward activities other than military, but the heart of the operation is a
military defensive alliance. ;

I think that in order to understand some of the problems of NATO, it
would be useful to go back to the beginning and state that when it was de-
cided to form the North Atlantic Treaty Organization, planning staffs were set
up to make military plans for the various regions of NATO. There were three
planning groups created in Europe; one in the centre, one in the north and
one in the south.

There was an ocean planning group for the North Atlantic, and a North
American regional planning group. . s

The planning groups were to determine what military organization of
forces was required to provide for the defence of those specialized areas. ;

In all the areas except North America the plans called for the formation
or creation of a military headquarters and a military commander. As a resyllil:
of that we have a formation of a Supreme Allied Commander, Europe wit
headquarters in Paris, and under him the southern command, the central
command and the northern command.

We have a Supreme Allied Commander, Atlantic, responsible for the naval
defence of the Atlantic common area with headquarters at NO!'_fOIkv Vu'gn}la.

We have still on the NATO charge the North American regional planning
group. The North American defence was never formalized into an organized
defence command. There is no single headquarters or commander responsible
for the North American defence. That does not mean, however, that the North
American defence is not an essential part of NATO, because it is.
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The North American regional planning group is shown as consisting of
the chiefs of staff of the United States and Canada.

I think that you will recall, when NATO was first formed, they agreed
to appoint General Eisenhower as the first Supreme Commander. He visited all
the NATO countries and asked them to supply all forces they could, as soon
as they possibly could. The urgency of the situation in western Europe at
that time was such that he was prepared to sacrifice the possibility of a
build-up in the future in the interests of getting forces on the ground as soon
as possible.

He made a very strong plea to Canada, among other nations, to get forces
into western Europe as soon as possible so there was a NATO presence there
where before only a military vacuum existed.

Canada at that time made the commitment of a brigade in Europe backed
up by the two brigades to complete the division in Canada; the air division
in Europe and all the ships that we could raise for the Nort Atlantic area.
That has been the basis of our military structure ever since. It has been
changed from time to time as the tactical and technological situation changed,
but it is basically the same agreement and same contribution with which
we started.

I should like to finish by just saying one thing about NATO.

NATO is a coalition and working within a coalition is not an easy task.
You have to be prepared to give and take; you have to be prepared to give
up some national prerogatives in the interests of going along with the con-
sensus of the coalition. This is not always easy and it sometimes tends to
lower the coalition to the level of the least common denominator.

There is really only one struggle against this trend, and it is one that the
member nations have to take very seriously.

Mr. Chairman, I think that is a very short outline of NATO and its rela-
tionship to the Canadian military posture. If members have any other areas
that they would like to explore with me, I should be very glad to do so.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Miller. Are there any questions?

Mr. SmITH: Mr. Miller, you gave the percentage of contributions of each of
the participating countries to NATO. I think you referred to them as “a sacri-
fice”; perhaps I might quibble with the word and would think “contribution”
might be a better word. Is there any breakdown as to how much of each
country’s contribution is spent in its own country and in payments to its own
nationals? You sometimes see criticism of the fact that Canada contributes only
5 per cent odd and that the Americans contribute something like 10.8 per cent,
but has there ever been any attempt to break down the contributions to deter-
mine what percentage of a country’s contribution is spent (a) in its own country
and (b) in payment of its own nationals, whether they are service or civilan
personnel?

A.CM. MirLErR: I am not aware of any approach that has been made
along that line. It could be made by the international staff. These figures have

been compiled by the international staff in Paris from information supplied
by individual member countries.

Mr. SmaTH: It could be possible that a very substantial amount of contribu-
tions of those countries with a high percentage of contribution may be paid back
into the economy of that country. Is that not possible?

A.C.M. MiLLER: Completely possible, yes.

Mr. Wincha: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Mr. Miller if he, being in
the position of chairman of the Canadian chiefs of staff and being an air force
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man, could tell us, in view of the French policy, what is the value of our air
squadrons in NATO which are located in France?

A.CM. MiLLER: Mr. Chairman, that is a question which involves a fair
amount of opinion, but I think the telling point about it is that these forces have
been provided to SACEUR in accordance with his planning requirements. He
is reluctant to have any difficulty about the French basing problem there, but
he is very firm in wanting to have squadrons there even with this disability of
their being based in France.

Mr. WincH: Will the chairman of the chiefs of staff now tell us, in the
event of an offence by some enemy—which I imagine will be sudden—what is
the advantage of having Canadian air force personnel in France if, under
French policy, they can in no way be armed?

A.C.M. MiLLER: The advantage of having them there is that the com-
mander believes that, given a set of certain circumstances, he can use them.
If you ask him whether he wants them there, he will certainly tell you that
he needs them and wants them there. The situation of the French not
agreeing to having stockpiles of American weapons on French territory is
one that developed after infrastructure programs that provided for the location
of squadrons in France—both Canadian and American—had been carried out
at great expense. It was certainly an embarrassment that atomic weapons
could not be based in France, as far as the NATO commander is concerned.

Mr. WincH: May I then ask the third logical question? In the event of an
offensive undertaking do you, as a professional airman, believe that warheads
could be delivered to our squadrons in France to enable them to take part?
Do you actually believe that?

A.C.M. MiLLER: Under certain conditions, yes. You can predict thg worst
Possible conditions under which it would not be possible; you can predict less
stringent conditions in which it can be done.

Mr. MATHESON: May I ask the Air Chief Marshal a question relating to
this contribution which was based, as I understand, on a percentage of the gross
national product? I think he has told us that Canada’s contribution is equal,
on that basis, to that of Greece and the Netherlands, and is under that of the
United States, Portugal, France, the United Kingdom, and West Germany. Am
I correct in understanding that our contribution in numbers of people or
numbers of machines is very substantially less, on the basis of cost, than that
of almost all these other contributing allies, with the exception perhaps of the
United States? Is it true that we actually field a brigade group of 6,000 men,
or approximately this number, but at a greater substantial cost to us thap to
any other nation in the NATO alliance, and that therefore in fact our contribu-
tion is substantially less?

A.CM. MiLLER: You do not want to confuse this with absolute d’ollars.
This is a percentage of gross national product. It is true that. Canada’s cost
of maintaining a Canadian soldier, airman or sailor overseas is higher than that
of most of our NATO partners. I do not think, however, that }’01;i can
necessarily deduce it from this sort of figure because this is a percentage figure
rather than a total. I have a table here I can give to the clerk so that it can
be incorporated in the minutes which shows the absolute .amounts Spel;lttt?e?
defences by each country over a period of years. This gives you aede
figure for your type of question rather than the percentage I have used.

The CHAIRMAN: With the permission of the committee, this will be incor-
porated at this point in the committee’s report.

(The table is as follows: )



TOTAL DEFENCE EXPENDITURE OF NATO COUNTRIES—1949-1962

The figures given in the attached table are based on the NATO definition of defence expenditures and represent payments actually made or to be made in the
course of the calendar year. There may be considerable divergencies between these figures and those given in national budgets, because of differences between the
national and NATO definition of defence expenditures.

.. The figures relating to the United States and Canada include expenditures for military aid programmes. The figures shown for European NATO countries do not
include the value of end-items received under military aid programmes from the United States and Canada.

4 Fore-
Country Currency Unit Actual cast

1949 1950 1951 1952 1953 1054 19556 1956 1957 1958 1959 1960 1961 1962

) ) ) 3) @) (5) (6) (7) @®) ) (10) (11) (12) (13) (14) (15)
Belgium............ Million B. Frs... 7,653 8,256 13,387 19,965 19,815 19,925 17,067 17,065 18,356 18,312 18,686 19,161 19,561 20,821
Canada. .. .. Million Can. §..... 372 4956 1,220 1,875 1,970 1,771 1,819 1,888 1,829 1,740 1,642 1,65¢ 1,711 1,780
Denmark. .. Million D. Kroner.. e 360 359 475 676 889 885 920 936 1,012 988 986 1,113 1,180 1,537
Fralite. .. ..., .. Million New Frs............. 4,787 5,501 8,811 12,531 13,865 11,710 11,020 14,600 15,600 16,569 17,926 18,940 19,932 21,920
Germany (a) Malion DI e — -—_ -— — 6,195 6,287 7,383 7,211 8,962 6,853 11,087 12,115 13,175 16,378
GEROOB A 3 A v o Million Drachmae.......... 1,630 1,971 2,615 2,655 2,767 3,428 3,688 4,939 4,477 4,469 4,735 5,110 5,034 5,055
$ 3 ol R Milltard Tidre.. ... s s 301 353 457 521 480 543 551 584 611 647 667 710 749 844
Luxembourg........ Malhon Lo Frg: oot 06 e, 112 170 264 436 488 566 614 395 430 429 402 263 290 365
Netherlands........ Million Guilders............ 680 901 1,060 1,258 1,330 1,583 1,609 1,854 1,845 1,666 1,505 1,728 2,013 2,158
NOTWaY e Million N. Kroner........... 370 357 572 831 1,067 1,141 953 967 1,049 1,024 1,107 1,068 1,179 1,364
POrdugal’ (s« sl 5 Million Excudos............. 1,419 1,616 1,653 1,601 1,976 2,100 2,224 2,207 2,391 2,485 2,820 3,023 4,922 6,156
URleW:, o sl Millon EiEags o 0 B aihice 556 599 652 725 827 936 1,077 1,159 1,266 1,470 2,153 2,405 2,614 2,868
4 SEMR I Million £s Strlg............. 779 849 1,149 1,561 1,681 1,571 1,567 1,615 1,574 1,691 1,589 1,655 1,709 1,786
IAB A bk e Million US §...... 050 vy 13,580 14,559 33,398 47,852 49,621 42,900 40,518 41,773 44,548 45,503 46,614 46,545 49,417 54,452
AREA
Total Europe (b).... Million US$................ 4,825 5,445 7,627 10,231 12,403 11,746 11,828 13,137 13,814 12,925 13,335 14,215 15,264 17,054
Total N. America.. Million USS$................ 13,952 15,054 34,618 49,727 51,501 44,671 42,337 43,661 46,377 47,243 48,256 48,199 51,128 56,008
Total NATO (b).... Million US§................ 18,777 20,499 42,245 59,958 63,994 56,417 54,165 56,798 60,191 60,168 61,641 62,414 66,392 73,152

(a) Before it acceded to the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (May 1955), the Federal Republic of Germany contributed to the defence budgets of certain
NATO countries by the payment of occupation costs; moreover, it bore certain other costs which also fall within the NATO definition of defence expenditures. The
total given in the column for 1953 represents the expenditures made under these various heads of the fiscal year 1953-54 (1 April-31 March). The figures for the year
prior to fiscal year 1953-54 have not yet been communicated to the Secretariat.

(b) The totals for Europe and for NATO do not include defence expenditures of the Federal Republic of Germany for the period prior to 1953, and for this reason
they are not directly comparable to the totals for the following year.

Extract from NATO LETTER, January 1963.
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Mr. McMiLLAN: I am interested in Canada’s cost. I wonder about the cpst
of any soldier or any personnel serving under the United Nations Canadian
forces. Is it included in the 5.1 per cent?

A.C.M. MiLLER: Yes.
Mr. McMILLAN: Because that is complementary to the purpose of NATO.

A.C.M. MiLLER: This is the total military expenditure of the countries
concerned. For example, the Portuguese figure, you will notice, is high, not
that they are necessarily making an unduly high contribution to NATO but
that they have a large military establishment for their national purpose.

Mr. MACLEAN: In that connection could Air Chief Marshal Miller give
figures as to what percentage of the gross national product of each of these
countries is contributed to NATO. I understand that these are the total figures
for the respective defence forces.

A.CM. MiLLER: I have not got these for NATO and it would be quite
a problem to extract them because you get into things such as the mutual aid
programs which are in here both from the recipient and the donor point
of view. It would be a pretty difficult problem to extract it. I can have a look
and see whether there are any figures in existence.

Mr. MacLeAN: I have two other brief questions based on what Air Chief
Marshal Miller has already said. Are there plans, or would it be feasible, in
time of threat, to transfer the Canadian squadrons in France and other NATO
squadrons to places in some country that has accepted nuclear stockpiles—
Germany, for example?

A.C.M. MiLLErR: We have operating methods now that we use for that.

Mr. MacLeanN: My third question is: can we be told what percentage of
the strike force of NATO is based in France?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I do not have those figures. First of all you would have
to define what a strike force is and it would be pretty difficult to do that.

Mr. MAcLEAN: In simple terms, perhaps, how many squadrons are
stationed in France that it had been the intention to arm with nuclear
weapons?

A.C.M. MiLLER: So far as Canada is concerned?
Mr. MacLeAN: No; the total.

A.C.M. MILLER: This involves United States’ figures and you get into
security difficulty there I am afraid.

Mr. TEMPLE: Mr. Chairman, through you, may I ask Mr. Miller a question
arising out of the question asked by Mr. Matheson regarding the army brigade
which, of course, is one-third of the whole division. With respect to shipping,
do I take it that more emphasis is being made on air transport as such?

A.C.M. MILLER: Mr. Chairman, I hope that this comm}ttee ?vill have :licn
opportunity to hear the army story on this. I could say briefly, 1n answer :
this question, that air transport can move men, but it cannot move equipment.
The movement of equipment is a big problem.

Mr. WINCH: What is the use of the men without the equipment?

A.CM. MILLER: I think you have answered your question there.

Mr. LAMBERT: As to the answer that the chief of staff gave to Mr. McMillan
about the operational procedures for the Canadian squadrons based in France
to obtain nuclear arms, is the witness satisfied with the efficiency or efficacy
of these operational procedures?
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A.C.M. MiLLER: I think that you have to accept that these are forced
measures because of the difficulty of the French position. They are not what
any of us would like, but I think it is the best that can be done under the
circumstances.

Mr. LAMBERT: In other words, they are not ideal but they are workable.
A.C.M. MiLLER: I think that would be a good description of it.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Groos.

Mr. Groos: My question has already been answered, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. LaNIEL: Mr. Miller, if we assume that our forces in Europe, or some
of them, are equipped with atomic warheads and the equipment to go with
them, what would it represent in cost or in personnel if the same or an equiva-
lent force were replaced by ordinary armament, equipment and personnel?
Would that cost more? Would we need more personnel there to have the same
striking force or defensive force; would that amount to a larger expenditure
on the part of the government?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I take it your question is, if we changed the equipment
and personnel that are there now?

Mr. LaANIEL: Yes; in order to have the equivalent striking or defensive
force.

A.C.M. M1LLER: I would attempt to answer that not as an equivalent, but
to have the same number of airplanes or the same number of troops there.

Mr. LANIEL: Yes.

A.C.M. M1LLER: It would cost more, because we would have to modify the
equipment that was there for a different role. We might get by with fewer
people because the role might be changed to the extent that you would not need
the security people that you need in respect of the atomic weapons.

Mr. LaNIEL: What I am attempting to find out is this: if we undertook a
commitment with NATO, that would have to be evaluated in respect of the
strike force or defence and our participation in the case of attack or war.
To have the same force or same striking power, or defensive force, there with
ordinary equipment, would that represent a larger expenditure on the part of
the government? Would we need more regiments there or more squadrons and
artillery, if the weapons were not equipped with atomic warheads, to do the
same job.

A.CM. MiLEr: I think that point was covered by the Minister in his
initial statement where he said that NATO decided to adopt a nuclear strategy
in western Europe because of the failure of the NATO partners to produce
enough conventional arms and men to meet the threat and to give a chance of
holding western Europe if the NATO coalition had to go from nuclear strategy
and adopt conventional weapons.

Mr. SmrtH: To go back to the percentage of contribution by the wvarious
countries to NATO, would it be reasonable to assume that some of the countries
which have a relatively high percentage of contribution also have a dual
purpose for the troops committed to NATO? For example, Canada’s troops as
situated are for the sole purpose of the NATO force. In the instance of France
and the United Kingdom, is it not possible that some of their troops which are
charged to NATO also have a secondary use Or purpose in relation to the
defence policy of the country involved.

A.C.M. MiLLER: Again I would like to stress that this is the total military
expenditure of the country and is not broken down as to what is necessarily
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in support of NATO or not in support of NATO. The United Kingdom has
defence obligations in various parts of the world that are not related to NATO
at all, but the whole cost is in there.

Mr. MARTINEAU: My question relates to the effectiveness of the four air
squadrons based in France. Because of the refusal of the French to permit
the stockpiling of atomic weapons for NATO member countries, are any other
squadrons withdrawn from France besides the United States?

A.C.M. MiLLER: No.

Mr. CHURCHILL: I have a series of questions based solely on the air force
in Europe. It might be helpful if we had some facts put before us with regard to
the composition of the force at the present time. That is question number one.

A.C.M. MiLLER: Mr. Chairman, I do not have the order of battle here with
me. I was hopeful that we could deal with the generalities today, and that any
particulars would be left for the air force when they are here with all the
details. If you feel that I can answer any of your questions in a general way, I
would be quite prepared to try; but in my view it would be better to wait until
the air force representatives are here with the details.

Mr. CHURCHILL: When can we expect to have the representatives of the air
force, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Normally they would be here next Thursday.

Mr. CHURCHILL: I have perhaps a dozen questions and I might better wait
until the air force representatives appear.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions, Mr. Churchill? Mr.
Brewin?

Mr. BREwWIN: Mr. Chairman, I am sorry that I did not hear the opening
remarks of the Air Chief Marshal, but I did hear him say at the end of his
statement that if one were in an alliance, he naturally would have to fit in with
certain plans. Now I propose to ask him if the fact that we are in an alliance
does not enable a division of labour so that each country may pick out that
function which is most suited to it? Does he agree with that.

A.CM. MiLLer: Completely; there are great advantages to being in an
alliance. I was also attempting to establish that you pay a price.

Mr. BREWIN: Quite so; and one of the advantages is selected labour.

A.C.M. MiLLErR: You have some option there, but your effort has to be
within the commander’s over-all plan. ;

Mr. BREWIN: Precisely, and in that connection I wondered whether we
might have your comment on the evidence in the section in the final com-
munique of NATO council, when it is stated in paragraph nine that the:

Ministers recognized the need to achieve a satisfactory balance. bf-‘-
tween nuclear and conventional arms. They directed the council in
permanent session to undertake, with the advice of the NATO military
authorities, further studies of the inter-related questions of strategy,
force requirements and the resources available to meet them.

Is it recognized that there is not at the moment a satisfactory balance be-
tween nuclear and conventional arms in NATO? ' )

A.C.M. MILLER: You probably have heard Mr. McNamara’s point of Zle;)v’
in which he wants a large range of options; that is, he does not want to he
faced with making a decision to use or not to use atomic weapons on the
faintest provocation. He wants to have enough conventional arms SO that hg
can respond to smaller provocations with conventional arms and troops, an
not have to go to nuclear arms.
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Mr. BRewIn: I take it that that view is very widely shared; and that it is
not altogether Mr. McNamara’s view.

A.C.M. MiLLER: He is the protagonist of it.

Mr. BRewIN: Even if that is so, there is in his view, shared widely by
others, a lack of satisfactory balance of that kind.

A.C.M. MiLLER: He advocates more conventional troops in NATO.

Mr. BREWIN: Well, I do not know if the witness is in a position to tell us
or not, but is the review within NATO—is the council concerned with rectifying
this imbalance?

A.C.M. MiLLER: That is exactly what it has set out to do—to review the
whole military structure of NATO and the countries’ contribution to it.

Mr. BREWIN: I do not know how far we can be acquainted here in this com-
mittee from time to time with the results of this review. It seems to me that
we have to fit, as the witness has said, in the past with the general plans of the
alliance, and that the alliance is reviewing its, perhaps, knowledge of the lack
of balance, and that it is very difficult for us to make up our minds as to the
role without knowledge of the result of that review. Are we in a position to be
acquainted with it from time to time?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I can say this: that the review is nothing new in NATO;
each year they have had what they call an annual review which looks at the
commander’s plans, at the first contributions to meet them, and to make
certain recommendations to member countries about what they might do in
increasing or changing their contribution. This is doing an annual review in
a somewhat larger or more impressive way, and it is not a short period affair.
It will take some months to do this.

Mr. BREwIN: Perhaps I might ask another question: I have been given
to understand that part of the review or uneasiness about the lack of balance
consists of the fear that if we rely upon tactical nuclear weapons in the front
line, we may have to use them on occasion if any conflict arises.

A.C.M. MiLLER: This of course lies at the basis for requiring more con-
ventional troops and capability, so that you can postpone the use of any
nuclear weapons as long as possible.

Mr. BREwWIN: I wonder if the witness could tell us whether that problem
is being considered in the light of whether tactical weapons should be under
the control of smaller units in the front line, or should be withdrawn under
separate control.

A.CM. MiLLer: That is a matter of very great debate, as to how tightly
the control of nuclear weapons should be held. Strategic weapons are fairly
easily controlled; but as you distribute the weapons to the frontline soldier, it
becomes more and more difficult for them. But as far as I am aware there
is a workable and effective control of their use, and they can only be used
under very stringent control by the highest formation.

Mr. Brewin: If that is so, and if we come to a brigade equipped with
tactical nuclear weapons, and if some conflict arose, there would be permission
immediately given for them to use practical nuclear weapons, and it might be
made almost immediately?

A.C.M. MiLLER: There would have to be a request and judgment made at
the highest level.

Mr. BRewin: What would be the highest level?

A.Cc.M. MitLeR: Certainly the Americans hold it away above the brigade
level. I do not think I can say exactly where it is, but I can assure you that
it is not made by the man who is being shot at at the moment.




DEFENCE 69

Mr. BREwIN: Can you say who would make the final decision whether
tactical nuclear weapons should be used in the event of some outbreak, let
us say, or perhaps a minor conflict in Germany?

A.C.M. MiLLER: The arrangement that the Americans have made for their
command structure on the nuclear side consists of a national network, and I
am afraid that I cannot say at what level the decision is made.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Temple.

Mr. TempLE: Mr. Chairman, arising out of the question concerning air
transport, and the fact that men can be moved but not their equipment, I
take it that the equipment will be stockpiled and that the men will be flown
to it?

A.C.M. M1LLEr: That is one of the possibilities that has to be considered;
it is a very extensive one, and it is not a fire-proof one; that is one of the basic
military axioms, to keep your men and equipment together if possible. You
would not want to have your brigade arrive over there only to find that the
equipment had been hit by a bomb or something. So it is not an open and
shut case.

Mr. TEmpLE: But it is being considered.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Winch.

Mr. WincH: My question is basically a follow-up of that just asked by
Mr. Temple. About 35 minutes ago, according to the clock, I heard what I
considered an amazing statement made by our witness, the chief of staff.

May I say I am very happy that the minister is back; if the chairman of
the chiefs of staff is unable to answer my question perhaps the minister can.

The statement, as I understood it—and I think I got it correctly—was
that Canada is equipped now so that in an emergency it can move its forces—
that is, members of the forces—but not the equipment. Now, I am certain all
members of this committee are most anxious that we shall not only be able
to move our men but that they should be equipped. My question to the
chairman—and if he cannot answer it I hope the minister will—is this: what
are the requirements as they see it now to ensure not only that we can
transport the members of our armed forces but to make sure they receive the
equipment coincidentally? What are the requirements as seen now to accom-
plish that dual purpose?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I have to revert to your statement about what you heard
me say or somebody else say. I do not recognize that as a statement that I had
made, Mr. Winch.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, am I not correct that the chairman of the
chiefs of staff said they were able and equipped to move the membe_rs, and
then on a question that I asked in connection with equipment he said: you
have answered your own question.

An hon. MEMBER: “by air” he said.

Mr. WincH: I am talking about by air. Does that mean you are not able
to move the equipment by air along with the men? 3

A.C.M. MILLER: We have no such air lift at all to move equipment.

Mr. WincH: You can move men?

A.C.M. MILLER: We can move a considerable number of men-.

Mr. WINCH: That is what I am coming to—and it is of major I
you are equipped to move men but you are not able to move
equipment.

A.C.M. MILLER: By air.

Mr. WiNci: I think this is a mighty important question. If there is a
lag what, in your estimation, or the minister’s estimation, is Tred

mportance;
the men’s
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so you can airlift men and all the required equipment? What is the lag and
what is required. I think this committee would be very interested in having
an answer to that question; I know I would.

Mr. HELLYER: In my opening statement, Mr. Chairman, I referred to this
problem in respect of the army reserve components in Canada and that is
the reason I said, in effect, that there would be problems in getting them to
the battlefield under such conditions as quickly as might be required.
I intimated some steps would have to be taken in order to improve the
reality of this reserve force or else to change the commitment. Now, this
presents a number of options, one of which you were talking about a few
moments ago, namely, the stockpiling of equipment in advance areas and
then flying the men in. Another option is to acquire sufficient air lift to take
the men and materials; and the third option, which I mentioned in my opening
statement, was to change the commitment. Each of these options is being care-
fully considered and will be in our general review. I do not think I am pre-
pared at the moment to say which one of these options will be recommended.
However, by the time we have completed our review we will have the proper
solution to this problem.

Mr. WincH: Are you prepared to submit the details of the three options
before this committee so we can consider them?

Mr. HELLYER: I think you can consider them now on the basis of information
available to you. They are pretty involved and I think I would be more inclined
to discuss these in detail after we have come to some conclusion, which may not
be perhaps until the general review is complete, which may take some months.

Mr. MacLeaN: Mr. Chairman, I have a question for the minister based on
his opening statement at page 12 of the printed report. The minister said:

To redress the balance of power a family of tactical nuclear weapons
have been employed. The existence of these tends to neutralize any advan-
tage a potential enemy might have through greater manpower.

And later on, at page 15 he quoted Mr. McNamara somewhat to the same
effect, which I need not repeat to the committee at this time. Are you seriously
contending that you can equate nuclear weapons and conventional weapons? I
base my question on the fact that this would put the western powers on the
horns of a dilemma in a situation where there was provocation by conventional
arms. I feel the situation would have to become desperate before any nation could
justify precipitating a nuclear war. A comparable situation held in world war
two; although poison gas had been used in world war one the British especially
had vast stockpiles of poison gas and the means to deliver it but did not do S0,
even with the desperate situation which existed in world war two on ocecasion.,
As I say, this type of warfare was never resorted to. Is it not at best wishful
thinking to assume you can even partially equate nuclear strength and con-
ventional weapons?

Mr. HeLuyer: I think it is still recognized and has even been stated that
certainly during much of the 10 year period since the NATO build-up began,
it was in fact the existence of nuclear weapons in reserve and the threat that
they might be used under certain circumstances which did effectively deter any
inclination on the part of a potential enemy to use their superior land forces.

Mr. MacLeEAaN: I would concede that statement as.far as a full-out war was
concerned, but there could be relatively minor occasions with the use of con-
ventional weapons in respect of which we would be powerless to cope except by
the use of conventional weapons.

Mr. HeLrLyer: I think the Chairman has already stated that, in respect of

this type of provocation, there has been and is being built up a considerable
capacity with which to handle such a situation.
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Mr. MacLEAN: The minister would then agree that there is a very vital need
for increasing our conventional weapons strength in the alliance?

Mr. HELLYER: I think the military commanders in the field in Europe would
like an increase in both their tactical nuclear capacity and conventional weapons
capacity.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I should like to direct a supplementary ques-
tion to the minister in respect of the question of the build-up of conventional
and tactical nuclear weapons. Is there any question as to who should have
control of tactical and nuclear weapons, and has this been considered by the
minister? In other words, should they not be under the control of perhaps
the United States, as they are now, rather than having tactical nuclear weapons
under the control of smaller units?

Mr. WiNcH: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a supplementary question.
The CHAIRMAN: Just one moment, please.

Mr. BREWIN: I do not know whether I have made my question clear to
the minister. Perhaps I should repeat it.

He has stated, as I understand it, that we have to strengthen and modern-
ize our tactical nuclear capacity in NATO and strengthen our conventional
forces. My question is, has the question of the control of tactical nuclgar
weapons been considered in this connection, and whether that consideration
gives rise to the question whether a national unit such as Canada might well
make a better contribution in conventional weapons rather than tactical
nuclear weapons?

Mr. HELLYER: The matter of control has been considered and, as you are
aware Mr. Brewin, the weapons that we would have stockpiled and at our use
in an emergency would in fact be under the ultimate control of the Uni?ed
States, at least to the extent that the weapons could not be used without having
been released for use by the United States.

Mr. WincH: I have a supplementary question, Mr. Chairman. I should lil_te
to ask the minister whether he is aware that there has been any change in
the NATO policy of 1960 and 1961, that in the event of any spearhead or attack
on NATO countries, whether by conventional arms or otherwise, NATO would
reply with tactical nuclear weapons? As you realize, sir, I was at the NATO
conference at the time that statement was made. Has there been any change
in that policy?

Mr. HELLYER: I do not know whether I can comment specifically on your
question, Mr. Winch, but I am sure that the whole object of the presgnt NA'!‘O
strategy is to have a flexible response so that there is the widest possible choice
of response gauged to the provocation.

Mr. WiNcH: You are not aware at this time that in the event of any inva-
sion, or spearhead manoeuvre against a NATO force, even though it be a :_OI:I
ventional weapons manoeuvre, the policy is that it would be met with tactic
nuclear weapons by the NATO forces? .

Mr. HELLYER: My problem in answering your ques.tion‘ is that I am no
certain that the policy ever was exactly as you are stating it.

Mr. WincH: Would you look into that question, sir? . .

Mr. HELLYER: Yes. I think I must say that I am more interested I?inl::ezeg%
and future policy than I am in policy which was in existence s'ome e

Mr. WINCH: I am extremely interested in that situation, SIr. ‘:‘I(')ef zmclorllt-l
a position at this time to inform us as to NATO policy in the even
ventional attack?

29124-5—2
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Mr. HeLLYER: I think I have already stated that policy at least by
inference.

Mr. WinchH: Will you state it in some other way than by inference?

Mr. HELLYER: There would be a judgment made at the time of any such
attack in respect of the extent of the provocation and the response would be
based on that judgment.

Mr. LAMBERT: In that same subject area, Mr. Chairman, is it not a fact
that at the present time, and evidently for some time in the future, the
ultimate decision as to the use of conventional weapons as against the use of
tactical nuclear weapons rests directly with the President of the United States,
because under United States law nuclear weapons can only be released to
SACEUR on the express authority of the United States president?

Mr. HELLYER: That is the case under American law, yes.

Mr. LAmBERT: Is it correct that United States law governs the use of
tactical nuclear weapons in western Europe at the present time?

Mr. HELLYER: United States law governs the use of a large proportion of
tactical nuclear weapons, those which they produce, and of which they retain
custody and ownership.

Mr. LaMBerT: Do I understand correctly that if Britain has any tactical
nuclear weapons they would still be under the control of the United States but
that if France has any, and none have been disclosed, they would be outside
United States control?

Mr. HeLLyer: Control would depend upon the source of the weapons;
whether they were made by Britain or the United States.

Mr. MacLeaN: Mr. Chairman, I have one further supplementary question
which I intended to ask for clarification a few moments ago.

In the event of a conventional weapons attack of such a nature that it was
decided to attempt to meet it by conventional means, and if our air division was
armed with nuclear weapons, what would be the air support available to NATO
as far as conventional weapons are concerned, and do we have any contribution
to make to such a defence?

A.C.M. MiLLER: Mr. Chairman, I may take a shot at answering that ques-
tion.

There are certain dual capable weapons systems available to SACEUR,
and he has these despite the fact that our forces over there, if they are armed
in the manner in which he has requested, would only have the atomic capability.
There are other forces and this is one of the defences.

Mr. MacLeaN: Under those circumstances, as far as NATO is concerned,
Canada would not be in a position to make a contribution in respect of air
defence?

A.C.M. MILLER: Are ou referring to air defence only?

Mr. MacLean: I am referring to air support.

A.C.M. MiLLER: That is right.

Mr. LamserT: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a supplementary question.
Does the strike reconnaissance role of SACEUR envisage the use of conven-
tional weapons as against nuclear weapons, or is it exclusively a nuclear
weapons role?

A.C.M. MiLLeR: At the moment this is an exclusively atomic role as far as
our forces are concerned.

Mr. LamBerT: As far as our forces are concerned this is an exclusively
atomic role?
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A.C.M. M1LLER: Yes, as far as Canadian forces are concerned that is the role.

Mr. LAMEBERT: Are any conventional weapons to be used under the strike
reconnaissance role?

A.C.M. M1LLER: The aircraft that we now have are fitted, in accordance
with the requirements of SACEUR, to carry atomic weapons.

Mr. LAMBERT: Is there a dual capacity envisaged?

A.C.M. M1LLER: There are aeroplanes with a dual capacity but ours do not
have that capacity.

Mr. MATHESON: Mr. Chairman, I should like to put a question to the Air
Chief Marshal regarding the economics or generalities of which he spoke. Am I
correct, sir, in understanding that our contribution in dollars has been approxi-
mately one and a half billion per year in the post Korean era, and that this then
represents a comparative decline each year as our gross national product in-
creases, while at the same time other members of our NATO alliance have
actually substantially stepped up their contributions so that their contributions
have been increasing relatively in respect of Canada’s contributions? That is the
first question I wanted to ask.

The second question is, am I correct in assuming that the percentage of our
defence dollar that is going to equipment, as against personnel, establishment
and supplies, is decreasing so that we are tending to become a less well equipped
force?

A.C.M. MiLLer: In answer to your first question with reference to the
defence expenditure of Canada, it has been approximately constant and of the
order of $1,600 million. It has been at or about that level since the Korean era.
Of course, during that ten or twelve year period the gross national product has
increased very considerably, so that the percentage at the commencement of
the period was something of the order of 40 per cent and is now down to around
25 per cent. You must understand that I am speaking from memory in this
regard.

In respect of the second question regarding the relative amount spent on
equipment as compared to personnel and operating costs, it is a fact that there
has been very marked reductions in the percentage of defence estimates which
have been devoted to equipment.

However, you have to look into the background of this because we started
with few people and no equipment and it is no use having people until you
have the equipment. We have, therefore, had large equipment programs right
at the beginning when we had few people, so that, as the equipment be.came
available, we could recruit and train the personnel. Once they were equlpged
the process of re-equipping them was not as expensive as the initial equip-
ment program because any equipment can be kept in service once you obtain
it.

Mr. MATHESON: Would there not be validity in the criticism that one has
heard that our services have tended to build up very costly establishments
and have tended to continue to be serviced with what is becoming obsolete
or obsolescent equipment while our actual costs for personnel have tended to
increase? 3

Mr. HELLYER: That is not a fair question for Air Chief Marshal Miller to
answer. He has stated the case that we have built up an inventory of equipment
and we will have a chance to discuss the continuing needs and requirements
as we go through the service briefings.

Mr. MACINNIS: Mr. Chairman, could you rule as to whether or not the
question is proper?

29124-5—2}
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The CHAIRMAN: I think it was mentioned earlier that members of the
services would answer direct questions.

Mr. MAacINNIS: You are chairman at this meeting and it is your responsi-
bility to rule as to the propriety of any question.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, but we admitted that both the Air Chief Marshal
and the minister will be answering questions. We have not made a distinction.

Mr. MACINNIS: But you should give a ruling on the propriety of the ques-
tion.

Mr. MATHESON: My question tends in effect to become one of policy and
I withdraw it.

The CHAIRMAN: I was interested in a point to which you referred earlier
about the balance between conventional and nuclear warheads used by the
NATO air force in Europe. I was wondering if most planes, unlike ours, would
have a dual capability. I understand ours only have the capability of carrying
one type of warhead. Is that correct?

A.C.M. MI1LLER: That is right. What the other forces in Europe have is a
pretty wide range of capability, but I do not know offhand what percentage of
them have dual-capability aircraft or carriers.

Mr. McMiLLAN: In other words, in case of a conventional armed attack
we would only use part of our air force?

A.C.M. MILLER: Yes.

Mr. WincH: Could the answer be given to us by the air chief when he
appears as a witness?

A.C.M. M1LLER: No, he might not have a complete inventory of the NATO
forces, This is security information.

Mr. WincH: But he will give us the information on the adaptability of
aircraft for conventional or nuclear weapons?

The CHAIRMAN: I want to make a correction in a statement I made a min-
ute ago in answering a question on when would representatives of the R.C.A.F.
appear before the committee. I said they would appear on Thursday, July 11.
I am now informed they will be here on Tuesday, July 16.

Mr. CHURcHILL: Mr. Chairman, I welcome the return of the minister
because I wanted to raise a question of privilege with regard to the work
of this committee which is becoming an exercise in futility. This committee
wa'\s.introduced with great trumpeting and it was publicly stated by the Prime
Mu:uster and the minister that it would be a committee to discuss defence
policy. The impression was given abroad that it would have some influence on
the policies that would be determined by the government. Prior to the com-
* mittee assembling, the government made a decision to provide nuclear weapons

for the (_lanadian armed forces here and abroad, which prevents the committee
from doing anything except commenting on that decision. In his opening state-
ment.the minister indicated that he was, within his department, conducting
a review and that certain decisions would be made. Again, the committee will
have no part in thqse decisions. One of them appears to be the sabotaging
of the Royal Canadian Navy in so far as its future role is concerned. As I
say, this is becoming an exercise in futility.

J ‘My second ppmt is this—I dig not want to state it in the absence of the
minister—the evidence given to us just the other day, on Tuesday, was in-
complete and, in my opinion, some of it was inaccurate and therefore it was
misleading. One of the purposes to be served by this committee, as I understood
it, was to get the facts for the information of the House of Commons and of
parliament -itself and. for t}'le public generally. Now, if the facts are not pre-
sented to us, confusion will continue. Press reports that I have seen very
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properly drew the inference—and I am not objecting to these press reports—
from the statement made by the minister on Tuesday that the acquisition of
Voodoo aircraft in Canada lessened the defensive capability of the United
States.

I will now refer to the record of the committee on page 40, following
certain questions asked by Mr. Matheson.

Mr. MATHESON: ...If we had not taken these five squadrons of
Voodoos and two squadrons of Bomarc’s, would the American forces
have been stronger to that extent, and would they have been nuclear
armed, or does the minister know?

And further down:

Mr. HELLYER: ...Anf if the second part of your question was: would
they then have armed them with nuclear type of missiles, warheads,
I think the answer categorically is that they would have, because they
have other equipment of the same class armed with nuclear warheads.

And then further down:

Mr. LAMBERT: Is it true that the American air components or air
defence are all nuclear armed, or only a portion thereof?

And Mr. Hellyer said he did not know.
You cannot have it both ways, Mr. Chairman. On page 47 Mr. Deachman
asked:

Our policy has been to reduce the defensive fire power of the North
American continent by accepting the Voodoo and the Bomare. Is that
correct?

And Mr. Hellyer said:
That is a fair conclusion.

Now, on page 40 he did not know and on page 47 he says that that is
correct. I say, sir, that this is misleading to this committee and is misleading
to the public generally. Mr. Norman Campbell in his column in the Ottawa
Citizen, when referring to Voodoos, said that if they had been left to the United
States, both the Bomarc and the Voodoo would have been armed with nuclear
weapons.

Mr. Drury sait on the same subject that the defence minister Mr. Hellyer
confirmed that Canada’s acquisition of five Voodoo squadrons was ma'de by
removing five squadrons from the United States defensive posts where aircraft
had carried nuclear rockets.

Now, what are the facts? The minister says at one instance that he does
not know whether or not they would be armed with nuclear warheads had
they been left there, and later on he said that they would have bgen, or wgr@s
to that effect. This, I say, is incomplete and inaccurate information and it is
misleading. The facts should be presented to this committee. _We shou.ld b:
given the information as to the air defence of the North American contxr(lien >
the number of planes under United States control, the number of Voo 1:f)os
in Canada and the equipment for those planes. If it is a fact that a largﬁi p}tl)r_ ion
of the American planes are armed only with the Falcon missile, which 1s a
conventional missile—and I am now speaking of Voodoos——theq it is iiﬁ:;
curate to say that five squadrons of Voodoos in Canada, armed with :n: :
Falcon missile, have detracted from the air defence of the North erican
continent.

I would like the minister to let us have the facts with ;egard to these
circumstances rather than have him give this type of information to the com-
mittee and through the press, radio and television to the public of Canz(ii]?' MB;
own opinion is that there has been no reduction of the defensive capability o:
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the North American continent by the fact that there are five Voodoo squadrons
in Canada armed with the Falcon missile which correspond to a number of
Voodoo squadrons in the United States armed with the Falcon missile. This,
sir, is the point that I raise for complete and accurate clarification.

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, there was nothing inaccurate in what I said.
The only inaccuracy, unfortunately, is in the hon. gentleman’s reading of it.
The question that was asked of me when I said “I do not know” was one put
by Mr. Lambert:

Is it true that the American air components or air defence are all
nuclear armed, or only a portion thereof?

I replied:
I do not know.

That was correct. It is correct that I do not know whether all their aircraft are
nuclear armed or not.

The other statement referred to by the hon. gentleman was in respect of
the Voodoo. I do know all Voodoo aircraft are equipped to carry either the
Falcon or Genie and they have a panel whereby they can as a matter of fact
carry both, as the hon. gentleman probably knows. I also stated earlier in my
testimony that R.C.A.F. aircraft would not be flying around in normal reconnais-
sance flights with the Genie missile. I am sure the same would be the case with
the aircraft in the United States air force inventory; they are only used under
emergency circumstances. The rules probably would be the same in the United
States as in Canada. But the fact is as I stated it, that the Voodoo aircraft are
equipped to carry the Genie rocket which is a nuclear rocket, and those in the
United States inventory are so equipped, and because the United States air
force has the weapons available they would have that defensive capacity.
Because the same planes in Canada do not have the weapons available they do
not have the similar capacity.

Mr. CHURCHILL: The minister cannot get out of it that easily. In answer to
the question:

Our policy has been to reduce the defensive fire power of the North
American continent by accepting the Voodoo and the Bomare.

he said that is a fair conclusion. I suggest it is not a fair conclusion and it is
an inaccurate statement, unless all the American Voodoos are armed with
nuclear weapons which I consider not to be the case from the information I
have in my possession.

Mr. HELLYER: As I stated, they all have nuclear weapons available and
would all use them in the case of emergency; that is, those under United States
control.

In respect of the further statement that you would like additional informa-
tion as to the types of aircraft available to North American Air Defence Com-
mand, I am sure you will be given that when this committee visits NORAD.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Why do we have to go to NORAD or somewhere else to get
the information; why can we not get the information right here?

Mr. HELLYER: You could, if it was considered essential; but it would be so
much more complete and educational for some members of the committee who
have not visited NORAD to go out there and see the North Amrican Air
Defence Command in action. I highly recommend that that course be followed.

Mr. CHURCHILL: This is a red herring, Mr. Chairman. The information
should be available right here. A great part of it has already been published
by NORAD press releases and from time to time in various United States
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magazines. Why do we have to visit NORAD or the bases in France, or any-
where else, in order to obtain information in respect of planes or anything?
The information should be here and in the hands of the minister.

Mr. HELLYER: If the hon. gentleman has this information from these other
sources, then I am surprised that he is asking to have it produced again in
this committee.

Mr. SmiTH: I have a question which leads directly out of the minister’s
answers in respect of the Voodoo. At the last hearing he answered a question
of mine concerning production of Voodoo fighters. This is on page 52 of the
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence:

I am not familiar with that evidence; I would presume the reason he

would not be considering them at the present time is that they are
no longer in production.

Is it not a fact, or would it not be a fact, that the reason they are no longer
in production is that the United States air force decided they do not need any
more of them? Is that not more the answer than the answer the minister
gave?

Mr. HELLYER: I do not think that is a proper and complete answer any
more than to say that—

Mr. SmatH: Would you like to give a proper and complete answer?

Mr. HELLYER: I think the answer is the reason they would not consider
more of them now is that there are no more available to them.

Mr. SmrtH: Would they not be available if they kept on manufacturing
them? If we need more rifles, do we not keep on making them?

Mr. HELLYER: That would be like saying if we need more aircraft, why
do we not acquire more Avro Arrows.

Mr. SmiTH: But these were planes which were in production for many
years; many hundreds of them were manufactured.

Mr. HELLYER: That is so.
Mr. SmitH: And they stopped manufacturing them.
Mr. HELLYER: That is correct.

Mr. SmrTH: Because the air force did not indicate they needed any more
of them.

Mr. HELLYER: They had fulfilled their requirements for the air force at
that time.

Mr. WincH: The Voodoo is no longer in production in the United States.
Is that not because they were declared obsolete by the air force of the United
States? Is it correct that the Voodoos supplied to Canada were second hand
machines which came from the United States squadrons to Canada because
they were being replaced by more modern aircraft in the same squadrons 1n
the United States?

Mr. HeLLYER: I will give what I believe to be the facts and if I am Wl";m?i'
Air Chief Marshal Miller may correct me. There had been a ’cwo—Wa%'J . f:d
arranged by the government of Canada and the government of thet ::d-—
States involving a number of aircraft for Canada and they were manufac Clilana =
for Canada’s requirements as part of the intergovernmental deal. When E
was slow in working out the details relating to the project, the planfe;"the
temporarily put in service in the United States and then withdrawn W %
transaction was completed. 3

Mr. WINCH: Then my information is correct; they did come from a United
States squadron.
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Mr. HELLYER: I think it is correct that they had been put in service in
the United States because the United States authorities were not sure if and
when the Canadian government would complete the transaction.

Mr. WincH: So we now have aircraft, the Voodoos, which are second hand
and declared obsolete in the United States.

Mr. HELLYER: I do not think that is a fair statement.

Mr. DEACHMAN: On another line of questioning, I would like to ask the
Air Chief Marshal and the minister if it is correct that when NATO was first
formed the NATO force was conceived in 1949 as a wholly conventional armed
force. Is that correct? That is to say, by being conventionally armed it did not
include any nuclear weapons in 1949 and was a defensive army for the defence
of the free world.

A.C.M. MiLLER: That is so; but I must say at that time that the technology
of weaponry was very much less developed than it is now; they did not have
a tactical atomic weapon.

Mr. DEacEMAN: In the roundest terms, can you tell us what they estimated
their first goal should be for the NATO forces, conceived as they would ulti-
mately see it in the technology of that day? Can you give it in respect of divi-
sions and the number of planes they expected to see in the air.

A.C.M. M1LLER: I think the minister quoted 90 to a 100 divisions as being
a target figure of the original requirements.

Mr. DEAcHMAN: And how many planes are in the air?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I do not have that figure.

Mr. DEACHMAN: Let us move to 1959; it was in 1959 that NATO decided
to accept tactical nuclear weapons. I think that was the year, and at the
meeting of that year.

A.C.M. M1LLER: No, it was much before that.

Mr. DEaAcHMAN: At what year then?

A.C.M. MirLer: I think it was 1954, but I am not sure.

.Mr. DeacsMAN: Could you tell us what the original force was in 1954,
or in the years immediately prior to that time? I am not talking about goals,
I am talking about the actual force in divisions.

A.C.M. MiLrer: I would like to make one point before I answer your
questls)n., -There are two figures used; one is the NATO-wide figure, the 90 to
100 fllVlSl_Ons; but when you narrow it down to central Europe, the figure
required is considerably smaller than that. I would say, therefore, there were
probably about 20 divisions in western Europe at that time, that is, 18 to 20.

Mr. DEAc_HMAm They had originally conceived of a conventional force of
90 to 100 which would be located in Europe.

i I?CM MILLER: You are comparing the 20 with about 50 odd, I would
ink.
Mr. DEACHMAN: Now, when you come to 1959 and 1960, and more modern

ti.m.es-, how many divisions were there, and what was the actual number of
divisions on the ground in Europe?

A.CM. MILLER: As of now?

Mr. DEACHMAN: Let us say as of now or within the last year or so.

A.CM. MILLER: The 28 figure was used by the minister.

Mr. DEACHMAN: So in realit
divisions of the 50 divisions that
forces on the ground?

A.CM. MiLLER: Where did the figure 12 come from?

Yy _We never really came any closer than 12
NATO would have required as conventional
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Mr. DEACHMAN: Excuse me, 22; we never were closer than 22 to this goal
that was originally conceived as 50 for Europe. But is it fair to say that it
had to be made up by the acceptance of tactical nuclear fire power, if we were
to defend Europe adequately?

A.C.M. MiLLER: That was a decision that was made in 1954 or 1955 in gen-
eral Gruenther’s time.

Mr. DEACHMAN: So it was really this reluctance or inability of the NATO
allies to put men on the ground that forced them into the acceptance of tactical
nuclear weapons as time went on in order to fill the gap in fire power which
they could not put up with conventional weapons in the hands of men on the
ground. Is that correct?

A.C.M. MiLLER: That is an over-simplification.

Mr. DEACHMAN: Perhaps over-simplified, but generally this is correct. Is
it also correct to say that you could triple NATO’S fire power, with nuclear
weapons far cheaper than you could triple NATO’S fire power with conventional
weapons?

A.CM. MiLLER: I would hesitate to comment on that, because I do not
know the economics of American weapon production.

Mr. DEACHMAN: Have tactical nuclear weapons been reduced to the point
where you have tactical nuclear weapons within the battalion today in Europe?

A.C.M. M1LLER: May I put it this way: there is a weapons available for
battalion use. It is a very controversial weapon and I am not sure whether there
are any in Europe at the moment.

Mr. WincH: I saw them in Europe.
A.C.M. MILLER: Then Mr. Winch is sure while I am not.

Mr. BREWIN: The implication of the question is that the doctrine of 1959
was that you had to make up for deficiencies in conventional forces by the
use of tactical nuclear weapons. That was the view in 1959 that you referred
to.

A.C.M. MiLLER: It was much earlier than that.

Mr. BREWIN: It started earlier than that, but is it not true that since that
time there has been grave disquiet in having to rely on tactical nuclear weapons,
and that a far more up-to-date doctrine is that it is extremely dangerous to
Europe as well as enhancing the danger of escalation to a full scale nuclear
war with these tactical nuclear weapons? Is that not the reason for the present
emphasis upon conventional weapons?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I think that if you look carefully at any of the com-
muniques that have been issued by the council, you will find they have put
equal emphasis on the two weapons; that is, they do not say that we do away
with tactical nuclear weapons, if you give us more conventional forces. They
would like—that is, the commanders would like—very much to ha\'re. very
considerable conventional forces in order to delay the use, or the dec1s1onbto
use atomic weapons; but they are facing this fact: you must always remember
that the Russians have a complete arsenal of these weapons as well, aani tlt 1s
a question of response to an attack. It is very hard to determine ahead of time
what you are going to do in response to a hypothetical attack. Wy

Mr. DEAcHMAN: Have you a ready comparison of the number of divisions
in the field, let us say, between 1959 and 1963?

A.C.M. MILLER: You say 1959 to 1963?

Mr. DEACHMAN: Or take any two years around that time if you can; take
four or five years back; how many divisions were in the field as compared to
now, in order to simplify it?
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A.C.M. M1LLER: The change that has taken place since 1959 is the re-arming
of Germany and the accretion to SACEUR of 12 German division—they are
not all on the line yet; but at the same time he lost French divisions when they
were diverted to North Africa and never returned to him—means that over
this period, since about 1957 until now, there has been an accretion to him
of about 8 divisions. To use figures rather loosely, it is of that order.

Mr. DEACHMAN: From the United Kingdom, Canada, and the United States
what increase has there been over that period? Could you give us round
figures on that?

A.C.M. MiLLEr: I would want to check on it.

Mr. DEAcHMAN: Do you think it is appreciable at all, or is it about the
same?

A.CM. MiLLER: It has increased.

Mr. DeacamaN: Is this in response to the desire of these countries to
maintain conventional forces which are necessary in Europe, as we have
heard them described here?

A.C.M. M1LLER: You will recall that at the time of the Berlin crisis a year
and a half ago there was considerable emphasis by the commanders to get
some more conventional forces into Europe. That was the result of one incident
which is reflected in this German build-up.

Mr. DeEaceaMAN: To what extent is Canada responsible for the number of
additional men that have been put into Europe over the past few years?

A.CM. MiLLER: We raised the brigade to full war strength at the time
of Berlin and it has remained as such since then.

Mr. MacInNis: Mr. Brewin brought up the question originally about the
imbalance between tactical nuclear weapons and conventional weapons, and
the air marshal stated that an attempt was made to bring about greater
balance. His original statement was about the imbalance between conventional
and nuclear weapons. Now then, this would mean of course that conventional
weaponry would be built up.

A few minutes later the minister came in and said it was desirable that
tactical nuclear weapons should be built up along with the conventional
Weapons. May I ask just where is the emphasis going to be placed?

In regard to a further statement of the minister, he used the word “su-
perior” which, I take it, he meant to apply to the potential enemy. As I recall
it he said “superior land forces”. This does not appear to me to be the type
of statement any minister of defence should be making to indicate to this
committee that our own NATO forces are inferior in any way, shape or form.

Mr. HELLY{ER: I used the word “superior” there in terms of magnitude—
firepower, ngt in connection with the competency of our troops. I would not
want any misunderstanding about that.

Mr.. MAacINNIS: Are you speaking then of tactical nuclear weapons or
conventional?

Mr. HELLYER: I was speaking of their conventional land army.

Mr. MACINNIS: Then is it not proper that we should follow the course

set fortl_l by the Air Chief Marshal, which NATO countries decided, that the
conventional weapons should be built up?

_ Mr. HELLYER: The NATO council has urged that force goals be met which
include the building up of both conventional and nuclear strength. I think,
as the Air Chief Marshal indicated earlier, that certainly one of the consider-
ations of the review now taking place is a reassessment of the balance.

Mr. MacInnis: Yes, but he also indicated it was desirable that the conven-
tional weapons be brought more in balance with the tactical nuclear weapons.
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Having in mind the statements which have emanated from Washington on
many occasions, that at no time did the Americans intend to be the first to push
the button to start a nuclear war, is it not desirable, as indicated by the Air
Chief Marshal, that conventional weapons get much more consideration than
they have been getting, and not, as you stated, a further build-up of both
tactical nuclear weapons and conventional?

Mr. HELLyER: I think this will become clearer once the present NATO
review is complete, which goes into strategy first, and once it has been fully
defined or redefined for NATO as an alliance, then the forces necessary to
meet that strategy and the best utilization of resources will become more
clearly defined.

Mr. MacInnis: It already has been indicated to this committee that the
NATO countries had decided, after investigation into this matter, to build up
the conventional weapons to bring them more in balance with the nuclear
weapons. .

Mr. HELLYER: No; I think it has been made clear there is in the present force
goals requirement for a build up in both the nuclear tactical weapons and
conventional strength.

Mr. MacInnis: This is what I am trying to bring to your attention. In reply
to Mr. Brewin’s original question I understood the answer to the committee was
to the effect that they are making an attempt to build up the conventional
weapons in order to bring them into balance, but you are telling us this is not
the case; that they are going to concentrate on building both, and the imbalance
is going to remain.

Mr. HELLYER: I do not know if the word “balance” is the right word—

Mr. MaAcInnis: That is the word that was used in the committee.

Mr. HELLYER: —in connection with supplementing the capacity they have
in both areas.

Mr. MacInNnis: So much for that suggestion, Mr. Chairman, but I should like
for a moment to discuss a subject introduced to this committee by Mr. Lloyd in
regard to the frigate program and statements made by the minister.

As one member of this committee I shall not forget statements made,
certainly in respect of the frigate program, which involve changes very detri-
mental to the city of Halifax and the maritime provinces in general. I am not in
favour of decisions being made, such as has been suggested by the minister,
without regard to representations by his own member for Halifax and other
members from the maritime provinces.

Mr. HELLYER: That is not the situation at all. I am sure I will receive repre-
sentations from yourself as well as many other members.

Mr. MacInnts: I am referring to those decisions which the minister has
indicated he is going to make.

Mr. HeLLYER: I did not indicate what decision was to be made. I said it was
a program to be reviewed, and unlike some of my friends I believe the review
should be completed before a judgment is given. s

Mr. MacInnis: I have reference to a statement made by the mm}Stel‘ last
week, and I should like to remind him that my memory is not and will not be
as short as he suggests. Statements were made on the west coast in regard to
cutting back this program. I think the members of this committee should have
ample opportunity to examine any move in that direction, and I feel I have the
support of Mr. Lloyd in this respect.

per. Lroyp: Mr}.’ Chairman, iXI: view of the fact that my name has been brought
into this discussion and some allusions made regarding a comment 3§ pgve made,
I should like to make a statement which I trust will make my position abun-
dantly clear, albeit it will reveal my lack of understanding of the procedures
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of the House of Commons and my lack of understanding and experience regard-
ing the operations of committees of this House of Commons.

As events are taking place in this committee at this time, Mr. Chairman, I
think the time has arrived for the steering committee to review that trend of
events.

I have considerable difficulty in reconciling the democratic processes of
appraising the effectiveness, scope and necessity of our role in collective policy
of security with our allies and with the need for security in our defensive policy.
It seems to me on the one hand we have a job to do as a committee in appraising
the performance of those charged by the Canadian government with the respon-
sibility in this field, and on the other hand, in pursuing our inquiries, we must
be certain that we always recognize that we are dealing with a potential enemy
which has a one party system but does not have defence committees such as
this committee.

It would seem to me, Mr. Chairman, there is great urgency for the steering
committee to reconcile our position so as to more properly define the functions
of this committee, and to reconcile the need for security with democratic
processes, with which I am gravely concerned.

One has only to pick up a copy of the Financial Post, a newspaper which
has nothing to do with defence, in order to read a statement made by Mr.
McNamara which may lead those of us with perhaps some inclination toward
economics to believe that Mr. McNamara was under some pressure to have
the European countries adopt an increasing share of the cost of these col-
lective defences because of the improvement in their economies derived from
the establishment of the NATO shield against aggression in these countries.

It may be that we are going backwards, but it would seem to me that
we should examine the facts and receive some guidance regarding the basic
collective policy of NATO countries.

Mr. WincH: That is the reason I suggested we should go to Colorado
Springs.

Mr. Lroyp: I am not disagreeing with that suggestion, but I do think we
should examine the basic collective policy and then make a proper appraisal,
give guidance and make constructive recommendations to the minister in
respect of the frigate program. When policies of defence become a matter of
chief concern to us in regard to policies of government economics, those two
things have to be reconciled.

I have no preconceived notions, Mr. Chairman, as to what the defensive
policy ought to be. I do know that one of the greatest evils of our time is the
destruction of confidence, and this is the thing which we must be very careful
not to do in this committee. What we need to do is to have these briefings
first SO as to inspire confidence in the men to whom we have delegated re-
sponsibility, and then come back with more knowledgeable questions on the
proble'ms which confront us. I do not want to see this committee become a
committee fighting old political battles. I would like to see it performing a
useful role in Canada’s defence policy.

The CHATRMAN: May I interrupt you, Mr. Lloyd? At the beginning of this
committee meeting we adopted precisely the proposals you are speaking about.

Mr. Lroyp: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman. I was at the organization meeting
of the Banking and Commerce Committee and I came here as quickly as
possible.

The CHAIRMAN: The committee has already adopted this line of policy.

Mr. LaNIEL: Mr. Chairman, I am wondering what would happen in the
case of an emergency; would the NATO force undertake complete military
control of the areas involved, or are these countries prepared, or planning to
undertake, some of their own defence? Is there any coordination here, and
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is it considered as supplementary to the conventional forces available which
are counted on in case of an attack, or are they only concerned with their
civilian defence?

A.C.M. MiLLER: I think, as a general rule, the whole of the military forces
in western Europe are NATO forces.

Mr. LanieL: All of them?

A.C.M. MiLLer: Either assigned as Canadian forces or earmarked to be
turned over to the NATO command in a certain state of emergency?

Mr. LANIEL: As reserve?

A.C.M. M1LLER: No, as front line forces available to the NATO commander
to defend his area.

Mr. LANIEL: Which means that these countries do not have forces outside
those committed to NATO, besides administration?

A.C.M. MiLLER: The forces that are in western Europe will be under the
command of the NATO commander in an emergency.

Mr. Groos: I would like to apologize, Mr. Chairman, for skipping in and
out of this meeting, but I was trying to attend two meetings at once.

I have a question for the minister. I notice that the minister’s statement
the other day set forth very clearly what Canada’s commitments are to NATO,
NORAD and the United Nations, but in it there was no mention of the purely
Canadian or national responsibility. I am sure you will agree, Mr. Hellyer, that
Canada’s interests are not always those of other allies, and one example I am
thinking of now particularly is Canada’s position in the Arctic where, over the
past few years, our nuclear engined submarine has made it possible for nations
which have these craft to operate there all year round under and through the
ice. Canada cannot do so, and our sovereignty in that area may very well be
suffering. I understand that in the past few years both the United States and
the U.S.S.R. have been using our Arctic waters as an all year round thorough-
fare. It would be helpful for the work of this committee, Mr. Hellyer, if you
could give us your views on the purely national responsibilities on defence.

Mr. HELLYER: Yes, Mr. Groos. The reason it was not included in the pre-
liminary statement was the magnitude of the different tasks we have had to
undertake in relation to our own country, and I wanted to deal with our
international obligations which are of primary importance to us but which are,
by no means, the whole of our responsibility and of our capacity.

In the service briefs that you will be getting they deal quite extensively
with both the problems and capability that our forces have available for various
national tasks, and they will explain quite exhaustively what they do and h.OW
they do it. I think the forces will give you most of the information you require,
although it may pose some questions, such as the one you have in mind, in
respect to a particular policy.

Mr. MATHESON: When we are given some assistance from the army, WP‘{ld
it be possible, in light of the fact that there was no information in the minis-
ter’s statement, to have some comment with regard to the role of the militia.
I think this is of great interest.

Mr. HELLYER: If you do not mind, I think it might be best if you hearhwtha};
the army has to say about the militia and its accepted role, and after t %'t'l
there is a question in your mind whether or not this is the best use of l:nl.l 1a
and whether any changes in policy should be discussed, we would then be In a
position to discuss them. ;

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is now after half past twelve, and this meet-
ing stands adjourned until Tuesday morning at 10.30.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuUESDAY, July 9, 1963
(5)

The Special Committee on Defence met at 10:40 a.m. this day. The Chair-
man Mr. Maurice Sauvé presided.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grice), Béchard,
Brewin, Churchill, Deachman, Fairweather, Granger, Groos, Hahn, Lambert,
Laniel, Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean), Lloyd, MacLean, Martineau, Matheson,
McMillan, Patterson, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, Winch,—(22).

In attendance: Honourable Paul Hellyer, Minister of National Defence;
Honourable Lucien Cardin, Associate Minister of National Defence; and Vice-
Admiral H. S. Rayner, D.S.C. and Bar, Chief of Naval Staff.

The Chairman of the Committee stated that Mr. Hellyer, the Minister of
National Defence, would be in attendance later in the sitting.

Admiral Rayner was introduced and he presented a prepared statement to
the Committee. During that presentation a number of slides were shown; some
of those slides are included in the evidence at the point of initial reference.

Mr. Hellyer and Admiral Rayner answered questions relating to Naval
equipment and Defence.

Mr. Brewin, a member of the Committee, raised a question respecting cer-
tain published statements; he asked that the Steering Committee inquire into
these statements.

The Chairman announced that these and other matters would be considered
by the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure at 2:00 p.m., today.

At 12:35 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 10:30 a.m. on Thursday,
July 11, 1963.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

TuESDAY, July 9, 1963

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I see a quorum.

The CHAIRMAN: This morning, as was agreed last week, we have as a
witness Vice-Admiral H. S. Rayner, chief of the naval staff. There will be a
presentation with the use of slides.

The Minister will be here at 11:30 to answer questions relative to the field
of policy and the vice-admiral will answer technical questions.

We will now proceed with the showing of the slides and the presentation
by the Admiral.

Vice-Admiral H. S. RAYNER, (D.S.C. and Bar, C.D., R.C.N., Chief of the
Naval Staff): Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, it is a great privilege
for me to appear before you and discuss with you some matters of particular
interest underlying the purpose and tasks of the navy, the R.C.N. as it is today,
including current ship construction programmes, the strength of the navy, and
naval expenditure in recent years.

THREAT

To view the R.C.N. requirements in perspective, it is essential to have a
good understanding of the maritime threat which has to be countered.

I will review this briefly for you under three main aspects any of which
could affect possible R.C.N. operations and, therefore, the forces we should
have. These are:

1. Soviet submarine force—the dominant maritime threat,
2. Soviet long range aviation as a maritime threat; and
3. Soviet fishing fleet activities in the western Atlantic.

SOVIET SUBMARINE FORCE

Russia has and is continuing to build and modernize the largest submarine
fleet the world has ever seen.

It has a capability of: (a) missile attack; (b) torpedo attack; (¢) mine
laying.

This fleet is estimated to include over 400 submarines of which over 20
are nuclear powered. It is anticipated that as the numbers of nuclear boats
increase, the numbers of conventional submarines will decrease over the next
few years. Also it follows that increased numbers of nuclear submarines will
greatly increase the power of the Russian submarine force.

SoviET LONG RANGE AIR THREAT

On Tuesday, June 4, 1963, six Russian jet bombers flew a reconnalssance
mission over a U.S.N. task force northeast of Japan. This is an exarpple of
Russian long range aircraft being employed on distant overseas reconnaissance.
These forays have taken place far out into the Atlantic as well as in the Pacific,
thus demonstrating that these aircraft have the range and capability of operat-
ing over the greater part of these oceans. Such aircraft are equipped with
stand-off weapons which could be used against any maritime forces.

817
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SoviET FISHING FLEET

Russia operates a very large and well-disciplined fishing fleet off the east
coast of Canada. In 1962 there were about 550 trawlers and supply vessels at
the peak of the fishing season. The numbers have varied from year to year and
during the course of the year. The presence of a force of this size, in modern
well found ships must be considered a potential menace in time of crisis or
hostilities.

Furthermore, some of these vessels are well-equipped for the support or
cover of a number of activities of a military nature. Their very physical
presence would greatly hinder anti-submarine operations.

Those then are the main aspects of the maritime threat against which the
Canadian naval plans and programmes should be viewed.

In recent years there has been much evidence that the Soviet Union has
become keenly aware of the maritime nature of global geography. Historically
content, to think and act, primarily as a land power, within the confines of
Europe and Asia, Russia today is reaching out over the oceans. It is abundantly
clear that the U.S.S.R. has recognized the economic and political importance of
the oceans.

You will recall that last year the Soviet Union attempted to establish a
missile base in Cuba. However, before her preparations could be completed, a
naval quarantine was imposed by the United States. Russian ships, laden with
strategic weapons and materials, were forced to alter course and not proceed to
their destination. Once again it was clearly shown that prior to establishing a
military base overseas, it is essential to be assured of the unrestricted use of
the seas.

The Soviets, have also been concentrating on their merchant marine which
in the last decade has doubled in tonnage and now totals 4,000,000 tons. There
are indications that they plan to triple this tonnage by 1967. Their efforts in
oceanographic research have accelerated in an ever widening geographic cover-
age. Three of their ships were in Halifax in late April to replenish prior to
returning to their work in the Gulf Stream a few hundred miles south of Nova
Scotia.

To give you a general idea of the comparison between the water and land
masses which cover the earth, it is of interest to note that the high seas cover
approximately 140 million square miles in contrast to about 52 million square
miles occupied by land areas and inland waters. In other words, 70 per cent of
the earth’s surface is water.

This picture of the earth was taken from a range of 25,000 miles in space,
with Tafhiti being the island in the centre. The distance from Tahiti to Van-
S 5,000 miles and to Sydney, Australia, 4,000 miles.

Plying the trade routes of the world over this vast ocean area on any given
day,'there are about 18,000 ships of over 1,000 tons at sea, while another 11,000
are in l}arbours around the world. During 1962, 141,183 vessels engaged in
international or coastwise shipping arrived at Canadian ports and loaded or
unloaded approxi'me.xtely 102 million tons of international cargo.

Another statistic which is of interest in illustrating our dependence on the
sea is that 96 per c-ent of the world’s principal cities and over 50 per cent of
the world’s population are located within 250 miles of the sea or on less than
5 per cent of the land mass.

We live close to the sea because the sea is important to us—for food, for
commerce and transportation.
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THE Purrose oF THE R.C.N.

How important is the sea to Canada?

Our shores are washed by three oceans and our coast lines total 19,100
miles. This, together with our large overseas trade, makes the sea tremen-
dously important to us.

In this connection I would like to quote from a pre-Confederation speech
given by Thomas D’Arcy McGee in a New Brunswick town, in 1864—

He said:

I rejoice, moreover, that we men of insular origin are about to
recover one of our lost senses—the sense that comprehends the sea—
that we are not about to subside into a character so foreign to all our
antecedents, that of a mere inland people. The union of the provinces
restores us to the ocean, takes us back to the Atlantic, and launches
us once more on the modern Mediterranean, the true central sea of
the western world.

Our geographical and political situation has inspired and encouraged a
reasonably steady growth of the navy over the years since it was first
established in 1910, more or less keeping step with the expansion of the
country.

I have been asked by all sorts of people from members of parliament to
boy scouts, what is the purpose of the navy?

We define the purpose of the R.C.N.:

To ensure that Canada in cooperation with allied and friendly
nations will have unrestricted use of the seas in peace and war. Please
note the words “in cooperation with allied and friendly nations”.

THE RoLE oF THE R.C.N.

Some form of collective security is essential for Canada. In thinking of
the part or role that the navy has to play we assume that, in time of emergency,
in addition to operating with the air force and the army, the R.C.N. will also
operate in conjunction with allied navies. In principle and in practice, this has
already been well established by the setting up of integrated R.C.N.-R.C.A.F.
maritime commands at Halifax and Esquimalt and by frequent exercises
with NATO maritime forces. It has been agreed, that the role of the R.C.N.
is to support Canada’s external policy and defence policy through the provi-
sion of versatile naval forces.

These forces must have the capability to act as shown on the slide:
(a) defend Canada’s interests against attack from the sea;

(b) meet Canada’s commitments to collective security arrangements;
for example, to NATO and to Canada-US defence arrangements.
We have agreed to provide to the Supreme Allied Commander,
Atlantic, known as SACLANT, on an alert, 1 A/S carrier and 29
A/S escorts, and to the CAN-US region of NATO—14 A/S escorts
and 10 minesweepers, for a total NATO commitment of 1 A/S
carrier, 43 A/S escorts and 10 minesweepers. In view of the mag-
nitude of the submarine threat it is clear that a strong integrated
NATO A/S force is very definitely part of the over-all deterrent.
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(c) contribute to other external undertakings, e.g. to UN operations,
(Korea and Suez).

(d) support the Canadian Army in actions arising out of (b) and (c);
and

(e) contribute to the maintenance of Canadian sovereignty in the Arctic.

OPERATIONAL TAsks oF THE R.C.N.

Arising from the role, the tasks of the R.C.N. have been listed as shown:—
(a) to defend sea lines of communication through control, escort and
convoy of shipping;
(b) to detect, locate and destroy enemy submarines;

(c) to contribute to early warning of attack launched from over, on or
under the sea; s

(d) to patrol the coastal areas and approaches to Canadian waters;

(e) to keep Canadian ports, anchorages and approaches free of mines;

(f) to provide logistic support for the fleet both afloat and ashore;

(g) to transport, land and support Canadian army contingents as re-
quired;

(h) to provide mobile command and base facilities for external under-
takings;

(i) to carry out and support operations in the Arctic.

In addition, the R.C.N. must be ready to:

(a) assist in survival operations—this is an additional task of the
21 naval divisions which are established across Canada;

(b) assistant in maritime search and rescue operations.

As regards the first task (a):

The principal threat to sea communications is the submarine and as you
know the R.C.N. has specialized in anti-submarine warfare ever since the
advent of NATO.

Most of the foregoing tasks are wartime tasks. The principal employment
of the fleet in peacetime is to prepare to carry out its mission in war or in an
emergency. In line with Canada’s increasing interests on virtually all continents,
there arises the necessity for the navy to be familiar with differing conditions
arounq the world. This is mandatory if our ships are to be ready to undertake
ope_ratlonal tasks, in any part of the world, including army support operations.
It is also clearly desirable that, in conjunction with sea training, the ships
should be available, during visits to foreign ports, to assist the Department of
External Aﬁairs and the Department of Trade and Commerce in projecting
abroacl_ a sincere and well-rounded image of Canada. In this connection, the
following are some of the visits carried out by Canadian ships from the east
coast during 1962; Kingston, Jamaica and Trinidad for independence day cele-
brations; Accra (Ghana) and Lagos (Nigeria) for Canadian trade fairs; Am-
sterdam, Rotterda.m}, Wilhelmshaven and Dublin. In the same year ships from
the west coast visited Singapore, Rangoon, Colombo, Trincomalee (Ceylon),
Port Swettenham (Malaya), Bangkok (Siam), Hong Kong and Yokosuka
(Japan) in conjunction with a commonwealth naval exercise in the Indian ocean.

| Opportunities are welcomed to visit foreign countries to fit in with training
cruises and exercises. We carry out most of our international exercises with
NATO forces, but we also exercise with the United States navy and the royal
navy and also with other commonwealth forces. Advantage was taken during

the recent visit of French fleet units to exercise with the French ships off Nova
Scotia in the middle of June.
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THE R.C.N. Topay

To meet the role and to carry out the tasks that I have listed, the R.C.N.
consists of one A/S aircraft carrier, 43 anti-submarine escorts, 10 minesweepers,
and a variety of support and auxiliary craft. These ships are based as follows:

EAST COAST - RCN Ships and Aircr aft

V$880 — TRACKERS

1 CARRIER  Hs50 - HELICOPTERS

ST. LAURENT, RESTIGOUCHE
11 DDES - 4Nb McKENZIE CLASSES

8 TRIBAL CLASS DDEs
10 FRIGATES FFE

1 - Carrier
29 - Escorts
for SACLANT

Hllﬂlllllllll'lllllllllllllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIICIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIlllllllllllllmlmlmlmllnl|||||l||||||||||||||||||||||||m||||||||||mll||llllmlmllm|||l|l|l|||llllllllll|lll|lllllulllllllllllIllIIlIIIlllllllllllllllmlllllllllllllllllll
6 MINESWEEPERS for CUSRPG
B

3 RN SUBMARINES on loan

1 FLEET REPLENISHMENT SHIP
1 MAINTENANCE REPAIR SHIP

II|IIl|IIlIIIIIIIIIIII!IlIlI|lllIlllllIIlIIHIlIlIlImlIlIIIlIlIIIIIIlIIIIIIII||IIIIIIIIIIIIIIilllIIIIIIIIIllllillllﬂlIIIIII|lIIIllIllIIIIIIIlllIHllIIlIImIllIllIIIII|I|||IIIIHIIIIIII|H

VX 10 - EXPERIMENTAL SQUADRON
VU 32 - TRAINING AND UTILITY SQUADRON
HU 21 - HELICOPTER UTILITY SQUADRON

On the east coast we have:
1 Aircraft carrier with a squadron of tracker aircraft and a squadron of
helicopters embarked

11 Destroyer escorts of the St. Laurent, Restigouche and Mackenzie classes
8 Tribal class destroyer escorts
10 frigates

6 minesweepers

3 royal naval submarines on loan

1 fleet replenishment ship

1 maintenance repair ship

3 squadrons of aircraft shore-based at naval air station Dartmouth
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WEST COAST - RCN Ships and Aircraft

ST. LAURENT AND
7 DDES  McKENZIE CLASSES

7 FRIGATES FFE DD
4 MINESWEEPERS MSC

1 SUBMARINE
1 MAINTENANCE REPAIR SHIP

VU33 - UTILITY SQUADRON

On the west coast we have:

destroyer escorts of the St. Laurent and Mackenzie classes
frigates

minesweepers

submarine

maintenance repair ship

squadron of aircraft shore-based at Patricia Bay

el e I |

I would like to show you these various types of ships and aircraft by classes.

First, the aircraft carrier, HMCS Bonaventure, a 20,000 ton ship, was
commissioned in Belfast in 1957 and carries up to 18 CS2F or tracker aircraft
and up to 6 helicopters. Both types of aircraft are used in the anti-submarine
warfare role. She is essentially an anti-submarine ship for use in hunter/killer
or convoy defence operations. But she could be quickly converted for temporary
use as an army troop transport and support vessel. Bonaventure is expected to
remain 1n service until the mid 1970’s.

You will recall that last September while Bonaventure was on passage to
European Watgrs for a NATO exercise she played an important part in an air-
sea rescue incident, when an American plane loaded with U.S. servicemen, and
their dependents went down in the Atlantic off Ireland.

Next we turn to the escorts. These can be divided into three main categories;
the older type destroyers of world war II vintage, such as the Tribal Class;
then the new types, the St Laurent, Restigouche and Mackenzie Class destroyer
escorts and lastly the frigates, smaller and slower, which, once again, are older
wartime built ships.

But first, before showing you photographs of the escorts I would like to
give you a brief explanation of the anti-submarine equipment and weapons used
by ships.
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The device used by ships for detecting, and tracking submarines up to the
moment of attack is sonar which is an abbreviation of the phrase ‘“sound
navigation and ranging”. This slide shows the sound waves from a transmitter
in the bottom of the ship, travelling out in ever widening circles. When these
waves strike an object such as a submarine an “echo” travels back to a receiver
in the ship. Electronic devices compute the bearing and range of the object and
display and record this information in the ship. A fire control computer cal-
culates when the anti-submarine weapons should be fired and fires them.

The next slide shows the variable depth sonar or VDS, a Canadian develop-
ment. With this device the sonar transmitter and receiver can be suspended
hundreds of feet below the ship on a cable, well away from surface noises. The
depth selected is that below the area where sudden temperature changes occur
in the water and produce a “temperature layer’”, which bends and distorts the
sound waves in the same way that a mirror bends light waves.

The submarine can be attacked with one of two ship borne weapons; a
pattern of depth bombs, or with a torpedo which homes onto or seeks out the
submarine.

This slide shows an artist’s conception of a ship hitting a submarine with
a pattern of three depth bombs which are fired from a mortar on board.

This next slide depicts a torpedo, which could be fired from a ship or
dropped by an aircraft, searching for the submarine after a straight run from
the ship, and finally homing onto the submarine.

In both cases the artist is clearly on the side of the ship.

To return to the escorts.

This slide shows a Tribal class destroyer. There are eleven ships of this
type which were built during and shortly after world war II. They are equipped
with guns for use against surface and air targets and also shore bombardment.
They also have good antisubmarine equipment and weapons. Thus they are
versatile ships with a good general purpose capability. But, after distinguished
service, they are rapidly wearing out and should be phased out completely
by 1970.

Next we have the St Laurent class destroyer escort. These ships entered
service in 1955 and there are seven of them. This was the first Canadian-designed
A/S ship.

In recent months there has been quite a lot of public speculation about
the capability of our modern destroyer escorts the St Laurent’s and their succes-
sors. The sailors nicknamed these ships “Cadillacs” when they first joined the
fleet, not only because of their cost but because they were the best and latest
of their kind.

What is their potential to-day? Are they up-to-date? This is important
because these ships, the St Laurent’s, and their successors the Restigouche’s
and the Mackenzie’s, a total of twenty, will form the backbone of our A/S
surface forces for several years ahead.

The seven St Laurent’s were designed in 1949 and completed from 1955
onwards: The seven Restigouche’s and six Mackenzie’s, which followed, were
both designed in 1956 but the basic design was the St Laurent. The Restigouche’s
were completed between 1958 and 1960 and the Mackenzie’s, which are essen-
tially repeat Restigouche’s, are just being completed now. Three Mackenzie’s
have bee_n’com_mlssloned and the class will be completed in 1964. The last two
Mackenzie’s will be a great advance on the 18 earlier ships for reasons which
I will come to.

: These 20 ships are all highly specialized antisubmarine vessels. They were
designed to destroy the modern conventional submarine. As you might expect

they .are a great. advancs. o 2anything we had in world war II, but so is the
modern conventional submarine, )
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But the really significant advance in naval warfare was the advent of
the nuclear submarine Nautilus in 1957, to be followed by the Polaris submarines
in 1960. These events changed matters almost overnight. Instead of having to
deal with submarines with fairly high submerged speeds, but very limited
endurance underwater, navies are now faced with the problem of hunting
submarines, with very high submerged speeds, greater diving depth and
sustained underwater endurance. In fact, so far as the nuclear submarine
herself is concerned, she can stay under the water for months on end. For-
tunately for us, at the present time there are comparatively few of these boats
at sea, but many more will undoubtedly come.

One of the most urgent military problems confronting the west—and for
that matter the east also—is the problem of defence against the nuclear
submarine armed with long range missiles—or indeed against any nuclear
submarine.

Our present destroyer escorts have a very limited capability against
nuclear submarines, but they are first class against conventional submarines
which as you have heard constitute the vast majority of submarines in the
Russian fleet today.

However, what are we doing about defence against the nuclear submarine?

Much research and development has been done and continues. Although
the problem is a long way from being solved, there are promising developments
and some good hardware has been produced. In Canada we have developed
variable depth sonar which provides more reliable detection at increased
ranges. This device is being fitted in the last two Mackenzie’s, which I mentioned
earlier. The 7 St Laurent escorts are also being converted to carry variable
depth sonar.

At the same time as they are being equipped with variable depth sonar,
our destroyer escorts are being given landing platforms and the facilities
for operating helicopters, which will carry both sonar and weapons. This is an
important Canadian concept, the idea of operating a large, all-weather, A/S
helicopter, equipped with both sonar weapons from a destroyer escort. The
Sikorsky HSS-2’s are on order and the first was accepted for trials in May.
Thesa helicopters will be much faster than nuclear submarines. This destroyer
escort helicopter combination will normally work as a unit.

Here is an artist’s impression of a converted St Laurent. The first ship
of this class to be converted is the Assiniboine who will complete her conver-
sion this month and will commence helicopter trials in October on the east coast.
These will be extensive trials lasting at least six months. She will be joined
by the converted St Laurent herself in early 1964. It is planned to complete the
conversion of 7 St Laurent’s by the end of 1965.

Finally, we have the slowest of the escorts, the Prestonian class frigates.
There are seventeen of them. They are smaller than the destroyer escorts and
much less complex. They have an ASW capability against conventional sub-
marines and a twin four-inch gun which gives them a surface-to-surface
capability. Like the tribals these ships are rapidly reaching the end of their
economical lives.

The R.C.N. also has in commission ten Canadian built coastal minesweepers.

The life expectancy of these ships when certain improvements have been
made is estimated to be in the mid 70’s.

SUBMARINES

Turning from surface ships to undersea craft, the R.C.N. requires sub-
marines for training R.C.N. and R.C.A.F. antisubmarine forces and also for use
in antisubmarine operations.
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Experience in other navies has shown that submarines themselves are very
effective in the detection and destruction of other submarines. The submarines
required for this antisubmarine role are specially fitted for the task and carry
long range detection devices. Carrying these devices deep into the ocean and
away from the surface noise and weather, the antisubmarine can hover silently
and listen out for an enemy. It has the capability of detecting other submarines
many miles away and it is thus an important member of the antisubmarine
team.

Antisubmarine warfare must be a team effort. This, together with the
conditions of wind, weather, ice, and the vastness of the sea which surrounds
Canada, dictates that ideally our antisubmarine force should be a comprehensive
antisubmarine team consisting of ships, submarines, aircraft and fixed installa-
tions. The addition of submarines to our present maritime forces would improve
and diversify our antisubmarine capability. It would also greatly increase the
overall operational effectiveness of our forces and improve the operational train-
ing of the crews. Our surface and air A/S forces require constant practice with
submarines to achieve a high state of training.

At present this training requirement is partially met on the east coast by
the loan of three submarines from the R.N. two of which are normally on
station while the other is undergoing refit; and on the west coast by the loan
of one submarine from the U.S.N.
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The loan agreement between the British Admiralty and the R.C.N. requires
that we pay operational and maintenance costs and provide some of the per-
sonnel to man the three east coast submarines. The agreement has been in effect
since 1955 and has provided much of the live submarine practice on the east
coast. These R.N. submarines which are coming to the end of their operational
lives, are unlikely to be available after 1966 or 1967, and the Admiralty is not
planning to replace them.

In the case of the submarine Grilse on the west coast, she is on loan for
five years from the U.S.N. and is completely manned by R.C.N. personnel.

AIRCRAFT IN THE R.C.N.

To complete the picture of R.C.N. A/S vehicles we should now look at
carrier aircraft, and here is a CS2F or tracker.

We have 72 of these modern fixed-wing A/S aircraft, up to 18 of which
are carried in the Bonaventure. The remainder are shore-based, where some
are employed for advanced operational training, and others are available as
back up for the carrier. The trackers carry submarine detection equipment and
anti-submarine torpedoes.

HSS-2 HELICOPTER

This is the HSS-2 helicopter using its dunking sonar. Dunking or dlppm.g
sonar is the name given to the helicoper’s submarine detection devxc_e. It is
similar in principle to the variable depth sonar which I described earlier.

29149-2—23
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The HSS-2 is the latest A/S helicopter, and was designed in the United
States specifically for A/S operations. It is an all-weather helicopter and in
addition to its dunking sonar for the detection of submarines it carries anti-
submarine torpedoes for the attack.

Six of these helicopters will be carried in Bonaventure and one will be
carried on each of the converted St. Laurent class destroyer escorts. Three
CHSS-2s have recently been supplied to the R.C.N.
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AFLOAT LOGISTIC SUPPORT

A description of the fleet would be incomplete without a few words on
afloat logistic support. NATO nations are individually responsible for the logistic
support of the forces they provide to the alliance.

Any maritime force should have afloat support facilities, for maximum
operational effectiveness, flexibility and mobility. Wherever our combatant
ships are to be found, and whatever they are doing, there must be satisfactory
arrangements for their replenishment with fuel, ammunition and stores, and
also for maintenance and repair facilities. Ideally this support should be afloat,
and move to a distant area with the combatant ships. Afloat logistic support is

also a very satisfactory means of dispersing stores and facilities from our
shore bases.

We now have two Cape class maintenance repair ships, which although old
and slow, are adequate for their purpose. A new fleet replenishment ship,
H.M.C.S. Provider, is almost completed and will enter service this year.

Aside from their normal role of replenishment and repair these vessels,
particularly the Cape class, possess a good capability for carrying army troops
and their equipment.

This slide shows a fleet replenishment ship like the Provider performing
one of her main functions. The Provider will be able to replenish at speeds
up to 20 knots and will carry fuel oil, diesel fuel, avgas, ammunition, spare
helicopters, and dry stores.

The Provider is a large ship, 22,000 tons, 551 feet in length, a beam of
76 feet and a draught of 30 feet. She will have a top speed of 20 knots and
a crew of 159. She is being built in Lauzon, Quebec.

Another interesting vessel under construction in Esquimalt, British Colum-
bia, is this research ship. She will be operated on the Pacific Coast by the navy,
as required by the Pacific naval laboratory for the defence research board.

She will be 235’ long, 38’ beam and displace 1,600 tons. She will have a
diesel-electric drive, be very quiet up to 6 knots and have a top speed of
16 knots. She will have a long endurance, so 60 days of refrigerated storage
is being provided, and she is also being stabilized. She will have accommodation
for 12 scientists and a crew of 26.

REPLACEMENT OF OVERAGE SHIPS

Gentlemen, I have described very briefly the existing fleet and the ships
under construction. As I mentioned, the nine tribal class destroyers and seven-
teen frigates are rapidly reaching the stage where it is becoming uneconomical
to keep them in commission for much longer. Two tribals and one frigate have
already been replaced by three Mackenzie class escorts.

~Between now and 1970, the remaining 26 ships will reach their normal age
limit. Our present commitment of 43 escorts is being met by 17 post-war
St Laurent type escorts and the 26 older ships.

;n adt.iition to the 3 overage ships that have already been replaced, a further
3 ships will be replaced by the last 3 Mackenzie’s which will be completed by
next year. In order to maintain our commitment at its present level it will be
necessary to continue the replacement program to provide modern units.

In this connection, I would like again to refer to the need in the R.C.N.
for submarines to train I}/S ships and aircraft. SACLANT has indicated that
ocean-going A/S submarines acquired by the R.C.N. to train our A/S forces,
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could also be counted toward NATO force goals, in the ratio of one submarine
to one anti-submarine escort. It is for this reason, that we regard submarines
as replacement vessels. Approval in principle was given last year for the
purchase of three conventional submarines of the Oberon class, subject to
satisfactory negotiations with Britain.

SHIP REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME
RCN REQUIREMENT - 43 SHIPS

5 e

9 TRIBALS

S|

17

7 ST. LAURENTS
7 RESTIGOUCHE

3 MackKENZIES

This slide shows an Oberon Submarine. These are the latest conventional
ocean-going A/S submarines. They would serve us well for up to 20 years
for training and also for several years for A/S operations.

GENERAL PURPOSE FRIGATE

In March 1962, the government approved the construction of 8 general
purpose frigates as part of the ship replacement program. These ships‘ would
be somewhat larger than the present destroyer escorts, and would give the
fleet the versatility which the tribal destroyers have provided in the past.
They would have an anti-submarine capability. They would introduce for the
first time into the R.C.N., surface-to-air guided missile systems f'or anti-air
defence. In addition, the ships would carry a general purpose hellgqpter and
a gun with a good surface-to-surface and shore bombardment capability. They
would also be able to carry 200 troops with light equipment and would be
capable of landing and supporting those troops in practically any part of the
world.



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

These ships would replace the overage tribal class destroyers.

You will appreciate that the men from the older ships would have to
receive a good deal of re-training in order to provide them with the skills
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necessary to maintain and operate the much more complex and modern equip-
ments which would be fitted in this new class of ship. Plans to achieve this
are in hand. This is a long term project for, as you know, it takes longer to
develop highly skilled and experienced personnel than it does to build a ship.

As the minister indicated in his opening statement this program is presently
under review.

HyDROFOIL-R-200

Another very interesting vessel, for which a contract was recently let to
DeHavilland is the ASW hydrofoil R-200. This slide shows an artist’s conception
of an ocean-going A/S hydrofoil craft. The hydrofoil first appeared at the
turn of the century, but it wasn’t until after World War II that development
started in earnest. Development of this principle has been conducted in various
countries including the United States, Italy and the Soviet Union as well as
in Canada. No country has yet produced an ocean-going hydrofoil. We hope
Canada will be the first to do so. Our effort is complementary to that of the
United States' which is also working on a hydrofoil program. We look upon
this project as a development program and are working on the design for a
weapons system for the craft, should it prove to be a useful ocean-going
addition to the fleet.

The hydrofoil will be 1513 feet in length, have a beam of 214 feet and
a draught of 23 feet in the displacement mode and 74 feet when foil borne.”

As you see here in the picture, in the displacement mode the ship will
displace 180 tons and cruise at about 16 knots. She will do over 50 knots
when foil borne. Her crew will be something over 20 personnel.

This Canadian development program, if successful, should place our
industry in the forefront of hydrofoil design and construction. It would provide
industry with the knowledge, advanced techniques and skills required to meet
future national defence requirements and also to compete favourably with
other foreign countries. *

That completes a survey of the ships and aircraft we have and expect
to have in the immediate future.

ORGANIZATION

I would like to show you very briefly the basic organization of the R.C.N.

Under naval headquarters in Ottawa the navy is organized into three
major commands: the Atlantic command, which is the centre group in the
slide, comprising ships, air squadrons, fleet establishments, dockyards and
supply facilities, under the Flag officer, Atlantic coast, with headquarters at
Halifax; the Pacific command, comprising ships, air squadrons, fleet (_establlsh-
ments, dockyards and supply facilities, under the Flag officer, }’amﬁc coast,
Esquimalt, British Columbia. The Atlantic command and the Pacific com'm.apd
are area commands; the flag officers have responsibility for all naval actlf‘gtles
in a wide geographic area on either coast. There is also the commanding officer,
naval division, who is established at Hamilton; he is in charge of all reserve
divisions from St. John’s, Newfoundland, across the country in principal cities
to Victoria, British Columbia. Associated with the navy divisions are seventeen
university navy training divisions.

Approximately % of the R.C.N. is serving on the Atlantic coast and % in
the Pacific.
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The two most important parts of the navy are the ships including aircraft
and the personnel of the navy.

R.C.N. MANPOWER

Today, the authorized strength of the navy is 21,720. Against this were
borne at the end of May 21,469 officers and men. Of these some 46 per cent
are serving at sea and the balance ashore. The great majority of those who
are employed ashore are either instructors or are under instruction in the fleet
schools, The remainder are employed in billets suitable to ther trades, thus
permitting a necessary measure of rotation between sea and shore duty.

I would like to emphasize again the importance of the training task
facing a modern-day navy. As equipments become more sophisticated, the
need for higher degrees of maintenance and operating skills increases. These
needs must be met by continuous and progressive effort by ships and schools.
This challenge is being met in a most heartening manner by all concerned.

It has long been the policy of the navy to employ civilians to the greatest
possible extent in shore establishments and support activities. At the present
time 11,611 civilians are so employed, and provide most useful and loyal
service to the navy in a great many fields.

RCN MANPOWER

OFFICERS, MEN, CADETS AND APPRENTICES
CIVILIANS

21,469 ASHORE

-4

VICE  CIVILIAN

NAVAL EXPENDITURES SINCE 1955

Finally what does the navy cost?
This slide shows expenditures by category from 1955 to 1963.
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Naval expenditures were reduced progressively from 1956 to 1961 and
you can see how procurement of equipment was squeezed out between a lower
total vote and slowly rising operational costs. The hatched portion at the
extreme right of the slide represents the naval estimates for 1963-64; the
remainder of the slide shows expenditures.
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On the next slide we see expenditures on operations and maintenance,
broken down further. You will note that maintenance costs since 1955 have
remained much the same, despite increased wages and material costs. Also,
the number of ships in commission has increased during this period.

The navy is constantly looking for extra yardage from defence dollars,
because as in so many other enterprises, costs are rising. The wonderful new
equipment which is becoming available, is much more effective, but it is also
much more costly.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, may I point out that the best way to gain a better under-
standing of maritime defence, and naval problems, is to visit ships and
establishments, to see the navy operating, to talk to naval personnel on the
job, and if possible, to go to sea.

I would like to extend a very cordial invitation to the members of the
committee to visit ships and establishments at any time. I know you will be
welcomed aboard.

I believe the economic, military and political importance of the oceans
is becoming more widely recognized and that during the 60’s and the 70’s we
will see much larger merchant navies and more powerful fighting fleets in
many parts of the world.

I think that in the present R.C.N. we have an effective, modern Navy,
with a sound base for future growth. We recognize the necessity to maintain
and increase our effectiveness and versatility in the face of changing condi-
tions. The challenge for us is to ensure that our country, with its three long
coast lines, the longest in the world, will have a strong navy in the years to
come. We will do our utmost to meet this challenge but we need the blessing
and firm support of the people of Canada.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, this concludes my statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Vice-Admiral Rayner for your presentation.
Gentlemen, the Minister is just coming in and Mr. Cardin is here.

The vice-admiral will answer technical questions and the Minister will
answer policy questions at this time.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr. Chairman, I should first like to thank Vice-Admiral
Rayner for a very clear and comprehensive statement. I should like to ask one
or two questions at this stage but shall preface those questions with the follow-
ing statement. There has been a shift in the emphasis put upon the peril con-
fronting the peace-loving nations of the world during the last few years.

Mr. McNamara, in evidence given last spring to congress, pointed out that
the first and greatest menace with which the allied nations are now trying to
deal, involves missile attack. Secondly, there has been a considerable shift in
the opinion regarding defence against submarine launched missiles. His actual
words as they appear at page 126 of the report of the congressional committee
are as follows:

Second only in importance to defence against I.C.B.M. attack is the
problem of defence against submarine-launched missiles. The solution
to this problem entails three different types of capabilities.

(1) The detection and tracking of enemy submarines,
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(2) The destruction of these submarines before they have an opportunity
to launch their missiles.

(3) The detection, tracking, and destruction of the missiles once they
have been launched.

Our attention during the last several years has been directed toward air
attack on the American continent. We are now realizing that a missile attack
is the most dangerous. We have realized that a submarine missile launch attack
is second in importance, and the importance of an attack by bomber has dropped
into third place.

I should like to ask the vice-admiral a question regarding the Soviet
submarine force, which I understand numbers over 400. How many of those
400 submarines are ocean going?

Mr. RAYNER: They are all ocean going.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Secondly I should like to ask a question for the purposes
of comparison. What is the comparison between the present Soviet submarine
force and that submarine force used by the Germans during the second world
war?

Mr. RAYNER: From memory I should suggest that the Germans started the
second world war with about 60 U-boats and built up a force in excess of
300 during the war.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a supplementary question.
Is there any indication of what proportion of the composition of the Soviet
submarine fleet would be designed for anti-shipping or anti-communications
as against a role of attacking shore base installations, let us say on the basis
of missile carrying submarines?

Mr. RAYNER: It is estimated that some of the submarines of the Russian
fleet are equipped with missiles. Such submarines can also attack surface ship-
ping but they are not as well equipped to attack in such a role as those sub-
marines we refer to as attack submarines. There are attack submarines equipped
with numerous torpedoes and the necessary equipment to attack surface ship-
ping. Many of the Russian submarines would be so equipped, and some would
also be equipped with missiles for attacking shore targets.

Mr. LAMBERT: Do you know the proportion of the total each of these two
groups has?

Mr. RAYNER: I do not think I am in a position to give you those proportions.

Mr. LamBERT: Perhaps I should ask a more generalized question. Is that
proportion changing and, if so, in what direction?

Mr. RAYNER: I would say that the Russians are increasing their puclear
submarines armed with missiles. They now have so many attack submarines for
attacking shipping that this is not of great significance as regards the tl}reat
to shipping. The threat to shipping exists at this time and it is being maintained.
The threat to shore targets is increasing.

Mr. LAMBERT: You feel that in connection with shipping the ?"is"’i’(‘lgtsg;::f ;
submarine force is such that the trend of development is now directed to
expanding, shall we say, shore attacking subs?

Mr. RAYNER: I think that is a fair statement,.sir.

Mr. MatHEsoN: I should like to ask Admiral Rayner a question. Toward the
end of his statement he said:
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The challenge for us is to ensure that our country, with its three
long coast lines, the longest in the world, will have a strong navy in
the years to come.

It is my feeling from the admiral’s statement that nearly all the concen-
tration is directed toward forces on the Atlantic and the Pacific.

I gained the impression some years ago that there was wide disappointment
among naval personnel that the H.M.C.S. Labrador, which I understand had
some special research function in the north, was used in some other capacity,
perhaps for icebreaking. Could the admiral give us some information regarding
research being carried out, particularly in regard to those areas of development
in the Arctic, by submarines which can travel under the ice?

Mr. RAYNER: The Labrador, which is an Arctic patrol vessel was completed
in 1955. She is an icebreaker, of course, but was fitted for research. She was
used in the role of research from 1955 until 1957, at which time there were
changes made, largely for budgetary reasons, in the naval force, at which time
we were forced to concentrate exclusively on anti-submarine vessels and the
Labrador was transferred to the Department of Transport. Since that time we
have been hindered in carrying out fleet operations in the open water in the
north because of the lack of an icebreaker and a tanker. We have done some-
thing and will be able to do more in this regard from now on as a result of
the acquisition by the Department of Transport of more icebreakers. I am sure
that arrangements can be made for the navy to borrow icebreakers when
required.

We are acquiring our own ocean going tanker, the Provider, which I
described, and which is a replenishment ship. When we have her in operation,
with icebreaker support, we will be able to carry out more exercises in the
north. In addition, research is being carried out regarding sonar conditions in
the Arctic ocean both under the ice, through the ice and in the open water.

Mr. MATHESON: Mr. Chairman, before we leave the question of penny pinch-
ing raised by Mr, Groos, it is my impression that the navy spends only 17 cents

of each dollar provided in the defence budget and as a result the north has
suffered.

sz are not able to contribute a tremendous amount directed toward the
Atlantic and Pacific forces in comparison with that contributed by the United
States and Britain, but could we not make a very much larger contribution, in

your viev.v, directed toward research in Canada’s northern waters if funds
were available?

The CHAIRMAN: Is this a question for the Vice-Admiral or for Mr. Hellyer?
Mr. MATHESON: Perhaps for the minister.
The CHAIRMAN: I should think so.

Mr. HELLYER: Yes, I think this is a question of priorities. The Canadian
navy does make a major contribution in the North Atlantic and a sizeable one

in the Pacific, ar}d it is a question of how we can best spend the funds available
over a rather wide spectrum of possible uses.

Mr. WINcH: Mr. 'Chalrman, I would like to ask two questions and I hope
they will not be con51d§‘red as classified. I would like to ask those questions of
the Vice-Admiral. In view of. ‘the. fact that Siberia is part of the U.S.S.R. and
that there are ports on the Siberian coast, and in view of the fact that Siberia
is a lot closer to North America than is the part of the U.S.S.R. on the Atlantic
coast, why is two-thirds of our naval force on the Atlantic side and not on the

Pacific?
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Mr. RAYNER: Because the main threat to the naval forces is considered to
be in the Atlantic.

Mr. WincH: May I ask you then, if you were—and of course you are not
and never will be—on strategic command in the U.S.S.R. and if you were going
to attack the North American continent, would you not come on the Pacific?
Would you not do so, knowing that we have most of our forces on the Atlantic?

Mr. RAYNER: Of course this is a hypothetical question.
Mr. WincH: It is the kind of question which I think we should ask.

Mr. RAYNER: I can answer it best by saying that if I were a Russian I
would attack the Atlantic communications because the Atlantic countries are
the heart of the western world.

Mr., WincH: I am talking about an attack on North America now. Would
you attack where you know the North American continent is strongest or
weakest and from your closest point? If I am asking an unfair question, please
say so, but it is one of the things which as a layman I would like to know.
Can you not say anything more on it?

Mr. RaYNER: Well, this gets us to the question of what kind of an attack
it is going to be. Nations are working towards trying to prevent a nuclear
holocaust. If that is successful—and there are indications that it may be;
certainly that is the effort on both sides—and if war occurs we are going to be
in a war something like the last ones but with modern conventional weapons.
However, essentially it will be a question of North America having to supply
Europe, and the enemy trying to stop Europe being supplied from North
America.

Mr. WincH: That leads into my second question. In the event of any attack
on the North American continent, I presume that any potential enemy is not
going to give a warning. We have in Canada three radar lines, which are
supposedly efficient, to give warning on manned bombers. We have now a
BMEWS establishment in Alaska, and at Thule and we will have at the end of
this year an establishment in England to give warning of the firing of an
I.C.B.M. Could I then ask, if that is correct, and I understand it is, is there
not a major threat from submarines that carry nuclear warheads, and if so,
is it the contention of the Vice Admiral, as indicated in his submission, that,
with Canada having the longest coastline in the world, three new submarine
anti-submarine vessels are sufficient? Is it the plan of the navy to equip the
foregoing floating vessels so that they can function in the northern section of
Canada as well as on the coast? I think this fits in with the question asked by
Mr. Matheson. Is not the major threat then—as we have the radar lines for
the manned bombers and BMEWS for the I.C.B.M.—missiles from submarines?

Mr. RAYNER: As I mentioned before, we are doing research and develop-
ment in the Arctic ocean. The vessels proposed, the general purpose fri'gates,
while strengthened against ice, do not have the capacity for operating in th_e
Arctic ocean. The only vessels which could operate continuously in the Arctic
ocean would be nuclear submarines. This is one of the great advantages of a
nuclear submarine. As I stated in my brief, the problem of defence agal}lSt_ a
nuclear submarine is far from being solved. Again it is a question _of priority
until we can defeat the enemy nuclear submarines and co_nventlonal sub-
marines, defeat them decisively in the Atlantic and the Pacific. If I were a
Russian I would deploy my submarines in the Atlantic and the Pacific rather
than in the Arctic. In other words, the threat is very much greater on both

those oceans than in the Arctic at the present time. In the years to come,
29149-2—3
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when there are many more nuclear submarines, the threat in the Arctic may

increase, particularly if we succeed in solving the anti-submarine problem in
the Atlantic.

Mr. WincH: I have one more question and I will be quiet for a while,
but it is a follow-up question. If I am correct—and I presume it is axiomatic—
any attack will come without much notice. Can the admiral tell us what is
the cooperation now in the actual defence of the coastline of Canada between
our present naval forces and others other than our own forces? It is quite
obvious that we have not the ships necessary for such defence. What is the
cooperation for immediate protection in the event of an attack?

Mr. RAYNER: Our forces are assigned to the Supreme Allied Commander
Atlantic on an alert, and frequent exercises are carried out with his other
forces in the western Atlantic, which are principally United States forces, and
similarly in the Pacific we exercise and cooperate with units of the United
States pacific fleet.

Mr. WincH: That was not my question. I was not speaking of exercises.
What I am asking is whether there is a 24-hour day coverage of our Canadian
coastline which is the longest in the world, by other forces outside of Canada
in protection of the coast of Canada.

Mr. RAYNER: May I get this quite clear—is there protection by other than
Canadian forces?

Mr. WincH: Going on at all times on the offshores of Canada?
Mr. RAYNER: No, this is done by Canadian forces.
Mr. WincH: Only Canadian forces?

Mr. RAYNER: In conjunction with others. It is difficult. Certainly in the
inshore areas—and by inshore areas I am speaking of areas within 50 or 100
miles of the coast—is carried out by Canadian forces. When you move further
out then there may be Canadian forces or United States forces, and great deal
of this is done by aircraft.

Mr. WincH: Are they there now?
Mr. RAYNER: There is daily surveillance of the Canadian coastal areas.

Mr. GRANGER: I have a supplementary question. If there is a specified area
off the Canadian coast which is under Canadian observation, say, by long
range land. based aircraft operating on antisubmarine patrol, how would it
compare with the area, say, under United States operations?

Mr. RAYNER: There are agreements for responsibility for the conduct of
operations—agreed areas—in both the Atlantic and the Pacific. These areas are
agreed between Canada and the United States. If an operation has to be carried
out—as indeed they are—against an intruding submarine or in surveillance
of the fishing fleets and United States forces move into our area, then they
come under the coptrol of the Canadian maritime commander in Halifax;
similarly on the Pacific. On the other hand, if our forces move into the United
States area, then, as a rule, the Canadian commander would, as we say, ‘chop’
operational control of those forces to the United States commander responsible
for that area.

Mr. MacLEAN: My questions have in most part been answered, but I have
two remaining questions. Can the vice-admiral give any figure which would
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give us an estimate of the number of Russian submarines armed with I.R.B.M.’s

or nuclear armed missiles of some sort and their capability of firing them while
submerged?

Mr. RAYNER: I cannot give you the figures, but they have the capability to
fire I.R.B.M.’s, and it is believed they can fire them while submerged.

Mr. MacLEAN: My next question may not be fair, but perhaps it is a
matter of opinion. As a result of the technical advances in the last few years,
is it your opinion, sir, that the advantage of the attacking forces—submarines—
has increased at a more rapid rate than the ability to cope with such an attack?
In other words, has the balance of advantage passed to undersea ships as
against surface defending ships?

Mr. RAYNER: Briefly the answer is yes. With the advent of the nuclear
submarine the advantage lies very heavily in favour of the submarine against
antisubmarine forces; but this applies both to east and west. This makes it
important that we should go on and redress this balance.

Mr. MAcLEAN: Is there not the added factor that, since submarines are now
armed with nuclear weapons, the efficiency of controlling them and containing
them must reach a much higher level, in order to be effective, than would be
the case against conventionally armed submarines? In other words, if only a
very small percentage of an attacking force gets through, it might be sufficient
to deliver a crippling blow against some of our coastal cities.

Mr. RayNER: That is so.

Mr. Groos: First of all, Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I could ask the admiral
a rather facetious question: How did the naval board happen to arrive at the
figure of 60 days for the endurance of that ship that was going to be produced
for the west coast naval laboratories? My real question is: On page 8 the
role of the navy is stated to be to carry out support operations in the Arctie.
How does the navy plan to discharge this responsibility? You have said that
the general purpose frigate does not fit into these plans, and perhaps the
requirements of the Atlantic and the Pacific place the Arctic in a very secondary
role. Does this mean we have no plans for the Arctic?

Mr. RayNER: This means that for the present we must carry out our task
in the Arctic in the ice-free waters only. Also, of course, there are plans for
fixed installations in the Arctic against submarines. This is one of the principal
reasons for the research and development up north.

Mr. Groos: The times during which the Arctic is ice free are comparatively
limited, so this really is a very minor effort we are able to put into the Arectic
under present conditions. To move on to the Oberon class submarine, will the
acquisition of the British-built submarines introduce a supply problem in
the navy owing to the fact that the submarines are built in Britain and the
specifications, spare parts and so on will have to come from Great Britain.

Mr. RayNER: It will certainly be a little more difficult to provide the
logistics with British built submarines than in the case of submarines built
in North America; but the attraction of the Oberons is the fact that they are
so much cheaper and are in production now. They are available much faster,
and we need submarines as quickly as we can obtain them. The .techmf:al
officers in the service are satisfied that these Oberons can be satisfactorily main-
tained in Canada. After all, we are operating now from Halifax three R.N.
submarines. A great number of these Oberons are being built. I behevedl3 are
being built for the Royal Navy. Australia is ordering at least two, ar‘ll ‘{)Vlth
our three there will be 15 or 16 of these in commission, and there will be a

good supply of spares. We, of course, order spares with the boats.
29149-2—33
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Mr. Groos: In a few years we will need to have replacements for these
submarines on the east coast; I think 1967 is the year that was given. Is there
any reason why these conventional submarines could not be built in Canada?

Mr. RAYNER: There is no reason why they cannot be built. They would
cost a great deal more.

Mr. Groos: I have one last question. In respect of the general purpose
frigate, you say it will be capable of lifting 200 soldiers with their light
equipment to almost any part of the world. Did the army ask the navy to
incorporate this in the design of the ship?

Mr. RAYNER: This was worked out in consultation with the army staff.
This is really a dividend. What determines the size of these ships is the amount
of space needed for the antisubmarine equipment, but principally for the
anti-air equipment.

We need a ship of about the size that has been proposed in order to
meet the staff requirements. In building a ship of this size it is possible to
build into her at very little extra cost the capability of transporting additional
troops.

Mr. SmatH: There has been a great deal written about the under-ice
capability of the Polaris. Can you comment as to whether or not it is believed
that the Russian atomic submarine has similar capability?

Mr. RAYNER: I have no knowledge of Russian submarines operating under
the ice.

Mr. SnatH: Well, as to their general capability then; for I merely used
under-ice operations as an example, since there has been a great deal of
publicity given to it; but is there any reason to suspect or to believe that
Russian submarines are less capable than the Polaris?

Mr. RayNer: I think we have to assume that they are capable of operating
in the north. There is a navigation problem.

Mr. SmrtH: I used the north only as an example; but generally, are they
believed to be as capable as the Polaris?

Mr. RAYNER: I can only give you what I have read in the press on this.
The United States states that their Polaris submarines are more capable and
that they have a lead. They started to build them before the Russians, and
they have_pl_xt tremendous effort into it. There is reason to believe that the
Russian missile submarines are not as good as the American Polaris.

Mr.. SmrITH: I potice that the Americans had five Polaris in 1961 and that
they will have 18 in 1964, going to an ultimate total of 41. Is it reasonable to
assume that the Russians are building at something like that same rate?

Mr. RAYNER: I think that is a reasonable assumption.

Mr. SmrrH: My final question is this: there is considerable emphasis in
the United Stgtes appropriations in 1964 toward a program of destroyer
escort and similar vessels. Mr. McNamara when presenting his estimates, at
page 142 of volume one sgld that with respect to the number of destroyer
escorts the program would increase over the next several years, with 10 ships
recommended in the 1964 budget anq that more are planned for future years.
That is an accurate statement of thg intention of the United States, and of the
importance which they put on anti-submarine warfare, is it not?

Mr. RAYNER: Yes.
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Mr. TEMPLE: On page 24 I notice that the admiral in his brief dealt with
hydrofoils. That has caught my imagination. It seems to me from what I have
read, and from the testimony developed today, that nuclear submarines have
a great capacity for speed, and that our normal surface craft do not have the
same capacity. Therefore it seems to me that we require surface craft which
could be capable of overtaking these nuclear submarines. Now, if this program
were set up in Canada, how long would it be in the experimental stage, and
how long would it be before these hydrofoils could be produced on an
operational basis?

Mr. RAYNER: A prototype hydrofoil has been ordered and is planned to
be ready for ship trials beginning in 1966; and it is estimated to take from
8 to 9 months to test the craft thoroughly as an ocean-going hydrofoil. If these
trials are successful, then we will have to instal fighting equipment in them,
such as sonar and weapons, so that it would probably be the middle or end of
1967 before we were in a position to make a decision whether to go ahead
with the hydrofoil.

Mr. TempLE: Thank you. I have some other questions along this line.
Is it expected that there will be a fairly extensive range for these vessels?

Mr. RAYNER: It is expected to be sufficient to enable them to operate fdr
7 or 8 days at sea. During that time they would be operating mainly in the
displacement mode, and they would have good endurance in that mode.
They have very short endurance in the foil borne mode and they will only
become foil borne when they have to go somewhere in a great hurry or are
in contact with a submarine.

Mr. TEMPLE: If it is expected that they can be built, at how fast a rate, or
how long would it take to build one, once they are placed in production, if
they proved themselves to be satisfactory? I realize that it is impossible to
say exactly within several months or years, as one can in the case of con-
ventional craft? ‘

Mr. RaynNER: I would think it would certainly be less than a destroyer
escort or a GP frigate. The production of an hydrofoil is estimated to be
about two-thirds of that development time. g

Mr. TEMPLE: Does that include after it is in production?
Mr. RAYNER: After it is in production.
Mr. TEMPLE: What are the estimates of the cost of such a program?

Mr. Ray~NER: Well, the cost of the prototype is estimated to be $13 million.
This does not include some money for developing fighting equipment to put
into it. The estimate for a production model is somewhere between $6 and
$8 million.

Mr. TEMPLE: I notice you say in your brief at the bottom of page 24:,

“This Canadian development program, if successful, should place
our industry in the forefront of hydrofoil design and construction.”

I take it then, from your information, that no other countries are really
as well advanced in this line, or particularly along this line of having put a
great deal of energy and outlay into it. ;

Mr. RAYNER: That is so, and the fact is that other nations, and we have
built a couple of prototypes too, of hydrofoils for use in coastal W%{tel.’s- No
country has produced a hydrofoil capable of operating in the Atlantic in the
broad ocean. The Americans are working on this, but they are v;orkmg on a
different kind of foil system, a more complicated system of foils, than the
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Canadian method. If this hydrofoil is successful, then I would expect that it

would be adopted, because it would be cheaper to produce than the system
which the Americans are working on.

Mr. TEMPLE: Thank you.
The CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Brewin.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I want to follow up some questions which
were put, I think, by Mr. MacLean. I think the most convenient way to do it is
to ask the vice-admiral if he would care to comment upon a statement I have
by Bruce MacDonald in the Globe and Mail for June 13, 1963, reading as follows:

In fact it is so difficult that naval strategists concede that about the
only defense against a missile attack from submarines is the same as that
against attack from land-based ballistic missiles, the threat of retaliation
in kind.

Would the vice-admiral care to comment on that? I appreciate that research
is going on, but is that a fair statement and do the naval strategists concede it?

Mr. RaAYNER: Yes, I think it is a fair statement that we have yet to produce
a defense against nuclear missile submarines. I might go back and remind you
that there are very few of these boats at sea in the Russian navy, and that some
progress is being made. There is tremendous effort going into this and it has
a very high priority in the U.S.N. and in the R.N., and we are giving it a very
high priority.

All three navies exchange information on this and endeavour to keep the
development projects in such a way that there is no duplication. We spend a
small amount compared to what the rest do; however, the priority is recognized
and we have produced some very good ideas. This development of variable
depth sonar is a Canadian development. The fact we developed it here and
placed it in our ships has been a great help toward the United States navy
accepting and putting it in their ships. There are developments going on at this
moment and it is very important that they be continued until such time as
better means are found to take on a nuclear submarine. The only way we can
do this is to stay with the problem and to keep ships at sea working on the
problem and trying out new tactics. This is where the ideas come from. We are
not discouraged about this.

Mr. BREwIN: Mr. Chairman, I have a somewhat similar question along the
same lines. From the same article to which I referred the writer says:

W1§3t then is Canada building ships and maintaining a navy for?
Inpreaslngly the answer seems to be becoming more and more aligned
with a new concept that has grown out of the nuclear stalemate between

F;asjc and West, that of having in being police forces capable of waging
limited war.

?IS that statement in connection with a new concept developing a correct
one? Perhaps I should have put my question to the minister.

Mr. HELLYER: I think your question is a very difficult one to answer.
I think probably the most difficult question is what type of warfare we might
‘be called upon to fight, and certainly different capabilities are more suitable
to_ some kinds of war than others. Just how extensive a conventional war
might be under modern situations is a question which I cannot answer cate-

gorically; I think you would get very many different opinions from people
who have studied the subject. ¥ ¥ &

Mr. Lroyp: I have a supplementary question, Mr. Chairman. Are the
police goirg to use their guns or their billies?
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Mr. LamBeRT: I believe the witness indicated that the advantage lay with
the nuclear submarine. But, surely, there is some form of defence; it is not
impervious to defence at the present time. For instance, you use aircraft which
clearly have some advantage in tracking or controlling nuclear submarines.
What are your views as to where the best possibility of defence against a
nuclear submarine will lie? Is it developing the naval or ship side, be it a
surface ship or submarine, or is it toward an aerial defence against a submarine?

Mr. RayNER: I am sorry but—

Mr. LAMBERT: Or, to complete my question, would it be a combination of
the two?

Mr. RAYNER: I am sorry if I have given the wrong impression, that the
case against the nuclear submarine is hopeless because it is not. What I mean
is this: it is possible to locate a nuclear submarine and it is possible to attack it.
In our own case, when we get the ships with the helicopters and variable depth
sonar, we will be in very much better shape than we are at the present time.
As 1 said before, defence against the nuclear submarine is a team effort. In
some situations we need nuclear submarines for defence—and the sort of
situation I am thinking of as one way of defence against a nuclear submarine
is to attack it when it comes out from its base; in other words, to send
submarines to patrol off an enemy coast. But, clearly, this is a role for the
nuclear submarine because it will be subject to very heavy enemy air and
submarine attack, and the ideal boat to operate under those conditions is a
nuclear submarine. Then, coming a little closer, one could set up anti-submarine
barriers and, again, if there is a fairly heavy enemy air threat one would set up
a barrier using aircraft and submarines. If you were farther away from the
enemy coast you probably would use conventional submarines, but if you had
nuclear submarines they would be more effective. However, nuclear submarines
cost two or three times as much as the conventional submarines and they are
much more expensive to operate. As NATO has conventional submarines you
would set up an air anti-submarine barrier. Then, when it comes to protecting
shipping, say, for instance, if Europe has to be supplied in a war involving
conventional weapons, the surface ship is still the ideal vehicle for doing this
because before an action the shipping has to be controlled. The NATO submarine
forces have to be controlled. The battle can be fought better from a ship owing
to its better communication and plotting facilities—that is, plotting the course
of the battle—than in the case of an aircraft or submarine; and, again, by
team effort.

Mr. LamBerT: I realize this is the theoretical way to approach it if one
has almost unlimited naval resources at one’s command—in so far as Canada
is concerned, we know we do not possess them—but would the advantage lie
in the development of surface craft, concentration on the aerial component of
antisubmarine defence, or on a combination of the two, and in what proportion?
This is the problem we are facing right now.

Mr. RAYNER: The answer is we need both. We have maritime patrol
R.C.A.F. aircraft, shore based, which are essential for surveillance, and we have
surface ships which would be integrated with United States forces. When we
are faced with an antisubmarine operation the commander wou]c_i place his
forces where the weight of the attack or threat of attack was heaviest.

Mr. LamperT: I am referring to the development and provisioning of
equipment in so far as Canada’s navy is concerned. In this regard does the
navy feel that the greater advantage will lie in the development_ of surface
ships, or the development of the aerial component of its antisubmariné defence,
Or a combination of the two, and in what proportions?
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Mr. RAYNER: We believe in a combined effort directed toward the two
mentioned developments.

Mr. LAMBERT: What would you suggest the proportions should be in this
regard?

Mr. RAYNER: We have given considerable thought to this question.

The twp other factors which may be involved in this question have regard
to the possibility of limited war and service provided to the United Nations.

We think that an antisubmarine force should be composed of approximately
three-fifths antisubmarine surface vessels, about one-fifth submarines, and one-
fifth general purpose vessels with a first class anti-air capability. This proportion
is arrived at, presupposing that the R.C.A.F. will continue to provide large
fixed wing aircraft, because large fixed wing aircraft play a very important
role in this service.

Mr. LAMBERT: How does the general purpose frigate fit into this three-fifth
pattern?

Mr. RaAYNER: The general purpose frigate fits in as an anti-air frigate.

On the understanding that we are going to maintain a fleet of approximately
40 ships, we feel that about one-fifth should supply a good anti-air capability.

Mr. LameerT: Keeping in mind the present review in regard to general
purpose frigates, what are the alternatives?

Mr. RAYNER: We feel that the alternatives to general purpose frigates
would be more antisubmarine vessels, more antisubmarine submarines and,
looking into the future, perhaps some hydrofoils, if they are successful. We are
looking for a cheap antisubmarine vehicle and we feel we need them in
greater numbers.

Mr. LamBerT: You feel that the purpose of your present search involves
the development and acquisition of the equipment to which you have just made
reference?

Mr. RAYNER: We have not found what we are looking for as yet, but there
are only two possibilities of which I am aware. One possibility involves the
hygirofoil and the other involves the hovercraft which has been developed in
Brlt.ain. We are looking for great numbers of economical anti-submarine
vehicles for purposes of anti-submarine service.

Mr. MAR';'INEAU: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a supplementary
question. In view of the capabilities that the admiral has ascribed to the general
purpose frigates, does he believe that the general purpose frigates, eight of
which have now been approved for construction, are the best and most ade-

quate .I'eplacement at this time for the Tribal class destroyers which are now
becoming overaged and unserviceable?

Mr. HELLYER: I think your question involves a matter of opinion.
Mr. MARTINEAU: I think my question involves fact.
Mr. HELLYER: The admiral has just enunciated several alternatives in the

anti-submarine field. I do not think members of this committee would wish to

expose the admiral to questions involving the i ich
WOI:.lld give the government, nature of the advice which he

Mr. CHURCHILL: Perhaps we can acquire this information from the
minister. Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a supplementary question.
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Mr, DEACHMAN: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order regarding these supple-
mentary questions, it was agreed earlier during this meeting that questions
would be asked by members as they raised their hands, but that there would
be no restriction placed upon a member in respect to reverting back to a
specific line of questioning. I suggest that if we are going to allow supple-
mentary questions, any member may ask questions out of the general order
of the roster by merely stating that his question is supplementary. A number
of members have been waiting for some time to ask questions, yet several
interventions have been made by members stating that they had supplementary
questions. I suggest that we return to the original order of questioning without
the intervention of supplementary questions.

The CHAIRMAN: I allowed the present procedure of questioning this morn-
ing in order to determine the direction which the questioning would take, and
I have now decided to discuss this question of procedure with the steering
subcommittee at a proposed meeting at 2 o’clock this afternoon.

Mr. Lroyp: Before you close the meeting I should like to remind you,
Mr. Chairman, that I am on your roster and that I have several questions to
ask. Could I ask the steering committee to give us some priority at the next
meeting?

The CHAIRMAN: I will bring this up this afternoon at the steering subcom-
mittee meeting because it is evident by the number of members who want to
ask questions of the witness that this morning’s meeting is not sufficient. How-
ever, we are due to have a presentation from the Army this coming Thursday,
and we will have to decide what is the best procedure in this case; are we to
have the army or do we continue with this witness next Thursday? I cannot
make a final decision on this. This will be decided by the steering subcommittee.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I do have a matter that I want to raise as I
think it is reasonably urgent. I can raise this in a minute or two. In the
minister’s statement the problem of the cooking of bombs is mentioned. We
also have evidence from Dr. Field in respect of that. However, I have received,
and perhaps other members also have received, a statement or a brief which
was apparently issued by eight nuclear physicists at the University of Alberta,
of whom Professor D. B. Scott was one, in which he in effect takes issue with
this conclusion. I want to ask you whether the steering subcommittee can
consider the possibility of calling Dr. Scott and other witnesses to clear up
this point. It seems to me an urgent one because, as I understand it, the
government is now negotiating for the acquisition of the defensive weapons
on the basis of the Minister’s statement that these bombs carried by
attacking bombers can be rendered harmless by cooking. If that is a scientifically
questionable proposition—I am not a scientist, therefore I do not know—should
this committee not seek to get information on that as soon as possible? I will be
glad to turn over to the steering subcommittee the name of these gentlemen
who, as Canadian scientists, have given a contrary view, whether right or wrong.

The CHAIRMAN: You can give these names to Mr. Winch.

Mr. BREWIN: I have one other small point which I would like to refer to
the steering subcommittee. I have here a press clipping from the Toronto
Telegram of July 4 which refers to recent statements made by associate defence
secretary Paul H. Nitze in which a revised view of the conventional forcgs
available to the Soviets and to NATO is put forward with a statement that their
intelligence has revised their previous estimates and that there was indeed an
overestimate. I was wondering if the steering subcommittee would look into
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how we could get those statements which seem to be made up to date and made
available by the associate secretary of defence, Paul Nitze. Perhaps the minister
could tell us how to get these statements.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: Mr. Chairman, could we have the navy back before
we start on the army?

The CHAIRMAN: We will have the steering subcommittee meeting at 2
o’clock. The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, July 11, 1963.
(6)

The Special Committee on Defence met at 10:35 a.m. this day. The
Chairman Mr. Maurice Sauvé presided.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grdce), Béchard,
Brewin, Churchill, Deachman, Fairweather, Granger, Hahn, Lambert, Laniel,
Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean), Lloyd, Maclnnis, MacLean, Matheson, McMillan,
Patterson, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, Winch.—(21).

In attendance: Honourable Paul Hellyer, Minister of National Defence;
and Lieutenant-General G. Walsh, CBE, DSO, CD, Chief of the General
Staff.

There being a quorum, Mr. Lambert, on a question of personal privilege,
commented on certain statements which appeared in an article in the Ottawa
Journal on July 10, 1963.

The Chairman presented the Third report of the Subcommittee on Agenda
and Procedure as follows:

1. That the Special Committee on Defence meet in Colorado Springs,
U.S.A., on Wednesday, July 17, 1963.
2. That there be a briefing of the Committee at Colorado Springs, at

which time classified information may be supplied; but that no
verbatim record be taken.

3. That the Clerk of the Committee accompany the Members of the
Committee to the NORAD Headquarters at Colorado Springs.

4. That, when the Committee adjourns from place to place, the
actual living and travelling expenses of Committee members be
paid.

5. That the Clerk of the Committee attempt to secure a copy of the
statement made by Assistant Secretary of Defence of the United
States of America, as requested by Mr. Brewin on July 9, 1963.

6. That statements be received from the Army on July 11, from the
Air Force on July 16 and from the Defence Research Board on
July 18, 1963. '

7. That, in those instances where the questioning of the witnesses is
not completed in the time allotted, the said witnesses be recalled
on or after July 23, 1963, as the Committee may order.

Mr. Smith moved, seconded by Mr. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grdce),—
That the Third Report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure, pre-
sented this day, be now concurred in.

Mr. Brewin again requested that representatives of a group of physicists
from the University of Alberta be called before the Committee. The Chairman
stated that this matter would be further considered by the Steering Sub-
committee.

Following further discussions, the third report of the Steering Subcom-
mittee was adopted, unanimously.

125
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Lieutenant-General Walsh was called and he presented a prepared state-
ment to the Committee. During his presentation a number of slides were
shown; reproductions of some of those slides are included in the evidence at
the points of initial reference.

The Minister and the Chief of the General Staff were questioned briefly.

In reply to a question the Minister indicated that it might be desirable
for the Committee to call the Director of the Tri-Service Colleges. This matter
was referred to the Steering Subcommittee.

At 12:30 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 10:30 a.m. on Tuesday,
July 16, 1963.

E. W. Innes
Clerk of the Committee.
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THURSDAY, July 11, 1963.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have now a quorum.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, before the committee proceeds with its
deliberations, I would like to raise a question of personal privilege concerning
an article which appeared in the Ottawa Journal of July 10, which commented
on some of the activities of this committee. In this article the following state-
ment appeared:

Mr. Lambert avers that the chairman and Liberal members of the
committee are deliberately disrupting questioning in order to keep
opposition members from pressing home on matters which might embar-
rass the government.

I simply wish to state, Mr. Chairman, that there was no foundation to it
in fact; that never has this statement been made and never have I questioned,
either publicly or privately, your methods of conducting these meetings, nor
have I ascribed motives to any members asking questions. I regret very much
that this should have appeared.

Mr. DEACHMAN: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, we had before us a
point of order at the close of the last meeting concerning the methods which
would be used for circulating questions in the committee. I wonder if this could
be discussed as a point of order at the beginning of this meeting.

The CHAIRMAN: This was discussed at the steering committee meeting,
and after we have heard Mr. Walsh this morning and before we start question-
ing him, I will deal with your point of order.

The steering committee met on July 9, and this is the report which I offer
for your approval: )

Your subcommittee recommends as follows:

1. That the special committee on Defence meet in Colorado Springs,
U.S.A., on Wednesday, July 17, 1963.

2. That there be a briefing of the committee at Colorado Springs, at
which time classified information may be supplied; but that no
verbatim record be taken.

3. That the clerk of the committee accompany the members of the
committee to the NORAD headquarters at Colorado Springs.

4. That, when the committee adjourns from place to place, the actual
living and travelling expenses of committee members be paid.

Some HoN. MEMBER: By whom?
The CHAIRMAN: It has not yet been decided, it is in the process of dis-
cussion.

5. That the clerk of the committee attempt to secure a copy of .the
statement made by assistant secretary of defence of the United
States of America, as requested by Mr. Brewin on July 9, 1963. F

6. That statements be received from the army on July 11, from ﬂl‘e ‘li;r
force on July 16 and from the defence research board on July 18,
1963. .

7. That, in those instances where the questioning of the w1tneis;sfc!18 is
not completed in the time allotted, the said witnesses be recalied on
or after July 23, 1963, as the committee may order.

127
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May I have a motion for the adoption of the report?
Mr. SmiTH: I so move.

Mr. ASSELIN (Notre-Dame-de-Grace): I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. BREWIN: I was listening carefully but I do not think anything was
said in this report about the suggestion I made that there was some urgency
in calling Dr. Scott. I appreciate the fact that the steering committee has
arranged for a number of witnesses to be called, and I am not suggesting that
that be disturbed at all, but I am rather anxious—and I think this committee
should be anxious—to hear something from Dr. Scott on the subject I raised.
This should be done before the recess; otherwise maybe the final decisions will
be made before this committee has had a chance to make recommendations
on the subject. Also, I was wondering if the committee could give consideration
to assuring that we hear Dr. Scott and the other witnesses on this one point,
namely, the scientific approach in regard to this subject of cooking of the
bombs. I still think that this should be done before we recess.

The CHAIRMAN: That question was discussed by members of the steering
committee and it was allowed to stand for the time being. We are discussing
the procedure for having as witnesses members of groups like the one you
mentioned yourself, or other groups, which might be interested in appearing
before the committee. This will be brought up again soon at another steering
committee meeting.

Mr. BREwIN: May I just finish by saying I do urge that it be given
consideration before the recess? We do not know when the recess will take
place, but the whole point is that this subject should not be overlooked and
forgotten.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: I would like to support Mr. Brewin. I do not see how
we can be expected to arrive at a judgment, or try to arrive at a judgment,
unless we know both sides of a conflicting scientific problem.

Also, I would like to make the following point, and I think that perhaps
this is the place to suggest it. The public has lately expressed quite an interest
in a series of comments concerning the effectiveness of this committee. I am
pot sensitive about that at all because I think that the way we are proceeding
Is correct. We cannot possibly ask all the questions that could be asked in
.the time allotted; but surely the public, who may be or should be interested
in the large subject of defence, might have a line of questioning that they
would like us to pursue as a committee. We would welcome a voluminous mail.

Surely all of us would be glad to have the informed public let us know

what kind of questions they would like us to pursue. I do not pretend to know
everything on the subject.

Mr. WINpH: Mr. Chairman, may I just make this comment as a member
of .the s.teen.ng committee? The steering committee finds itself in a most
unique situation, unique in this way, that even right now, when the steering
commlt.tee‘has a recommendation to make relative to going to Colorado Springs
to obtain 1nformat10n which is not available, in Canada,—at the moment we
have authorxty. to go from place to place—the chairman is not in a position to
tell us who will pay out-of-pocket expenses.

In addition to that, there is the fact that we as a committee have agreed
to hear a certain number of persons in the next few days, persons' who are
not ‘available except by pre-arrangement. For the first time in the history of
Canada, as far as I know, we are to have the chiefs of staff of the three services
before us, and whether it is a vice admiral, a general or an air force officer,
they have commitments. Also this committee decided that the steering com-
mittee report would be accepted for the next few days so that we could hear all
of the heads of our service forces.



DEFENCE 129

Then, according to a suggestion by the steering committee, this committee
would hear a report concerning the relationship between our foreign policy
and defence, so we hope to have the minister at that time.

We face another problem. Although the steering committee is recommend-
ing that we go to Colorado Springs, leaving at 5:20 on Tuesday and getting
back at midnight on Wednesday, it is not known where the out-of-pocket
expenses will come from, despite the fact we have authority to travel from
place to place. This applies not only to the members but also to the witnesses.
So there are quite a few problems not yet resolved.

I can assure you, as a member of the steering committee, that witnesses
will be called, if I have anything to say about it, and they will have their
expenses paid. These are some of the problems which still have to be faced by
the steering committee until somebody in the government who gave the
committee this authority to go from place to place tells us who pays the
expenses of this committee and of the witnesses.

Mr. Lroyp: When the request is made to the appropriate government
minister, probably the assistance we seek will be forthcoming.

I do not think we need to elaborate that point. I like the idea of the
present sessions as proposed by the steering committee. As I said some days
ago, and, as Mr. Brewin indicated—I would not wish to interfere with the
ordinary procedure—I just wanted to be assured that in due time certain
witnesses would be called.

Mr. DEACEMAN: Mr. Chairman, it is now a quarter to eleven and we have
a most important witness here this morning. So I wonder if we might get on
with the business of the committee?

Mr. WincH: That is correct. May I also suggest, since it is of utmost
importance to our future operations not only as to the calling of witnesses but
also as to our own movements, that there be a speedy decision as to just what
are the terms of reference of this committee, and that expenses be allowed to
it for the calling of witnesses, but that those expenses be incurred only on the
authority of this committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Is the report of the steering committee agreed to?
Agreed.

The minister will be with us at half past eleven. Now we have with us
Lt. Gen. Walsh, Chief of the General Staff, who will make his presentation in
the same way as Vice Admiral Rayner made his last Tuesday. Gen. Walsh?

Lt.-Gen. G. WaLsH, C.B.E, D.S.0., C.D. (Chief of the General Staff):
Mr. Chairman and Gentlemen:

I propose to define for you the present army commitments—that is th'e
tasks given to the army by the government—and to tell you how the army 18
meeting these commitments with our present available resources and our
current work to improve our position. The philosophy which I feel we _rpl}st
follow is to maintain the highest state of readiness within our capabilities
and, at the same time, look to the future so that this state of readiness can
be maintained under ever-changing conditions and unexpected developments.

I will include, where pertinent, the limitations on our ability to p1eet guuy
these commitments due to manpower, equipment and financial considerations,
but I will also outline our interim emergency plans to overcome these limita-
tions in times of emergency. :

But first I will say a few words about the army. It has two main com=
ponents. The regular army and the militia. The regular army is 9’.‘.fu¥l'tme
duty and is the ground force in being of 50,000 all ranks. The militia is well
known to you and is the back-up to the regular force. It totals another 50,000
and the various associated cadet corps total about 75,000.



'MUNSTER

4 CANADIAN INFANTRY BRIGADE

130 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

The regular army in Canada is organized for command and administration
into four geographic commands. Western command consists of the provinces
of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, the Yukon and North-
west Territories.
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Central command covers the province of Ontario and Quebec command
includes all of the province of Quebec. Eastern command includes the Atlantic
provinces, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island and
Newfoundland.

These administrative commands are further divided into areas which, in
the main, correspond with the provinces and afford communication and liaison
between the army and the provincial authorities. This is most important in our
survival operations planning.

At home we have three infantry brigade groups. One located in western
Canada with headquarters at Calgary. One in central Canada located at Camp
Petawawa, Ontario and the third located in Camp Gagetown, New Brunswick.
Our fourth brigade group, as you know, is stationed in West Germany as part
of Canada’s NATO force. Three brigade groups make up our commitment to
NATO, the fourth forms the defence of Canada force.

The field forces are backed up by a training organization with training
schools across the country and by a logistic support organization of stores depots,
workshops, transport units and engineer units to look after our barracks and
physical installations. I will mention these again, briefly, in concluding, because
they constitute the indispensable base from which we support all of the army’s
commitments.

This will indicate to you the general extent of our military establishment
here at home.

I will now deal in turn with each of the army’s commitments. Where we
have a direct operational role I will outline the threat and the forces we have
to meet that threat. In other cases I will describe the aim of our activities, and
the main problems in each case.

The order of presentation will be: North Atlantic Treaty Organization;
Defence of Canada; Survival Operations; United Nations and Similar Opera-
tions, Assistance to Civil Authorities; Militia and Army Cadet Training; North-
west Highway System.

NORTH ATLANTIC TREATY ORGANIZATION

The threat to Western Europe

You are familiar with the Warsaw Pact, signed by the Soviet Union and
seven Eastern European satellites in 1955 as a counter to the successful develop-
ment of NATO.

Of these seven satellites, Poland, East Germany and Czechoslovakia are so
located that they could contribute to the land battle against Western Europe,
and together have 34 divisions. The Russians themselves have another 20
divisions stationed in East Germany in their so-called Group of Soviet Forces
in Germany, and two more in their northern group of forces in Poland. These
divisions can be seen on this chart, with the Russian divisions in red, and the
satellite divisions in black.

One of the main threats to allied forces Central Europe lies in the North
German Plain in the sector which is under operational control of Northern
Army Group. This threat is posed by most modern and up-to-date Russlan
divisions. The 4th Canadian infantry brigade group is under the Oll’f"‘l‘.atlon'¢11
control of northern army group. Hence, if hostilities break out, they will face
a most modern and well-equipped force, the bulk of which undoubtedly will
be Russian. The other Satellite divisions add weight to the Communist threat
but are more likely to be used in supporting roles in less critical areas. '
 From remarks made by Marshal Malinovskiy, the Soviet Defence Min-
ister, aqd from agreeq intelligence it is apparent that the Soviet Union is
well equipped and organized to fight either a nuclear or conventional war. At each
end of the spectrum:there are these possibilities. At one end, hostilities could
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2. THREATS TO NORTH GERMAN PLAIN

F
break out at short notice. At the other end, full-scale hostilities could break
out after a long period of tension and a series of serious incidents. In the
first case, it would not be possible to improve our state of readiness due to
the shortage of time. In the second case, it could be.

Under our present plans, the brigade in Europe is kept at a high state
of readiness and the balance of the division becomes available to the Supreme
Allied Commander in Europe on a specified alert condition. The principle
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has now been established that if possible the balance of the division will
marry up with the brigade in Europe. For planning purposes, the organization,
equipping and training of the balance of the division in Canada is compatible
with this principle.

The tank strength of the Russian forces in Germany is formidable with a
total of approximately 6000 tanks opposing NATO. Their divisions are com-
pletely mechanized and no one goes on foot. In addition, the Russians have
surface-to-surface nuclear missiles and tactical aircraft for support of their
ground forces. They also have nine airborne divisions with their supporting
transport fleet, which would be available for operations in western Europe
as air-dropped on air-landed troops. The Soviet forces have great mobility
and have excellent water-crossing and night-fighting capabilities.

The allies in Europe in NATO study possible courses of action which the
Soviet might take in launching an attack against western Europe. Naturally,
these studies must remain highly classified. However, you may recall the
recent ‘“Der Spiegal Affair’” where one western assessment of such an attack
was published in the press. This chart shows you this assessment. You will
note that the northern army group lies directly in the middle of the path
of such a Soviet offensive and the Canadian brigade group is part of this
army group.

The forward strategy

You have seen in the papers that NATO has introduced the forward
strategy. I would like to say something about it. In the early days of NATO
you may recall that in the face of overwhelming Russian strength in ground
forces at that time it was not possible to contemplate a defence forward of
the Rhine river. But as the strength of the NATO forces improved, particularly
when the federal republic of Germany became a member of the alliance,
the area of defensive operations was moved eastward from the Rhine. Even
on this new line, however, we would be relinquishing substantial areas of
west Germany without offering any real resistance and there has always
been pressure to move forward. Last year it was decided that the time had
come to implement a more forward strategy and now, German soil will be
contested at the iron curtain.

This change will be applied throughout Allied Command Europe and will
affect United States, British, German, French, Belgian and Netherland forces
as well as our own. Within northern army group, of which 4 Canadian
infantry brigade group is a part, there will be regrouping and assignment of
operational responsibilities further forward in west Germany.

You will appreciate that such a change involves considerable adjustment
of communications and logistics support, in view of the longer supply lines.
To put the change into effect will require additional equipment, the more
important of which will be signals equipment, bridging and transport, because
it involves the defence of a larger area in greater depth and one crossed by
more rivers. At a NATO conference in France a few days ago it was agreed
that to make the plan viable, “force goals” must be met—i.e. national forces
promised to NATO must be assigned, must be at full strength and must .be
fully equipped to NATO standards, with reserves of equipment and supplies
to NATO scales.

The Canadian commitment at present is for a brigade group in Germany
with the balance, or two-thirds, of a division earmarked as SACEUR’s strategic
reserve in Canada. This reserve is to come under SACEUR at a given state of
alert and be moved to Europe. I will deal with each part of this NATO commit-
ment separately, although there are factors common to both. .

First—the 4th Canadian infantry brigade group in Germany. The brigade,
together with administrative support units, has about 6,500 all ranks and at
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present is made up of a regiment of artillery, a surface-to-surface missile
battery with four launchers for Honest John rockets, a regiment of armour
and three battalions of infantry, plus supporting reconnaissance, engineers,
signals and service units. It also includes an organization called Canadian base
units Europe which provides our share of troops on the supply lines to look
after peculiar Canadian items of equipment and Canadian interests. The brigade
headquarters is located at Soest and units are stationed at Werl, Iserlohn and
Hemer in Germany. Major units are rotated to Canada every three years with
one battalion of infantry being replaced each year. All other units are rotated
on a man for man basis after a three-year tour.

The brigade is kept up to strength generally although normal wastage,
except for specialists, is only replaced annually. Specialists who leave the
brigade are replaced immediately. There are deficiencies, however, in the
base units which require reinforcement on a given state of alert. Plans are in
being to provide these, as well as first reinforcement for the brigade. It is
considered that the force goal is met except that SHAPE has asked for the
mechanization of the brigade by the introduction of armoured personnel
carriers. Mobility is now provided by military pattern unarmoured wheeled
vehicles which are not entirely satisfactory. With the introduction of new
types of equipment, such as antitank guided missiles, surveillance equipment,
light helicopters, which we have received or are on order, it will be necessary
to do some reorganization within the brigade. However, the brigade group is
well thought of in SHAPE where it is considered to be capable of performing
its presently-assigned defensive role. Although it is now fully equipped, its
full potential for mobile operations will not be realized until mechanization
is achieved—that is the introduction of armoured, tracked personnel carriers.

I would now like to deal with the balance of the division in Canada. At
the time of the Berlin crisis of 1961 the army was authorized to increase its
strength to 59,370. This figure provided the manpower for the reconnaissance
squadron helicopters, the Honest John battery and the manpower to bring the
units up to strength in Europe and Canada. It also provided a manpower pool
to look after the first-line reinforcements for the brigade in Europe and the
manpower to activate certain divisional units which were dormant. In addition,
it provided manpower for certain survival operational commitments and it
allowed the army to replace in units in Canada the officers and men who had
been dispatched to such theatres as the Suez and the Congo and whose positions
had been left vacant.

When it became necessary to restrict our manpower to 50,000 for budgetary
reasons, although it was possible to maintain the brigade in Europe, as now
organized, at full strength, the following restrictions had to be made:

The first reinforcements for the units overseas had to be earmarked
from the defence of Canada force;

Recruits in training had to be carried on unit strength and not on
strength of recruit training establishments;

The full manning of the survival operations system had to be
curtailed;

Also certain units in Canada had to be restricted in personnel.

,It h'as been necessary to account for a number of the officers and men
serving in the Congo.and Suez against divisional establishments and it has not
been possible to activate the divisional headquarters, the divisional signals
regiment a'nq _othgr smaller divisional units. Thus, the state of readiness to
form the division is not as good as it could be—but is better than prior to the
crisis. The present emergency defence plan to form the division necessitates the
cross-posting of personnel from other establishments in Canada, from the
defence of Canada brigade, training establishments and static units. To replace
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this manpower the only thing we can do is to avail ourselves of ex-regulars
and selected militia personnel.

Although the two brigades in Canada earmarked for NATO are on the
same establishments as the brigade in Europe, and have the same equipment
scales, full scales of equipment are not available in Canada to bring them up
to the same standard. In the main, the deficiencies are in new equipment. In
the last few years new equipment has only been provided for the brigade in
Germany plus training scales for Canada. In some categories it would be pos-
sible to issue in lieu items, most of which have seen long service, but recon-
naissance helicopters, antitank guided missiles and surveillance equipment
would not be available. Further, it would be necessary to strip the training
establishments and the defence of Canada force which would compromise our
ability to train reinforcements. A good example of the difference in standard
equipment is the centurion tank. Those we have in Europe have been up-
armoured and up-gunned, while those in Canada have not. The units in
Germany hold more antitank guns than the units in Canada. These are just
two examples—one of quality and one of numbers.

Therefore, we can field the balance of the division in accordance with our
commitment and could equip it to a minimum operational scale.

There are two other important factors in connection with this commitment,
the manpower for administrative support troops and the movement of the
balance of the division. The division proper, that is the fighting brigades and
divisional troops, can be found from forces in being by the cross-posting of
personnel from other elements in the army and replacing them by enlisting
ex-regulars, selected militiamen and, in some cases, civilians. There is, how-
ever, another manpower requirement arising out of the fact that in the NATO
alliance logistics is a national responsibility and because the division will be
operating off-shore, base support of peculiar Canadian needs is required. This
is referred to as the divisional slice of administrative troops and is not an easy
problem to solve. Included in these administrative troops is an organization to
!aandle our casualties and reinforcements and to replenish peculiar Canadian
items of supply. In this organization are such units as motor ambulance con-
voys, field hospitals, general hospitals, reinforcement centres and base installa-
tions. The pool in manpower and equipment for this is considerable—and it
1s SDeClah§t manpower—and it is not in being. To find these people in sufficient
num_be?s. it is necessary to look to the militia units, to ex-regulars and civilian
specialists.

ot "I‘he second factor I wish to mention is the movement of the balance of the
division to Europe. We have recently been given in outline the plan for the
asseprly and positioning of the balance of the division in SACEUR’s reserve.
It will be positioned on the same supply sysstem as that of the 4th brigade. The
4th brigade is on the British system which supplies common user items such
as rations, gasoline and oil, certain types of ammunition, engineer field stores,
bridges, and spare parts all of which are common to the British and ourselves.
This is on a repayment basis. Canadian personnel integrated into the British
units handle peculiar Canadian items. This decision on the deployment of the
ba.lance of the division has now permitted us to commence detailed plann}ng
with the war office as to the reception and details of the type of supporting
upl_ts. which will be required. I mentioned earlier the requirement for the
divisional slice of supporting units. These plans are plans only. They cannot
be considered hard and fast until this detailed planning with the war office
has been completed. .

Another step we have taken is the procurement of special equipment
for ships such as slings, ship derrick strengtheners and other gear so that
ships can be loaded and unloaded in smaller ports which do not have the same
capacity as the larger ports. This equipment has been thoroughly tested at the
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U.S. marine school, and, of course, can be used to support other operations.
Thus, plans are in being and about to be completed for the movement of the
balance of the division from its home stations in Canada to ports of embarka-
tion and from reception ports in Europe to its concentration area, which leaves
me a final point to deal with and that is the movement from Canadian ports
to European ports.

As you know, there is not sufficient Canadian shipping under Canadian
registry or control to move the balance of the division. However we have been
assured that our needs will be considered as a matter of importance when the
Canadian government authorizes the move of the balance of the division.

Our present planning charts show that we can despatch another brigade
group at full strength and equipped, plus a slice of divisional troops in a
reasonably short time. The second brigade group in Canada can be made avail-
able soon afterwards, together with the balance of the divisional troops and
support units.

Therefore, I feel I can say that within the resources available we have
done everything that we can to meet our commitment of providing a brigade
in Europe and the balance, or two-thirds, of a division as SACEUR strategic
reserve at a given degree of alert.

We have looked at a possible plan involving the prepositioning or stock-
piling in Europe of the heavier equipments and ammunition required for this
strategic reserve. Such a plan would reduce the time by which the force could
be made available. To carry out such a plan, however, would require the
procurement of duplicate quantities of equipment, the provision of storage
accommodation and personnel for maintenance. A preliminary study places this
cost at approximately $135 million and a manpower requirement of at least
400 officers and men. Plans would have to be developed for using air trans-
port to move the men and lighter equipment overseas. Future procurement
would also result in higher costs.

I mentioned earlier that our philosophy is to maintain the highest state
of readiness consistent with our resources and commitments today and also
to be prepared to maintain that state of readiness for the future. I should
now like to inform the committee on the steps we are taking today to be
ready in the future. To provide a background I will briefly review our planning
procedures. The evolution of the field forces of the army is a never-ending
process. It starts with the development of concepts of operations to meet
the threat and passes through studies and tests and trials of organization and
equipment to the actual procurement of equipment and its integration into
units.

In the light of the best intelligence forecasts of the enemy’s intentions,
of NATO strategic intentions and of forecasts of future scientific possibilities,
a concept is evolved of how future battles might be fought and the charac-
teristics of the weapons needed. We do this in collaboration with our NATO
allies to produce an agreed concept of operations for specific periods of time
in the future.

From this concept, which is agreed now throughout NATO for the 1966
to 1970 period, the army evolves its tactical doctrine, organization and equip-
ment requirements. War games and operational research, together with con-
tinual scientific monitoring support army planners in this work. The NATO
armies keep each other fully informed so that ideas are exchanged and
procedures and equipment are standardized or kept compatible.

The third stage is the field testing of techniques and organizations with
new equipment, to ensure that theoretical ideas can actually be applied in
practice. ‘This phase also is subjected to thorough scientific investigation and
results in many refinements.
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It is by this process of evolution of new concepts and doctrine and their
eventual realization in the form of modified organization and the introduction
of new equipment, that the army maintains its state of readiness, not only
for today but for the future. Forward thinking is required, the ultimate goal
being to keep a proper balance of manpower and equipment to make the
most effective use of technical and doctrinal advances.

I wish to repeat that the Soviet forces in Germany are among the best
offensively equipped in the world. They are highly trained for continuous
operations by day and by night, employing massive tank strength in successive
waves, with ample direct airsupport and with or without the use of tactical
nuclear weapons. They possess the latter in ample numbers. The Russian
threat is of concern to all armies of NATO, particularly the overwhelming
Russian tank force.

The NATO concept maintains that the defensive battle will be mobile
and fought over wide fronts and in great depth. Today it is visualized that
the division may have a frontage of up to 30 miles and a depth of up to
50 miles. Even a brigade may have to operate on a frontage of up to 15
miles. I had a slide to show comparisons but something has gone wrong.

In comparison, during the second world war in western Europe the
divisional front was, on the average, four to five miles, its depth varying
from three to ten miles depending on the intensity of the battle.

Thus, you will see the requirement for longer-range signal equipment
to keep command and control in the battlefield, continuous reconnaissance
and surveillance to prevent surprise concentrations and infiltration by an
enemy, a high degree of cross-country mobility and a flexible system of supply
for forces operating under this concept.

The communist tank threat is of the most immediate concern. Their
tank strength is double that which we have in our equivalent division and
in their heavier armoured division it is three times as much. To compensate
for this, we have on order, to be shortly delivered, wire-guided anti-tank
missiles, the SS 11 and ENTAC which are in use in other NATO countries,
including the U.S. Army.

That is an ENTAC mounted on the side of a jeep.

Trials are being carried out this year at Gagetown to develop the best
tactical use of these weapons and to find the most suitable organization for
their integration into the Canadian division. Initial studies were carried out
by the Canadian army operational research establishment which is operated
on our behalf by Defence Research Board, supported with a certain number
of our own officers. This same group will vet the results of the Gagetown trials.

The addition of the extra antitank weapons within our organization will
free the tanks which have been used in antitank roles and permit them to
revert to their offensive counter-attack role in the defensive battle. In addition
to this a plan is being considered which might make it possible to increase the
number of tanks in our field organization from within our present resources.

Although it has not been possible up to the present to implement the
formation of divisional signals, a study has been completed and is ready f‘fl'
submission to implement formation of divisional signals on a restricted basis
by the re-allocation of manpower. Some of the manpower presently serving in
the Suez and the Congo would be carried against this establishment. _Never-
theless, to have the organization, even on a restricted basis, would Pe_rmlt us to
conduct valuable training and would improve our state of readiness. The
signal equipment presently held is not suitable for the concept of the modern
battle. The importance of line is decreased as it is susceptible to breaks and
not sufficiently flexible under rapidly changing battle situations.
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4. RECONNAISSANCE
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The present reconnaissance organization in the army is a reconnaissance
squadron in each of the four armoured regiments. One serves in the east in
Suez, one is in Germany and supported by helicopters, and two supply the
rotational troops from Canada to Suez and Germany.

To provide the reconnaissance required for a divisional front it must be
continuous and cohesive and under the same command and control. The divi-
sional front is so wide it is not possible to cover the whole front with eyes
only, especially at night. Physical reconnaissance must be supported by
mechanical means which we have in the form of new surveillance equipment,
which is now being delivered to us. Trials are being conducted at Wainwright
this summer to incorporate this equipment into the army.

I mentioned the need for mobility which will be provided by the
mechanization of our forces. This is related directly to the threat and is in
accordance with the concept of operations agreed to by NATO. Our forces
should be able to move quickly and have a degree of protection afforded by an
armoured personnel carrier.

I am sure that most of you have read of the “Bobcat” which has been
developed as a universal armoured personnel carrier for the Canadian army.
Although we have been pressed by SHAPE to push this carrier into service
immediately, it is not in our best interests to place it in the hands of troops
before adequate trials are completed. The first 20 prototypes are now becoming
available and engineering trials will be completed very soon. It will then be
possible to seek production.

In spite of efforts to standardize, each army has developed its own armoured
personnel carrier, the U.S. army, the British army and the German army.
The contractor for the Bobecat is carrying out a 2,000-mile test run on the first
prototype and no serious faults have developed so far. The flotation trials
have been most successful. There are three basic types of the Bobcat. The first
is the armoured personnel carrier which can be used in the infantry battalions
for troops and close support weapons. The second has a mounting for the
standard field gun; and the third is the load carrier to provide close support
and resupply on the battlefield to the forward troops. The army originated
this project as far back as January 1954 before any other country had such a
concept. At that time, the cabinet defence committee authorized the manufacture
of one mild-steel prototype for engineering test and preliminary user
evaluation.

Now a few words on what we are doing about battlefield support. When the
new tactical concept was development for the mobile and fluid battle it became
obvious that our support in tpg way of replenishment of ammunition, gasoline,
rations and water was too rigid. At the same time, with the inherent risk of
mass casualities by tactical nuclear weapons, it was obvious that our evacuation
procedures were not adequate. In Shf.ll‘t_, Wwe needed a new organization.

During the past few years a logistic battalion concept has been developed
and tested in principle at both Wainwright and Gagetown and has proved
worthy of further investigation on a more permanent basis. The British chief
of staff was so impressed at Wainright ]:hat he has asked that the Canadian
army put on a demonstration of it for his senior officers this September.

This spring we formed a provisional brigade service battalion from the
service units already existing. This is a new departure from the conventional
method of supply and casualty evacuation we have known up to now. It makes
better use of the manpower we have available, especially the technical man-
power, always a problem with the increasingly more complicated bits of equip-
ment. It is ﬂex.ible so that the proper use o_f air close support logistics can be
controlled. It simplifies and makes more reliable the delivery of pure water to
the forward troops; and the service battalion commander has under his im-
mediate control more transport including air, ambulance and ordinary vehicles
which he can detail to speed up the evacuation of mass casualties. Full scale
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trials are being carried out this summer and for the rest of the year, and our
experience up to now indicates that, with minor modifications, the service
battalion will provide an answer to the problem. Although this is only a
brigade organization at the moment, it is adaptable within the divisional
concept.

5. Tae BOBCAT
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I have highlighted the priority investigations and trials which we are
carrying out. As mentioned in the army’s planning procedures, we make full
use of war games and operational research studies and engineering tests. How-
ever, the final decision must be made after field trials. To this end, authority
was granted last July to form the army tactics and organization board which
consists of 14 officers and 17 other ranks representing every arm and service.
Its principal task is to take the results of the investigations I have mentioned
and to examine the areas where trials should be carried out and then finally to
recommend what they consider the best answer.

The board is responsible for the coordination of all the trials I have men-
tioned so that as new equipment is delivered into the army the proper organiza-
tion will be ready for its tactical employment. It is by this means that the army
hopes to maintain its state of readiness today, and in the immediate future.

The army tactics and organization board has a secondary function—it forms
a nucleus on which the divisional headquarters can be built in case of an
emergency. It has therefore a secondary task—to prepare organizational plans
for this contingency.

I have included these trials in my brief to you this morning simply because
I consider them part of our NATO commitment even though they may have
certain applications to other commitments that the army has been given. So
long as the army has a commitment in western Europe, facing Russian ground
forces, it is inherent in the commitment that we maintain a high state of readiness
now and in the future. This is the aim of our planning and trial programme.
After we resolve the problems I have mentioned there will be others to tackle.

However, I consider the problems we have in hand now the most important
ones we face today.

DEFENCE OF CANADA AND NORTH AMERICA

The Threat of Enemy Lodgements in Canada

Gentlemen, the next part of my brief is on the army’s role in the defence
of Canada and North America. Although a major land attack on North America
is most unlikely, it is possible for the Soviets to create a feeling of insecurity
by raiding parties or the threat of such on Canadian soil. They have several
means of doing this. Such is our geography, that we are vulnerable to this
form of harassment. An enemy could establish himself in the more isolated
parts of our country. He would be difficult to dislodge unless plans have been
prepared and suitable forces were available to deal with him.

I only have to remind you of the aspect of civilian morale, which neces-
sitated keeping a large number of troops in Canada during the second world
war to deal with the Japanese threat in the West and the submarines in the
Gulf of St. Lawrence. Our present plans do not envisage a large number of
troops in this commitment. We have, however, what we call the defence of
Canada brigade. I like to refer to it as the “fire brigade”. It is trained to operate
in any part of Canada, winter or summer. It consists of three battalions, one
from each of the following regiments—The Royal Canadian Regiment, Prin-
cess Patricia’s Canadian Light Infantry and the Royal 22° Régiment. In
each of these battalions there is a parachute-trained component which is main-
taineq and exercised monthly. In addition, the battalions carry out a major
exercise very year.

Arrangements exist between the R.C.A.F. and ourselves to mount opera-
tions in any part of the country and these arrangements are continually being
examined to maintain them at a high state of readiness. To improve the
capability of this force, reconnaissance ski companies are being trained as well.
The force is on the same establishment as the rest of the NATO brigades for
ease of administration and training and the defence of Canada brigade provides
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units for periodic rotation overseas. Of these three battalions one is located
looking to the east, at Valcartier, another is located in Edmonton looking to
the west and northwest, and the third is in central Canada at London and can

be diverted in either direction.

G2.018096
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Arrangements for joint operations are very satisfactory with the R.C.A.F.
and similar arrangements are being made with the Royal Canadian Navy. The
chief of naval staff and myself are preparing a directive to our commanders
on the coasts to undertake small amphibious exercises next year. The air force
have two basic aircraft which we use—the flying boxcar, which is getting old,
and a larger one called the Hercules which can lift anything within the brigade
group, except tanks. I, myself, have seen a force of these two types of aircraft
lift a battalion with all its vehicles, the necessary reserves of gasoline, ammuni-
tion and rations, in less than 24 hours from the time the first parachutists
were dropped. There is, however, no specially designed amphibious equipment
available for operations.

The ground defence of North America is arranged through a bilateral
agreement with the United States to include Canada, the continental United
States and the state of Alaska. The commander of our western command is
empowered, through this agreement, to plan with the Americans. This is
usually referred to as ALCANUS. You have probably read about ALCANUS
conferences in the press. Joint studies and review of our defence plans are
usually made annually.

To bring the balance of the division up to effective strength and to provide
the initial reinforcements for the brigade in Germany, today’s emergency plan
calls for the withdrawal of a number of troops from the defence of Canada
brigade. It is planned, however, that the hard core of parachutists and air-
portable personnel will not be touched in the first instance and the plan is
to re-enlist ex-regulars and selected militiamen into this force to replace
personnel required for the division. This force generally has the same equip-
ment as planned for other brigades but has special equipment in connection
with its role. Troops are equipped with a special range of Arctic equipment,
sleds and a certain number of oversnow vehicles have been procured for
administrative purposes which can be used in support.

It is interesting to note that other special equipment consist of long range,
high powered, low frequency radio sets especially developed for the north to
overcome the interference which is so frequent, due to the effect of the northern
lights on high frequency radio transmission. Another piece of equipment, the
oversnow vehicle, is a tractor developed by Robin Nodwell for oil exploration
in the west and north which is eminently suitable for logistic support for
operations in northern Canada. It is not known yet whether the Bobcat will
be suitable for deep snow operations but, from my observation of its per-
formance last winter here in Ottawa, it looks very promising.

Because of the smallness of the force, and considering the size of our
country, we believe there is. a definite role here for the militia to at least
contain or to shadow any raldgng force. We believe this is a logical role for
them and for the rangers which are organized in independent platoons and
companies in the more isolated parts of Canada. The militia have been given
a directive to train in internal security and anti-guerilla warfare and our plans
envisage their use in this role.

NATIONAL SURVIVAL

The Threat of Nuclear Attack on Canada

Now I would like to say something about survival operations. To start
I will mention very briefly the nuclear threat to North America as portrayed
in our -agreed joint intelligence. Soviet policy statements place increasing
emphasis on the development of long and medium range missiles to act as a
deterrent and also to support their political aims, an illustration of such use
being their recent move into Cuba. At present, however, The Soviet Union
does not possess an operational intercontinental ballistic missile force large
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enough to merit reduction in their bomber force and consequently, the Inter-
continental ballistic missile (which can cover all of North America) and long
range manned bombers together constitute the strategic threat to North
America.

In addition to the bomber and intercontinental ballistic missile threat
there are missile firing submarines which can complement these other strategic
weapons systems. It is not necessary for me to elaborate on the vulnerability
of Canada to this threat.

Survival Operations

I would like to turn now to the role of the Canadian army in national
survival. Under the civil defence order of 1959, the Minister of National Defence,
and, in turn, the army was given certain specific responsibilities. These are as
follows:

(a.) Warning of attack; (b.) Location of detonations and fallout warn-
ings; (c.) Assessment of damage; (d.) Re-entry including rescue
operations; (e.) Direction of police and fire services in damaged
areas; (f.) Direction of municipal and other services in damaged
areas; (g.) Assisting in maintenance of law and order; (h.) Opera-
tion of emergency communications for the Federal Government.

In planning the organization needed to carry out these responsibilities,
certain assumptions had to be made, of which probably the most important
are these:

(a) Firstly, we cannot rely on receiving strategic warning, and the actual
warning we receive may be as short as a few minutes or at the most,
in the case of attack by manned bombers, only two to three hours.

(b) Secondly, there are several cities in Canada which can be considered
possible targets for attack, and of these, the largest cities are the
most likely.

(¢) Lastly, whether or not Canada were attacked directly, there might
be random bombs which might land in this country and there might
be fallout from targets attacked in the United States.

The first requirement, obviously, is for a warning and the army has estab-
lished what is called the national survival attack warning system, to gather
and assess the available information on both threat of bombing and predicted
fallout and to pass on warning to the public. The information would come in the
main from the various NORAD headquarters who would receive warning
through the DEW Line and the missile warning system. The information would
arrive in warning centres in Canada—one for the Federal government and one
for each province—and warning would be passed to the public by sirens and
through the civil radio broadcasts. The warning system is manned by the
regular army and is in operation 24 hours a day, but the siren installations are
only 75 percent complete.

In addition to the national survival attack Warning System we have
developed an organization for reporting actual nuclear bursts and plotting the
development of fallout from them. This is known as the nuclear detonation and
fallout reporting system. Each target city has around it a number of posts to
locate and measure a nuclear blast. These are the nuclear detonation reporting
posts, which are manned by the army assisted by the other services and
selected civilians, Scattered across the rest of the country are some 2,000 posts
to measure and report upon fallout. Some of these are also capable of detecting
random bursts. Thus this system would, when finished, tell us where bursts
and fallout had occurred. At this time it is developed to the point of having
a limited operational capability in about 60 percent of the system.
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In addition to warning the public. and plotting fall-out, we are responsible
for what we call “re-entry operations”—that is, rescue of the injured, first aid
and so on. Experience in peacetime and wartime disasters has shown that there
is little time to conduct rescue if it is to be effective. Very little rescue can be
successful after forty-eight to seventy-two hours have elapsed. Therefore, our
plans are aimed at bringing to bear the maximum rescue force immediately
following nuclear strikes. A headquarters has been established for each probable
target area, called target area headquarters, and they are manned by skeleton
staffs in peacetime. The main job of these staffs is to collect detailed information
at the target area so that if the target area were attacked they would be able
to make the best use of what remains of the resources in the target area to
restore the situation and be able to take advantage by intimate local knowledge
of the city to begin rescue operations with the minimum of delay. There are
many tasks for these headquarters to make the whole cloth in planning. As you
well realize, with today’s complex mode of life, if many of the utilities that we
take for granted were destroyed, rehabilitation and substitution would become
a major problem. It is the job of these headquarters to assist the provincial
and municipal authorities. The principle on which we are working is that we
should hand back the responsibility to the normal forms of government as soon
as they are in a position to accept them and that we only act in an emergency
if and when civilian control breaks down.

The troops required to enter a city that has been attacked come from both
the regular army and the militia, and are to be supplemented by -civilian
volunteer workers organized into what are called “Mobile Survival Columns”.
A column consists basically of a command and control element—which consists
of regular and militia personnel—and several rescue companies in which the
civilian volunteer could work. The army components of 265 of these columns
have now been organized and most have been equipped. They are grouped in
66 mobile survival groups. These, in turn, would work under the target area
headquarters which have been set up. '

It is planned that all the military resources that could be made available
in Canada at the time of the attack would be devoted to ensuring our survival
as a nation. Defence of Canada and re-entry operations would be the highest
priority for allocation of military manpower. As mentioned above reliance is
being placed on employing civilians in considerable numbers, under army direc-
tion, to assist in re-entry. The militia has received extensive training in re-entry
operations, as have the members of the regular army.

United Nations and Similar Operations

I turn now from NATO and home defence to the international commitments
of the army, which Canada has undertaken in support of the United Nations,
through bilateral agreements with commonwealth countries, and as a partici-
pating member of the international commissions for supervision and control in
Indo-China. The army has been given a number of tasks by the government..
These tasks vary anywhere from an officer and one other rank in Korea to a
battalion-size force in the Suez. The manpower involved in these tasks totals
1270.

There is one complication, however, and that is that the personnel we have
been asked to provide so far have been, in large part, technicians and specialists
—soldiers who, to become professional in their trades, require not only extensive
initial training but also, because they serve in isolated posts, should have a
reasonable amount of experience. Because of the very natyre of their specialty
and trade, their proportion in the army to the general fighting man is quite low.
Thus we have a problem of finding these personnel and also, because they have
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to be rotated once a year at least, of finding sufficiently qualified personnel to
replace them. Obviously, it is unfair to ask a soldier and, especially an older
soldier as a highly trained specialist would be, to be separated from his family
too frequently for a year at a time. We have tried as a matter of policy to send
abroad officers and soldiers no more frequently than once in five years for a
so-called lonely posting. There are, of course, single men and others who
volunteer for extended tours and for repeat tours, but these are the exception
rather than the rule. To find the back-up for these forces we look to the soldiers
in our training and logistic establishments.

The minister has already informed you that Canada maintains a “Standby
Battalion” for United Nations duties. The 1st Battalion, Royal Vingt-Deuxieme
Regiment is now earmarked and at short notice to move, and is kept at full
strength for this role. Since its inception in January 1958 the standby battalion
has been altered several times—examples are the crises in the Lebanon and
in the Congo. It is exercised periodically in cooperation with the R.C.A.F. to
check its state of readiness and its operational procedures for dispatch by air
to overseas destinations. For instance, last month we moved the battalion from
Valcartier to Wainwright across Canada and on landing it carried out an
exercise to restore law and order. This type of exercise is as close to the real
thing as we can get. However, in case Canadian infantry might not be asked
for, and this is based on previous experience, the 3rd Canadian infantry brigade
group has been earmarked as a contingency force from which we would provide

units for unforeseen commitments, for example, other United Nations special
forces.

More than 800 Canadian army servicemen are with the United Nations
emergency force in the Sinai peninsula on reconnaissance and service support
duties. This force is composed of a reconnaissance squadron, presently sup-
plied by the Lord Strathcona’s Horse, a signal troop totalling 12 officers and
217 men, and a special administrative group of 57 officers and 536 men which
provides administrative support for the whole of the United Nations force
in the Middle East.

In the administrative group, an engineer company provides the works
services, water supply, defences, mine clearing, and so on. I visited the Suez
force last January and found them in good heart. I was particularly gratified to
be told by the U.N.E.F. commander, General Gyani, that he relied heavily on his
Canadian component because of their training and professional attitude. I,
myself, witnessed a good example of this when I visited a post at the mouth
of the gulf of Agaba. I found an engineer corporal and two of his soldiers
sweltering in the heat and repairing the distillation plant on which the whole
force at that point depended for its water. The corporal reminded me that the
last time we had served together was in Whitehorse, Yukon, in 1947, the year
of the big freeze.

The Canadians also run the workshop for the repair of all the vehicles—
I might interpolate here that they also conduct repair courses for all United
Nations forces there to keep the vehicles on the road—and we man the signals
detachments, movement control, provost, army service corps transport, and an
element in the United Nations headquarters. -

In the Congo, 57 Canadian signals unit with over 300 all ranks provides
military communications for the United Nations organization. This force com-
prises a signal unit of 15 officers and 175 men, an administrative _element of
10 officers and 77 men, and a staff contribution in the United Nations Congo
Headquarters of 14 officers and 20 men.

I have already mentioned the effect of these commitments on our other
commitments. Rotation in the Suez is on a yearly basis, while in the Congo
it is on a half-yearly basis due to climatic conditions. However, a reduction in
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the Congo commitment is forecast this summer in line with the planned United
Nations force reduction. I have just been notified of the first moves out.

There are, in addition to the two larger commitments I have mentioned,
the Suez and the Congo, the following: 42 officers and 34 men are serving one
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year tours with international commissions in Viet Nam (27 and 26) and Laos
(15 and 8), and small groups of officers are serving similar tours with various
United Nations organizations in Palestine (16), Kashmir (8), and Korea (1).
Four army officers have now been allotted to the United Nations organization
being set up to supervise the withdrawal in the Yemen. There is a special
engineer officer in Nigeria on map duties. Recently, there have been inquiries
concerning Canadian army participation in other United Nations activities.

A team assists in the training of the Ghanaian armed services and 31
officers and men (mostly army) accompanied by their dependents, serve two-
year tours. It seems that this is useful as we have been asked for 10 more—
7 army and 3 R.C.A.F. officers. Minor assistance is provided to Nigeria and to
Trinidad and Tobago, with a number of their officers and officer cadets under-
going training in Canada.

We take these commitments most seriously. We conduct courses for offi-
cers chosen for such duty and all are thoroughly indoctrinated by officers with
previous United Nations experience and by external affairs. They are carefully
selected to give not only the right trades and specialties but also to ensure
that we have worthy representation abroad.

Although these assignments make a demand on our overall manpower, and
complicate our planning to meet our other commitments, there is a credit
side. Canada is making a major contribution to the United Nations and to newly
emergent countries. For the army there are advantages, as well as the problems
I have outlined. The first of these is the benefit to the army and to the career of
the soldier himself. There is a tendency, notwithstanding the best intentions in
the world, to get into a bit of a rut from day-to-day soldiering in Canada. Such
postings of officers and men to assist other countries broadens the experience of
the soldier and, to my mind, makes him more valuable to the army. In addi-
tion, there is an intangible benefit to Canada as a whole in that they have
proved to be good ambassadors for our country.

ASSISTANCE TO CIVIL AUTHORITIES

The armed forces may be called upon in peacetime and in war to assist
civil authorities in a number of ways:

(a) the attorney-general of a province may call out the army, under
authority of the National Defence Act, to deal with riot, insurrection
or other disturbance of the peace, real or apprehended.

(b) The forces may be called upon to help in any number of civil
emergencies. The army is the coordinating service for such activities.
There have been many examples of this type of assistance, rangir_lg
from searches for lost children to putting out the forest fires in
Newfoundland in 1961. More recently we have been active in flood
control operations caused by the unusually severe ice conditions 1n
northern rivers this spring.

(c) The armed forces serve the government, and may be called upon
to perform such tasks as are in the public interest. Thus the forces
are available to other government departments to carry out any
work for which the particular resources of a service are suited.
The army has two standing commitments of this sort:

(1) Garrisons located near federal penitentiaries are prepared
to send formed bodies of armed troops to assist in the main-
tenance of order at very short notice. The units concerned do
exercises in this role to ensure quick response. Troops have
helped control disorders at Stoney Mountain, Manitoba, New
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Westminster, B.C., and St. Vincent de Paul near Montreal.
Troops of the Royal Vingt-deuxiéme Regiment have been
standing by at St. Vincent de Paul quite recently.

(2) Another standing commitment is the provision of an artillery
detachment for avalanche control in Glacier National Park
each winter. Where the trans-Canada highway goes through
the Rogers pass it is overhung by a number of avalanche paths.
In order to prevent avalanches of destructive proportions, in-
cipient snowslides are precipitated by bursting high explosive
shell at a critical point of the snow mass. This is excellent
experience for our artillery. I have visited this detachment
and I have been assured by the park authorities responsible
that the procedure is proving most effective.

(d) Armed forces explosives experts are authorized, by delegation from
the Minister of Mines and Technical Surveys, under the Explosives
Act, to deal with dangerous and abandoned explosives. There are
numerous incidents of various types of explosives and dangerous
war souvenirs being reported to the police. The police in turn
call upon our people to identify, make safe and remove the ex-
plosive. Although this is tricky work, we treat it as routine.

(e) A slightly different problem is assistance to the police in the re-
moval of explosive devices planted for sabotage purposes. There
have been several such incidents in the last few years in southern
British Columbia and, more recently, in the province of Quebec.
Since these incidents are criminal cases we have no responsibility
and simply respond to requests for help from civil police authorities.

No special organization is set up in order to meet these commitments. Gen-
erally speaking the army’s greatest asset is its ability to produce a formed
body of disciplined men which has its own communications, transport and ad-
ministration, and which can be supported by specialists with a wide range of
skills. Generally speaking we do not have special gear to meet these demands,
but use the equipment we have. However, in the past few years we have
kept readily available in all commands, and especially these commands vul-
nerable to forest fires, a mobile forest-fire fighting kit and troops are trained
in its use. To enhance our readiness to assist civil authorities in fighting forest
fires, we have also had officers and men on courses in forest-fire fighting con-
ducted by some provinces.

To illustrate the diversity and widespread nature of these tasks, I have
summarized the assistance given by the army to civil authorities in Canada
in the past year.

The first table shows federal government tasks.

The second table lists tasks undertaken at the request of the provinces.
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FEDERAL COMMITMENTS
Standing Commitment. Snow Slide Control—Glacier National Park. Gun Detachment, Eqgpt

& Ammo.

17 Jun-18 Jun 62. . ... Riots—St Vincent de Paul Penitentiary. ... 327 Troops & Equipment.
15!18epr62.1.0% ALER. AN Doukhobor disturbance—Mountain Prison,

Agassing B 130k sl oM OH. el & Troops & barbed wire.
B9 NOv 6241 . J& . tasl Minor Flood—Mountain Prison, Agassiz,

6 B R S S N | 9 peent Flood control work.
21 Apr-23 Apr 63..... Riots—New Westminster Penitentiary. . ... 100 troops.
Apr-May 63.......... Flooding—Hay River, Fort Simpson, Akla-

i oyl o i, b fma iy g ol M Ice demolition experts,

staff helicopters.
MRy I M. IRGEE Tension—St Vincent de Paul Penitentiary.. Standby force.

PROVINCIAL REQUESTS

7Jul-17 Jul 62...... Forest Fires—La Tuque, Que............. 31 Troops, Radio Eqpt
22 Aug, 26 Aug 62. ... Search for Kidnapped girl—Beeton, Ont.... 300 Troops
1 Oct-5Oct 62...... Search for old man—-Parry Sound, Ont..... 100 Troops
Feb08. o3l .26 7% Search for lost aircraft—Petawawa area. ... Light Aircraft
31 Mar-2 Apr 63...... Search for mute child—Charleswood, Man.. 100 Troops
1 Apr-3 Apr63...... Flooding, Chateauguay, Que.............. Ice Demolitions
18 Apr-24 Apr 63..... Flooding, McLeod and Athabaska Rivers,
Whiteerat. Alba. .. ..o % e oo atiiush Ice Demolitions
May 63. . v on ool Bomb incidents—Montreal.............. } Explosive Experts
Bomb hoaxes—Ottawa.................. Provided
27 May 63 . iosac B Hospital fire—Chicoutimi, Que............ Personnel and Equipment
28'May 63" % IUUE 8 Forest fire—Mont Laurier, Que........... 20 Troops, Radio Eqpt

MILITIA AND ARMY CADETS
Militia

Traditionally, the militia has been the back-bone of the Canadian army.
With the advent of the risk of a nuclear war however, the concept of the
“forces in being” was adopted for future hostilities, which cast some doubt on
the militia’s future role. However, this has now been clarified and the militia
has a primary role across Canada in support of survival operations.

Since World War Two the militia has been used in aid to the civil power—
for instance in hurricane Hazel—and it has also provided personnel for United
Nations commitments; for example in the early days in Kashmir. During
1961-62, with initial aid from the regular army, the militia trained some
70,000 men for rescue and re-entry operations, by means of special courses.

Our present plans for survival operations require the militia to provide
approximately 500 units of various types across the country to carry out
re-entry operations into 16 target cities. It is planned that militia personnel
and selected civilians will man many of the filter centres in connection with
the fallout reporting system. Much of the work in this field can be ably
accomplished by the Canadian Women’s Army Corps and present policy is to
gradually build up this corps to do this work. :

In so far as training is concerned the militiaman is trained first as a soldier
since the strength of the militia lies in its capability to provide a formed body
of disciplined men. Militiamen undertake their survival traning as soon as their
basic military training js completed. Units and groups of units conduct exercises

in re-entry and rescue operations at periodic intervals on the target cities to
which they have been assigned.
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The present concept of field operations in which Canada might become
involved does not include initially wide participation by the militia. However,
if and when the balance of the division is sent from Canada, it is planned
that approximately 7,000 members of the militia will be required to replace
regular army personnel withdrawn from the support units in Canada and to
bring up the defence of Canada force to strength. Our plans call for the use
of the militia to support the RCMP in the intial stages of a war for internment
duties and security of vital key points. It is estimated that at least 2,500
militiamen would be required for this purpose.

To meet these commitments approximately 50,000 effective militiamen
are being trained this year in survival operatons and in basic corps skills
besides learning their fundamental tasks as soldiers. In addition, their train-
ing this year will include anti-guerrilla and special internal security training.
To find the future officers and NCOs, approximately 8,000 high school students
are trained each summer on special courses. These courses are conducted by
the militia themselves and the results have been most encouraging. Last year
some of these high school students were seen by a visiting general and the
impression they made on this general was such that he thought they were
Regular troops. He was amazed when I told him they were part of our student
militia training. I might add that the requests for running these courses exceed
our capacity to meet them.

Cadets

The Royal Canadian Army Cadets provide basic training for 75,000 boys
between the ages of 14 and 19. The emphasis during training is on the
development of leadership, patriotism and good citizenship.

While not a part of the forces, army cadets are trained, administered and
equipped by the army. Cadet training and administration are carried out by a
group of officers of the reserves and civilian instructors totalling 2,400. Over-
all supervision is the responsibility of approximately 130 officers and men of
the regular army.

General training is carried out by all cadets with their cadet corps during
the school year. During the summer months over 6,000 selected cadets attend
cadet camps conducted by the regular army in various centres across Canada.
'.fhe emphasis during camp training is on the development of leadership and
ms.trp.ctional abilities and on specialized training, such as first aid, survival
training, signals, driving and citizenship.

. _TQ many boys this army cadet participation is their first exposure to a
disciplined organized life. The success of the programme can be measured in
part by the_ Increasing number of requests to establish more cadet corps as
the population of our country increases. We are presently operating under a

ceiling of 75,000. I might add, Gentlemen, that one cannot fail to be enthusiastic
after seeing these boys at their work.

NORTHWEST HIGHWAY SYSTEM

There is an additional commitment in Canada which does not fit into the
pretcedlng headings but I believe deserves mention. It is the northwest highway
system.

The army operqtes the Canadian portion of the Alaska highway, through
a military organization known as the northwest highway system In it there
are some 57 officers and 352 men, plus a force of some 655 civilians' all in year-
round employment. The annual direct cost to the army is some $’11,900,000.

The portion of the highway we operate runs from 5 point about 100 miles
north of Dawson Creek, B.C. to the Alaska-Yukon border, and includes a cut-
off road from a point in the Yukon at mile 1016 north of Dawson Creek, to
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Haines, Alaska, on the Pacific coast. There is a government-to-government
agreement with the United States to keep the main road open for U.S. military-
traffic to Alaska and at the standard which existed at the time we took it over.
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In addition we have an annual undertaking with the U.S. army for snow
clearing on the Haines cut-off to give access to an oil pipe-line pumping-station
which is operated by the U.S. army.

When we first took over, there were many weaknesses in the concept of
the original highway, for example many of the bridges were wooden-pile
construction which had to be replaced. The maintenance policy has been to
maintain and improve the standard in order to whittle down maintenance cost.
I believe this has been accomplished. Major projects on the highway are done
by contract but the day-to-day maintenance is done by civilian employees
under direction of the army engineers. Equipment and transport are main-
tained by the Royal Canadian Electrical and Mechanical Engineers and trans-
port is operated by the Royal Canadian Army Service Corps.

The operation of the highway has given the Canadian army wvaluable
experience in the north. As one of the originals who took over the highway
from the United States army in early 1946 I found that there was a general
unfamiliarity in the army about serving in the north. We knew little about it.
Today however, a great many of our officers and men have had experience in
northern operations. The northwest highway system has contributed a great
deal to this as well, of course, as our winter training establishment in Fort
Churchill.

CONCLUSION

Gentlemen, I am coming to the end of my briefing but, before closing,
I would like to mention briefly the logistic and training organizations in Canada
which are needed to support the Army to meet the commitments which I
have outlined. The logistic organization includes such units as ordnance stores
depots, electrical and mechanical engineer workshops and smaller administra-
tive units which, because of our geography, must be deployed from coast
to coast. They support not only the regular army but also the militia and
cadets. This organization is maintained at the same state of readiness as the
forces it supports and places the same emphasis on flexibility. This is essen-
tial if it is to react quickly to unexpected demands in times of emergency.
For example, at the time of the Suez crisis when the decision was taken to
change our forces from an infantry battalion group to the technical service
group we have today, it was necessary to completely re-equip the force. Only
by having depots and workshops and having them work around the clock were
we able to do this in the time allotted.

The logistic organization has another vital role. Although it has a large
number of civilians, from its military component it provides the back-up of
the technical and specialist personnel for the balance of the division and
it holds, within our manpower ceiling, a pool of rotational personnel to support
our other commitments abroad. It provides the in-job training on specialist
ix_qflhtary equipment and functions which cannot be readily found in civilian
ife.

Before leaving the subject of our logistic organization, I would like to
mention that we are keeping up-to-date with the latest technological ad-
vances in the field of industrial operations and management techniques. For
some years now we have conducted work-measurement studies in all our
larger operations and we are receptive to new ideas leading to economy in
manpower and money. It is essential for us to stretch the army defence dollar,
to get as much from it as we can. We already have in use an automatic data
processing system for personnel pay accounting and records services, and we
are now conducting trials on the application of automatic data processing
systems in the field of stores accounting.

I have mentioned only briefly our training forces. These are essentially the
schools where our recruits, specialists, NCOs and officers are trained. You
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will appreciate that an army of our size, with its need to achieve a high state
of readiness for a diversity of commitments, ranging from operations on a
nuclear battlefield to the provision of a survey specialist for Nigeria, requires a
complex training organization. This organization must conduct many different
forms of training and must also indoctrinate soldiers for service under climatic
and topographical conditions ranging from northern Canada to the tropics.
In a large army, this is not difficult as specific forces can be assigned to such
tasks, but in an army the size of ours it means a great many of our personnel
must be trained not only in basic soldier roles but also must become jacks
of all trades. Where our demands for specialists are small, and it would not be
economical to set up our own schools, we take advantage of training courses
for these specialists in the British and U.S. armies. Both armies have been
extremely co-operative in this regard.

Gentlemen, this concludes my briefing. I have tried to give you a compre-
hensive picture of our operations today and our endeavours to maintain our
state of readiness to meet constantly-changing circumstances. We are trying
to make the best possible use of the resources available to us in manpower,
equipment and dollars. In closing, I would like to say that we try to do every
job that is given to us to the best of our ability.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I am sure we all appreciate the very full and
comprehensive briefing delivered this morning by the chief of staff of the
Canadian army.

It is my understanding that the general is a very busy man and must leave
Ottawa this afternoon on his way to Gagetown. Through you, Mr. Chairman,
I should like to ask when it would be convenient to the general, at the request
of this committee, to appear before this committee for a full day, to enable us
to question him in a thorough manner in respect of this laudable presentation
this morning.

The CHAIRMAN: I think this will have to be brought up at the steering
committee. Through the minister we will be in touch with the general, and we
could report on this at a later date.

Mr. WincH: Do you know how much notice the general will require to be
here, taking into account his other commitments?

Mr. WALSH: I am afraid it is up to the minister to answer that, he
commits me.

Mr. HELLYER: He will need some notice at the present time because of the
commitments we have. I refer to the general’s commitments with respect to
visiting some of the operations which are presently under way in the field and
those we have under way in the department.

Mr. WincH: Could you tell us how much priority this committee has?
Mr. HELLYER: A considerable amount.

The CHAIRMAN: Anyway, we are already committed until July 23. The
steering committee could meet and we could then go through the formal pro-
cedure if we want the general to come back.

Mr. MaTHESON: Would it be possible, in the time available now, for the
general to give us any picture at all of the role of the Royal Military College
and the other service colleges in this whole situation?

The CHAIRMAN: Before we go on with the pursuit of the questiomng_Of
the minister or General Walsh, I would like to refer to Mr. Deachman’s point
of order raised at the last meeting. This problem of supplementary questions
and the order of questioning was reviewed by the steering committee, and I
now feel that the best way to proceed is to partially waive the procedure
except when somebody raises a supplementary question. I will then ask members
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who have already given their names if they have questions in the same field,
and if they have, they will proceed with their questions. I will then allow the
member who asked the supplementary question to proceed with his questioning.
We will try to cover one question at a time as much as possible so that we can
cover in a better way the various aspects of the items we are discussing.

Mr. Walsh, could you proceed with the answer to the question put by
Mr. Matheson?

Mr. SMiTH: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman, do you think it would
provide a little more orderliness if, for instance, the chairman called the section
as a general guide but not as a firm rule? For instance, General Walsh’s state-
ment is broken down very neatly into various compartments or various sections.
It might be more useful for the committee if the chairman asked the committee
if they wanted to start their questions by asking the minister questions on the
section of the statement that dealt with the North Atlantic Treaty Organization,
for instance. When that section was finished we could move on to the various
other ones. Perhaps that would give some guidance from the Chair to the
committee so as to keep this more orderly.

The CHAIRMAN: This was considered, but as the question put by Mr.
Matheson was not covered at all in the general statement, it would be difficult
to put this into practice.

Mr. SmiTH: It is simple. His question would come at the end.

The CHAIRMAN: Then there would also be questions of a general nature.
We have reviewed all of this, and for the time being it is felt that possibly we
could proceed in this way for a few more meetings and then we might have
to go through certain specific fields of questioning.

Mr. HELLYER: May I answer the question put by Mr. Matheson because, as
you know, the colleges are now tri-service and I am tri-service.

I think it might be useful, in view of the considerable interest in the service
colleges, if, at a later meeting, the committee asked that the director be brought
to give a brief statement in respect of the service colleges and answer any
questions that you would have in respect of them at that time. As you know,
it is quite a comprehensive specialized field, and I am sure that if you are
interested in this subject it will be valuable to you and to other members of the
committee to have some statement on it.

Mr. MATHESON: It seems to me it is very desirable, and if we could have the
agreement of the committee that this should be done, it would be one of the
most useful meetings the committee would have.

The CHAIRMAN: I will refer this to the steering committee to try to work
it into our program.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I do not think it is possible in only ten minutes
to start any questioning of General Walsh on his presentation, but may I have
your permission to direct a question to the minister concerning something
which I think requires clarification. What are the views of the minister with
regard to the work, operation, responsﬂ:{lhtles, and power of this committee?
In other words, I think it is now time, since we have ten minutes left, to find
out directly from the minister in what position as minister, he places this
committee. We have now had a number of meetings and I think they were very
worth-while meetings and questions, but I would like to know, in view of
the repeated statement of the minister that he has a number of policy matters
under consideration, before decision is made by himself or the government,
whether what he has in mind will be submitted to this committee for its
consideration and recommendations? Are we to be left in possession of the
number of matters which have been mentioned at the past four meetings by
the minister, or are we to be presented with a fait accomypli?
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I think it is time now, in view of the fact that we have had a number of
meetings, to learn from the minister directly what he considers to be our
responsibility and power, and that we should be told whether we are to be just
a questioning committee or whether we are to be presented with a fait accom-
pli, and whether this committee will be given the decency of being asked if we
have any recommendations to make.

Hon. PauL T. HELLYER (Minister of National Defence): Mr. Chairman, my
attitude towards the power and responsibility of this committee is that of
complete acceptance of its power as set out in the resolution which was passed
by the House of Commons. The terms of reference are very clear and I would
not attempt to elaborate on them, either to enlarge them or to narrow them
in any way.

Mr. WincH: I want clarification, sir, that is all. May I then ask the minis-
ter if what he has just said means that in respect of what he has told us of
certain reviews being made, for example, of frigates and so on, we will not be
given a fait accompli, but that this committee will be taken into his confidence,
and that our views will be considered before any policy decision is made by
the government?

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, in this country we operate under the system
of responsible government. Under this system it is the responsibility of the
minister of each department to make recommendations to the government,
which if they are adopted, become the policy of the government for presenta-
tion to parliament. I would not wish in any way to abrogate this system.

In respect of the particular projects that you are referring to, decisions on
some of them will have to be taken before this committee concludes its delib-
erations, unless it concludes them more quickly than I would expect. Other
decisions of a long-range nature will not of necessity be taken until some
time later when, perhaps, this committee will have concluded its deliberations
and will have had a chance to make recommendations to the government
through its reports in the House of Commons.

As I stated earlier, any recommendations or views that this committee
makes through its report to the house will be considered by the government
and by the department in the course of its reviews. I cannot, however, change,
nor would you wish me to change long established principles under which a
system of responsible government should operate.

Mr. WincH: I would not ask you to do that, but may I ask now, in view of
your statement that certain decisions will have to be made by yourself as to
recommendations to the government before this committee can make a report,
if you would take under consideration advising the chairman of this committee
what those policy decisions are, so that, perhaps, this committee could re-
arrange its order of business to give consideration to those matters which you
think require urgent attention?

Mr. HELLYER: Well, Mr. Chairman, if this committee wishes to discuss any
particular subject, it is within its competence to so decide.

Mr. WincH: Would you advise us about those matters of early procedure?

Mr. HELLYER: It is not within my jurisdiction to advise the committee as
to the course which it should take, nor could I present to the committee all
of the subject matter which is presently under review.

Mr. WINCH: Does that not have a tendency to make a little bit of 2 farce
of this committee?

Mr. CHUI_‘CHILL: Mr. Chairman, this obviously is not a committee to
determine policy for the government, This is redundant. The other day in the
house the question was asked of the minister whether he would refer to the
committee the question whether or not the frigate program of the navy was
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going ahead. He said he would not refer that problem. If he would not refer
that I doubt whether he would refer any other problem. We might just as well
proceed with what we are doing now which is gaining information and the
hope is that this information will get across to the public. Of course, we are
not charged with determining policy.

Mr. ASSELIN (Notre-Dame-de-Grace): Recommendations as to policy?

The CHAIRMAN: Order. May I say a word. It seems to me we have to receive
some information before we are in a position to make recommendations. Some
problems have been raised by members this morning. There is a steering com-
mittee. We have received our orders from the house and not from the minister.
Our orders of reference are contained in Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence
No. 1. We have to proceed according to the orders we receive from the house.
It seems clear to me, as I said in my opening statement, that we are here to
study and review future and present defence policy, and if this committee
decides we have to study certain aspects of this policy immediately, after
consultation with the steering committee I will report our conclusions and we
will be in a position to do as we please; we have been ordered by the house
to do so.

I would not like the minister to commit himself to any policy this morning
in answering those questions until we on the steering committee have reviewed
the problem. Then, in consultation with the minister, we could proceed to make
recommendations as to how we should proceed in respect of the problems raised
this morning.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I know the terms of reference. Perhaps I did
not put it in the right way. What I am asking is this: in view of the information
which has been given us by the minister, would he indicate to us—and I imagine
he has the absolute right and responsibility to do it—whether there are any
phases of defence in all its departments that he thinks he would like to have
early consideration of by this committee and a report thereon? I think that is a
fair question and I believe that this is completely within our power, if the
minister is prepared to do it. Is he?

Mr. HELLYER: In my opening statement I mentioned some of the major
matters presently under review. If this committee wishes to consider those
early in its deliberations, it is within its power to do so.

Mr. McMiLLaN: There is nothing to prevent us making an interim report
on any aspect, is there?

Mr. WincH: I am asking basically, will the minister take us more into his
confidence on these matters?

An hon. MEMBER: I suggest we take the minister more into our confidence
too.

The CHAIRMAN: It is half past twelve and this committee stands adjourned
until Tuesday morning at 10.30.

OFFICIAL REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

This edition of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence
contains the text of the Evidence in the language in which it
was given, and a translation in English of the French texts
printed in the Evidence.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, July 16, 1963.
(7

The Special Committee on Defence met at 10:40 a.m. this day. The
Chairman, Mr. Maurice Sauvé, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Notre-Dame-de-Grdce), Béchard,
Brewin, Churchill, Deachman; Fairweather, Granger, Groos, Hahn, Lambert,
Laniel, Lessard (Lac-Saint-Jean), Lloyd, Maclnnis, MacLean, Martineau,
Matheson, McMillan, Patterson, Sauvé, Smith, Temple, Winch.—(23).

In attendance: The Honourable Paul Hellyer, Minister of National Defence;
Honourable Lucien Cardin, Associate Minister of National Defence; and Air
Marshal C. R. Dunlap, Chief of the Air Staff.

The Chairman called the mecting to order; and he tabled the printed record
of the Hearings before a Subcommittee of the Committee on Appropriations,
House of Representatives, Eighty-Eighth Congress, first session (parts 1-6
inclusive).

Ordered,—That the above-mentioned documents be identified as Exhibit
No. 1.

The Chairman also tabled a list of Abbreviations used in the Department
of National Defence.

Agreed,—That the above-mentioned list be printed as Appendix “A” to
today’s Evidence.

Air Marshal Dunlap read the submission prepared on behalf of the Air
Force. During that presentation a number of slides were shown; reproductions
of some of those slides are included in the evidence, as closely as possible, to
the points of initial reference.

The Minister and the Air Marshal were questioned.

During the questioning, the Minister read a brief statement respecting the
release of information concerning the threat to the North American Continent.

The Chairman mentioned that the Committee would be leaving today to
visit NORAD Headquarters at Colorado Springs.

At 12:40 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

TuUEsDAY, July 16, 1963.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. This morning we shall have a
presentation by Air Marshal C. R. Dunlap, Chief of the Air Staff, R.C.A.F.
Before calling upon the Air Marshal, I would like to file as exhibit No. 1 before
this committee the department of defence appropriations for 1964; hearings
before a subcommittee of the committee on appropriations of the house of
representatives, 88th congress, first session. This is in answer to a request made
by members of this committee at an earlier meeting.

ExHIBIT 1: The Department of Defence Appropriations for 1964;
copy of proceedings of appropriations subcommittee of 88th congress.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: How many volumes are there, Mr. Chairman?
The CHAIRMAN: There is only one volume here.

Mr. SMmiTH: I understand there are five volumes, actually, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: There is only one which has been given to us. However, if
members feel there are others which would be useful, we might request them
also. Do you know if they would be useful to us, Mr. Smith?

Mr. SmitH: Well, some of the other volumes would be of use to the com-
mittee, yes. I think, if possible, the committee should have the whole five
volumes of the hearings.

The CHAIRMAN: We shall follow it up then and request the five other
volumes.

I would also like to file as Appendix A to today’s evidence a list of Abbrevia-
tions used in the Department of National Defence. This would be very useful
for members of the committee at future meetings.

Mr. SMITH: Does it include the ball park figures?

The CHAIRMAN: I am sorry, not yet. This will be printed as an appendix
Is that agreed?

Agreed.

Mr. McMiLLAN: Could you not file the material used in connection with
NATO, the army, and the navy as well?

The CHAIRMAN: I think it covers everything, NATO, army, navy and
air force.

Perhaps Air Marshal Dunlap would now proceed with his presentation, and
might I say that the minister will be with us at 11:15.

AIR MARSHAL C. R. DUNLAP (Chief of the Air Staff, R.C.A.F.): Mr. Chair-
man and gentlemen, I welcome this opportunity to appear before you today.
The brief which I am about to present will last about 60 minutes. It will

describe the role of the R.C.A.F. and then the manner in which we perform our
assigned tasks.
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The roles performed by the R.C.A.F. stem principally from Canada’s inter-
national commitments, which are summarized in Canadian defence policy as
follows:

—to contribute to the defence of the Canada/United States region
—to contribute, as a member of NATO, to the defence of western
Europe and the north Atlantic;

—to assist the United Nations in emergency actions.

All these commitments have as their primary objective the maintenance of
world peace, which in turn depends in large measure upon the maintenance of
an adequate military capability. It follows that all operational components of
the R.C.A.F, must be ready in concert with the forces of other allied countries
to meet the most demanding task—deterrence of all out war.
In line with Canadian defence policy, the R.C.A.F. has been assigned
responsibility for the provision of:
—forces for the air defence of north America;
—forces for maritime operations in the Atlantic and Pacific oceans;
—forces for the defence of western Europe;
—airlift support for the Canadian armed forces at home and overseas;
—forces for, and operation of, a national search and rescue service;
—forces and facilities for DND operations connected with civil
defence. (These DND operations are known collectively as “survival
operations”);
—forces to participate in United Nations’ operations and,
—training for personnel of the air forces of NATO and other countries,

1. RCAF ORGANIZATION

To carry out these responsibilities the R.C.A.F. is organized on a functional
basis, with—reading from right to left—one functional command in Europe,
that is No 1 Air Division, and five functional commands in Canada, which are;
Maritime Air Command, Air Defence Command, Air Materiel Command, Air
Transport Command and Training Command,—all of which we normally refer
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to by their initials. In addition, at this point, I might mention that any air
officer in command of such a formation is called the Air Officer Commanding,
which we abbreviate as AOC,

Before discussing these five commands, I would like to say a few words
about NORAD, and its place in the Canadian scene. But first a word about the
threat.

It is well known that the threat to this continent includes both manned
bombers and ballistic missiles, all of which would be expected to carry nuclear
weapons. Although the threat from ballistic missiles is already significant, and
is increasing, it has developed much less rapidly than was expected a few years
ago. Consequently the Soviet bomber force will continue to be the greater
threat for several years to come, and will remain a serious threat even after
it is surpassed in magnitude by the missile threat.

Within the state of the art today, an effective active defence against the
manned bomber is both attainable and relatively economical; however, the only
practical means of defence at this time against ballistic missiles involves such
passive measures as dispersal, hardening, use of fall-out shelters and, of course,
the provision of warning. A most significant aspect of today’s threat is that it
could materialize as a full-scale attack with only minutes of unmistakeable
warning, and this situation is unlikely to improve. In the not too distant future
we will also be faced with enemy satellites overhead in an operational role,
and while it seems unlikely that these will replace other delivery systems, they
will undoubtedly serve other important needs.

NORTH AMERICAN AIR DEFENCE
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2. NORTH AMERICAN AIR DEFENCE

From the late 1940’s, when it first became apparent that the Soviet air
forces were developing a significant capability to attack North America, until
1957 Canada and the United States—while co-operating closely in the field of
air defence—each maintained its own, fully autonomous air defence system.
In 1957, however, it was mutually agreed that air defence of the Canada/
United States region was a single, indivisible problem which could be ade-
quately dealt with only by an integrated command.
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NORAD is an integrated command, responsible for operational control
of all air defence forces directly involved in what has become known as the
“aerospace” defence of Canada and the United States. These forces include
interceptor squadrons, ground-to-air missile squadrons, radar and other sensor
systems and operational control centres. The commander in chief is responsible
equally to the governments of Canada and the United States, through the
Canadian chiefs of staff committee and the US joint chiefs of staff respectively.
The total area of the North American air defence command is divided into air
defence regions, each with an operational command post as its regional head-
quarters. Each region is divided into air defence sectors within which the
commander is responsible for all air defence actions.

At each of the headquarters responsible for exercising control over
significant forces or airspace of both Canada and the United States, the staff
of the headquarters is composed of both Canadian and United States officers,
and the commander and his deputy are not from the same country. There are
some 400 R.C.A.F. officers and men in NORAD regional and sector headquarters
in the United States. In the case of the northern NORAD region, with its
headquarters at North Bay the commander in an R.C.A.F. officer. He is
responsible to the commander in chief of NORAD for exercising operational
control over all Canadian and United States forces operating within his region
of responsibility.

AIR DEFENCE COMMAND
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3. ADC ORGANIZATION CHART

The AOC ADC, whose headquarters is located at St, Hubert, Quebec, has
as one of his principal responsibilities the administration, training and support
of the R.C.A.F. air defence forces assigned to NORAD. In this capacity the
R.C.AF. ADC is known as a component command of NORAD; the other
NORAD component commands are U.S.A.F. air defence command, U.S. army
air defence command and U.S. naval forces, CONAD, The R.C.A.F. combat
forces assigned to NORAD include five all-weather CF101B fighter squadrons.

o
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5. CF101

One squadron is based at each of Comox, B.C., North Bay, Ont., Ottawa, Ont,,
Bagotville, Que., and Chatham, N.B. e

The CF101B is a two-seat, supersonic, all-weather, day and night inter-
ceptor designed to carry a mixed load of air-to-air missiles—comprising two
“Falcon” missiles (with high explosive warheads) and two nuclear-tipped
rockets,
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6. BoMARC

To complement these manned interceptors, a Bomarc B surface-to-air
missile squadron is located at each of North Bay, Ontario, and La Macaza,
Quebec. The Bomarc B in its latest operational trials has proved to be a
highly reliable and effective weapon, with unique capabilities against both
very high and very low level targets, and, of course, at all intermediate levels.
Both R.C.A.F. Bomarc squadrons are ready to the point of acquiring a nuclear
capability. Attainment of this nuclear capability, however, requires both the
provision of nuclear warheads and the prior selection, training, and assignment
of the U.S. custodial and warhead maintenance personnel—a process that will
take some time.

An air defence operational training unit (O.T.U.) is located at Bagotville,
Quebec. This unit provides the basic training for aircrew in tacties and
procedures prior to their conversion to the CF101.

An electronic warfare unit (E.W.U.) at St. Hubert, Quebec, utilizes the
operationally obsolescent CF100 and C119 aircraft equipped with electronic
jammers, and provides the conditions and targets for exercising the air defence
system under electronic jamming conditions.

As a further responsibility, the AOC ADC conducts the operational training
of aircrews assigned to the R.C.A.F. No. 1 air division. For this purpose he
operates what is known as a Sabrg transition unit at Chatham, N.B., and a
strike reconnaissance operational unit at Cold Lake, Alta. The Sabre transition
unit provides aircrew with experience in aircraft of high subsonic performance
and in low-level tactics before they proceed to Cold Lake,

The strike reconnaissance operational training unit at Cold Lake provides
aircrew and ground crew training on the CF104 and a large part of this
program is devoted to training aircrews in low level navigation and bomb
delivery techniques.

In air defence the radars, communications, and command and control
facilities which provide the necessary warning, surveillance and control capa-
bilities are known collectively as the “ground environment”. The Canadian
portion of the NORAD ground environment, most of which is now operated
by the R.C.AF. ADC, embraces three separate warning and surveillance
systems. The first system is located generally in the southern area of Canada
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7. PINETREE RADAR SITE

and is commonly known as the Pine Tree system. The major components of
this system are radar squadrons, each equipped with a variety of large radars
for various purposes. Up to the present, these squadrons have provided the
means of controlling the air battle. This system is currently operated manually
and employs fighter controllers and assorted operation staff at each radar site.
The Pine Tree system was built and has been operated jointly by Canada and
the United States. The R.C.A.F. now has both financial and manning responsi-
bility for all of these radars except six located in Newfoundland and Labrador,
and we do man the radar squadron at Gander, Nfid.

-

8. RapAR—MIDp-CANADA LINE
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North of the Pine Tree system is the mid-Canada line. This line is a
tractical warning line, which, in effect, is a thin, vertical electronic fence. It
detects aircraft passing through its coverage from ground level up to great
height. It was built by Canada, and except for the operations positions which
are filled by the R.C.AF. service personnel, the line is maintained and oper-
ated for the air force by civilian contact.

9. RADAR—DEW LINE

North again of the mid-Canada line, on the Arctic coast, is the distant early
warning, or DEW line built by the United States. This is a composite line com-
bining both heavy rotating radars, similar to those employed in the Pine Tree
system, and a Doppler radar fence similar to that on the mid-Canada line.
Here again the operational centres of each of the main stations in Canada are
manned by R.C.A.F. officers.

Under a joint Canadian/U.S. program known as CADIN (which stands for
continental air defence integration north) we are increasing the effectiveness
of the NORAD system. One aspect of this program (which is now nearing
completion), involves extending and improving the radar coverage across
southern Canada. It also involves changing from the manual-type of command
and control system to a semi-automatic system. This system, called SAGE
(which stands for semi-automatic ground environment) automatically trans-
lates information obtained at the radars and other sources, into a form which
can be used by a computer, and transmits this information by automatic
communications links to a computerized direction centre. Here the information
is sorted and corelated by the computer, and either stored or displayed according
to the instructions that have been inserted into the computer program. The
automatic features of the system not only eliminate human errors and increase
the capacity of the system, but also provide the commander with a picture of
the air situation that is essentially current instead of several minutes old. It
should be appreciated that in today’s situation minutes are important since, at
supersonic speeds, an aircraft or missile moves many miles in only a few
minutes. Twenty-five Canadian radar sites are in the process of being SAGE’d
and an underground SAGE command and control centre close to R.C.A.Fj
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10. A1r DEFENCE IMPROVEMENTS

station North Bay is now nearing completion. The slide on your left is an
artist’s conception of this installation. The structure, which lies in the depth
of the solid rock formtaion, will house the headquarters of both northern
NORAD region and the Ottawa SAGE sector.

In addition to these ground environment elements for defence against the
manned bomber threat, NORAD now has reporting to its HQ command post a
rapidly expanding detection and tracking system which keeps track of, and
identifies, every satellite or other object orbitting the earth. Some of the
facilities in this system are located in Canada, and the R.C.A.F. is participating
in their operation.

It is not commonly known that our aircrews in all-weather air defence
squadrons average 60 hours on duty per week under normal peacetime
conditions. This duty includes periods of standing alert, ready to take off
virtually instantaneously to intercept and identify any unauthorized penetra-
tion of North American airspace. To be qualified to stand alert these aircrews
must attain and maintain the highest standard of proficiency. This standard
can only be achieved and maintained by means of strict adherence to an
exhaustive training schedule and frequent participation in realistic air defence
exercises.

MARITIME AIR COMMAND

The role of R.C.A.F. maritime air command (MAC) is to train and support
the R.C.AF. forces provided for anti-submarine operations in the Atl.antlc
and Pacific ocean-areas adjacent to North America. These forces are assigned
in peacetime, to the operational control of Canadian maritime commanders,
Atlantic and Pacific. Our forces on the east coast are earmarked, however,
for assignment in wartime to the NATO supreme commander Atlantic (SA-
CLANT). The threat which these forces are intended to counter was covered
in the brief presented by the CNS.

The integrated maritime headquarters on each coast, at Halifax and
Esquimalt, exercise operational control over both R.C.N. and R.C.A.F. forces;
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A DEPLOYMENT BASE :
11. MarRITIME AIR COMMAND

consequently the maritime commander and his deputy are from different
services, that is, from the Canadian navy and from the R.C.A.F. In peacetime,
the maritime commanders on both coasts are operationally responsible to the
chiefs of staff committee. However, in wartime the Canadian maritime com-
mander, Atlantic, is additionally designated as a subordinate commander of
the NATO allied command, Atlantic and becomes operationally responsible to

12. ARrGUS



DEFENCE 171

SACLANT for anti-submarine operations on the high seas. The Canadian
maritime commander, Pacific, while remaining under national control in war-
time, will co-ordinate his operations closely with the United States navy com-
mander-in-chief Pacific (CINCPAC).

On the east coast our maritime air command maintains three maritime
patrol squadrons equipped with Argus aircraft. Two of these squadrons are
based at Greenwood, Nova Scotia and the third is at Summerside, Prince Edward
Island. Summerside is also the location of our maritime operational training
unit where all new maritime aircrews are trained in the maritime role. R.C.AF.
station Torbay, Newfoundland, is maintained as a deployment base for use in
adverse weather or other emergency conditions. On the west coast, at Comox,
we have a fourth maritime patrol squadron.

Two maritime air command units—the squadron on the west coast and
the operational training unit— are equipped with Neptune aircraft. The Neptune,

13. NEPTUNE

as you are no doubt aware, is an anti-submarine aireraft which is widely used
throughout NATO. It is equipped with considerable electronic gear, and is
fitted out to carry a variety of anti-submarine weapons. :

As already mentioned the squadrons on the east coast are equipped with
the Argus maritime patrol aircraft. The Argus is a Canadian ‘built, long-range
anti-submarine aircraft equipped with the latest electronic devices for the
detection of hostile submarines. Its present armament embraces the full range
of conventional anti-submarine weapons. This aircraft was designed specially
for the maritime role, and has a range in excess of 5,000 nautical miles and a
normal cruise endurance of twenty-four hours. .

It is believed that both the Argus and Neptune aircraft will continue to
be suitable for this role through the 1960s. However, it must be recong_ed 'that
the weapons and equipments carried by these aircraft have their limitations.
For this reason, as improved detection and localization equipments and weapons
become available these must pe given consideration.
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AIR TRANSPORT COMMAND

14. A1r TRANSPORT COMMAND

The third operational command of the R.C.A.F. is Air Transport Command
with its headquarters at Trenton, Ontario. This command is the air-carrier for
the Department of National Defence, operates one reconnaissance squadron
which conducts necessary surveillance in the arctic, co-ordinates R.C.A.F.
responsibilities for survival operations, and provides such tactical support as
is needed by the army in Canada. The type and quantity of ATC’s equipment
is geared to its wartime task. This includes airlift support required for im-
plementation of the three services’ emergency defence plans, all of which
depend in no small measure on the immediate availability of airlift from air
transport command. A major part of ATC’s peacetime task is the provision of
logistic and personnel airlift required to support R.C.AF. and Canadian army
units overseas.

To carry out these tasks ATC has five squadrons—one long range trans-
port squadron equipped with 12 Canadian built Yukon aircraft; two troop carrier
squadrons of C119 aircraft, one of which has been augmented with four C130
Hercules; one special transport squadron with a variety of air transport types,
and a reconnaissance squadron equipped with T33 aircraft and the famous
but now antiquated Lancasters. ATC operates a transport operational training,
unit and a field technical training unit at Trenton, Ontario, to provide
conversion training for both air and ground crews. This command also ad-
ministers the Canadian joint air training centre at Rivers Manitoba, where a
number of training courses, including basic helicopter ’ﬂying trai,ning are
provided for air force and army personnel. ¢

Under UN sponsorship, ATC operations extend to the Congo, Indo-China
the Gaza strip and now Yemen. In the Gaza strip, at El Arish, a small R.C.AF.
communications flight is maintained in support of internal UN commitments.
This flight consists of Caribou and Otter aircraft, ang provides the only local
air transportation and aerial reconnaissance support available to the United
Nations emergency force,



DEFENCE 173

ATC provides a weekly airlift from Canada to El Arish and the Congo
via Pisa, Italy. This airlift is provided primarily to support the Canadian
components of the UN forces in the Gaza strip and the Congo, but it also
carries other UN personnel and cargo on a “space available” basis.

Air transport command is also called upon from time to time to render
assistance to civil authorities during peacetime emergencies, such as the
evacuation of civil populations from forest fire and flood areas and the airlift
of emergency relief supplies to disaster areas, both domestic and foreign. The
most recent operation of this type was the evacuation of the populations of
Hay River and Fort Simpson.

The four principal aircraft used by air transport command are—

The Yukon, which is a long range, turbo-prop, heavy transport aircraft
built by Canadair. This is the aircraft that is being used extensively to provide
support for Canadian overseas forces, non-stop between Canada and Europe,
carrying loads of up to 43 thousand pounds or 134 passengers.

Next, the Hercules, a long-range heavy transport aircraft built by Lock-
heed, and designed for the air transportation of troops and materiel, for
delivery by parachute if necessary. These extremely dependable and versa'fﬂe
aircraft are used for the regular suppply of our Artic units, as well as being
the carrier for large bulky equipment in Canada, and overseas when either
operational or other circumstances dictate. During the annual Arctic re-supply
operation in April of this year, approximately 160 passengers and 1,'{00:000
pounds of cargo were delivered to six weather stations largely by one aircraft,
in a 12 day period. We are currently using the Hercules t{o a‘irl.ift CF104
aircraft direct from the factory in Canada to our air division bases in Europe.

Then, there is the Cosmopolitan, which is a medium-range, medium
capacity, turbo-prop aircraft built by Canadair and used domestically for a
variety of purposes including special passenger flights. ,

And, finally, we have the Caribou, which was designed and built by
DeHavilland of Canada. It is a strictly utilitarian twin-engine airplane, capable

29153-4—2
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16. HERCULES
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19. 1 A1r Drvision

The fourth major operational role of the R.C.A.F., performed by 1 air
division in Europe, is to contribute to the NATO deterrent in Europe and,
should this deterrent fail, to contribute to the defence of western Europe.

The threat to this gres is too well known to need much elaboration.

here are many Soviet army divisions in East Germany and some in the
Other satellites—as wel] as several thousand tactical aircraft in direct support
2015342
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thereof. Added to this, there are satellite ground and air forces. The Soviets
have a large and increasing number of ballistic missiles of range sufficient
to cover the principal allied strength throughout NATO Europe. Should the
deterrent fail, the particular role of our air division involves the destruction
of targets of immediate and direct significance to the conduct of military
operations against allied command Europe. For example, airfields and the
aircraft thereon would be subject to immediate attack as part of the process
of quickly gaining air superiority. Major bridges would be destroyed to delay
the advance of enemy troops, as would ammunition, fuel and other depots.
The weapons employed in these operations would be of the smallest possible
yield commensurate with the task; rather than being in the megaton class,
as has recently been suggested, they tend to be at the lower end of the scale.
The R.C.A.F. air division has been assigned to SACEUR, and in turn is
under the operational control of the commander 4th allied tactical air force,
otherwse known as 4 ATAF. This tactical air force, also embraces the United
States 17th air force, a West German air division, and several squadrons of

20. 1 A1r DivisioNn Units

the French air force located in West Germany. Generally speaking, 1 air
division headquarters and its four main wing airfields are located astride
the French-German border. The headquarters at Metz and two of the wings,
Marville and Grostenquin, are in France, while the two remaining wings are
in Germany at Zweibrucken and Baden-Soellingen.

To provide for the annual continuatiqn weapons training of its aircrew, the
air division operates an air weapons unit, as a lodger unit at the NATO air
weapons training installation at Decimomannu, Sardinia,

As you are aware, we are now in the process of re-equipping the air
division squadrons with CF104 aircraft for employment in the strike recon-
naissance role.
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21. CF104

As I have indicated, in the strike role the squadrons would serve in a
short-range, tactical capacity, attacking targets whose destruction would con-
tribute directly toward minimizing an enemy’s capability to support his front
line formations.

As far as the reconnaissance role is concerned, the aircraft’s equipments
are such that it is capable of performing a limited reconnaissance role only.
When the aircraft is to be used for reconnaissance, cameras are carried in a
pod which can be fitted to the centre line of the aircraft in approximately
30 minutes.

Four squadrons have already been re-equipped with their new aircraft

gind, according to present plans, the last squadron will be reactivated early
In 1964. However, it must be appreciated that, regardless of other factors, none
of these squadrons can become operational in the strike role until they have
their weapons, have completed the necessary training in conjunction therewith,
and have successfully passed a formal tactical evaluation.
_In the strike role, CF104 squadrons will be required to maintain demand-
ing, continuous alert commitments. When not on alert status the crews will
carry out rigorous operational training exercises to enable them to maintain
the minimum standards required to retain their combat-ready status. These
exercises are designed to simulate the navigation and bombing problems which
they would experience during their assigned wartime missions.

AIR MATERIEL COMMAND

To support the operational commands there are two other commands.
One of these is Air Materiel Command, with its headquarters at R.C.A.F.
station Rockcliffe, Ont. The functions of AMC can be stated broadly as the
procurement and distribution of materiel, plus the repair, modification and
quallty control of RC.A.F. equipment‘ For these purposes AMC operates
supply depots, repair depots and technical service units. .

The AMC “supply” complex might be considered as one of Canada’s
largest wholesale businesses. Its principal customers are other R.C.A.F. com-
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mands, stations and units; but, in addition, the R.C.A.F. continues to provide
logistic support for aircraft which have been given to other countries under
mutual aid. No Canadian business organization attempts to serve the con-
stantly changing needs of so many widely dispersed formations, for such a
diversified range of products.

_AIR MATERIEL COMMAN

S AMCHQ
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22. AR MATERIEL COMMAND

AMC has three general supply depots in Canada that occupy approximately
three million square feet of warehouse space. In these depots more than one
million line items and 100 million pounds of materiel are processed annually.

It will be obvious to you that a fast reacting, automated system is essential
to stay abreast of this workload. To meet this requirement, AMC uses an
IBM 705 electronic data processing system. All requisitions from R.C.A.F. units
are despatched by teletype and automatically fed into the computor. The
computor then does all of the routine tasks associated with reviewing the
availability of stocks, and automatically orders the items required from the
nearest supply depot, or other source.

As an addition to these present uses of computors at AMC the possible
use of automatic data processing for centralized control of our entire inventory,
including both unit as well as depot stocks, is under study.

Because the R.C.A.F. operates major formations on two continents, and
across the full brea@th of North America, a considerable portion of our
inventory is—at any given time—necessarily tied up in transportation. We refer
to this non-effective portion of our inventory as “pipeline”. However, our
recently increased air transport capability has had a marked effect in reducing
the quantities required in these supply pipelines. For example, by airlifting
the jet engines used in air division CF104s between the overhaul contractor
in Canada and the user bases in Europe, we achieved a saving of 18 in the
requirement for spare engines for a financial saving in this item alone of
5% million.
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23. TRAINING COMMAND

This brief and rather cursory review will, I hope, give you some feeling
for the magnitude of AMC’s task and the steps we are taking to increase its
efficiency.

TRAINING COMMAND

The second support command is Training Command. The AOC, training
command is responsible for all aspects of air and ground crew training in the
R.C.AF. up to but not including operational training.

The majority of our air training units are in the prairie provinces, while
the ground training units are located in Ontario and Quebec. Training command
headquarters is at Winnipeg, Manitoba.

After a period of indoctrination, selection and preflight training, including
a few hours flying in Chipmunk aircraft, pilot trainees proceed to a basic
flying training school, and receive some 160 hours on Harvard aircraft. The
graduates of the FTS then proceed to an advanced flying school to achieve
wings standard on the T33 Silver Star jet aircraft.

Radio/navigator training to wings standard is conducted by the air naviga-
tion school at Winnipeg. Advanced training of selected graduate radio/navi-
gators is given at the central navigation school which is also at Winnipeg.
These schools make use of the Beechcraft C45, known in the R.C.A.F. as an
expeditor, and the rather ancient Douglas DC3, which we call the Dakota—
both something less than ideal for this purpose.

In addition to meeting R.C.A.F. training requirements we have, since 1950,
trained approximately 8,000 aircrew from eleven other NATO countries.
The original NATO commitment was completed in January 1959 and a later
commitment to train 220 pilots for the West German air force was completed
later in the same year. Canada continues to provide training for approximately
75 aircrew each year under bilateral agreements with Norway and Denmark.
Also, we are providing advanced training on Sabre aircraft to thirty Norwegian
graduate pilots a year, and have recently undertaken the complete flying train-
ing of a small number of Nigerians up to instructor standard.
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Recently the R.C.A.F. was authorized to procure a basic jet trainer, which
we have named the “Tutor”, to replace the Harvard in the flying training
schools. The Tutor, designed and built by Canadair, has an altitude capability
in excess of 40,000 ft. and a speed range from 65 to 400 knots. The first of
these aircraft should begin coming off the production line early next year.

Our groundcrew personnel, who are and must be the solid foundation
upon which any modern air force is built, receive their basic training at our
manning depot, in St. Jean, Quebec. Here they are schooled in all of the basic
knowledge and skills required by any airman regardless of his trade. From
manning depot they proceed, according to their specialty, to one of the several
specialist training schools at either R.C.A.F. station Clinton, Ontario (which
specializes in the communications and electronics field) or Camp Borden,
Ontario (which specializes in the trades associated with aircraft, engines and
armament systems). To properly appreciate both the depth and importance
of grounderew training today one must first appreciate that, in the past 25 years,
the technical complexity of the various equipments that we use has increased
to an almost fantastic extent. We are able to operate these equipments effec-
tively, efficiently and safely only because of the very thorough training we
give to, and the high standards we demand from, our groundcrew personnel.

SEARCH AND RESCUE

ORGANIZATION of SEARCH ang RESCUE
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24. SEARCH AND RESCUE ORGANIZATION

There are two other functions of the R.C.A.F. I would like to mention
briefly. The first of these is search and rescue, which is both a national and
international responsibility under ICAO (The International Civil Aviation
Organization).

As I mentioned earlier the R.C.A.F. has the prime responsibility in the
Canadian area for conducting and coordinating all search and rescue opera-
tions. The R.C.A.F.’s search and rescue responsibility embraces the provision

of aid to aircraft and ships in distress, including coordination of the use of
marine search and rescue facilities,
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The Canadian area of responsibility has been divided into four regions
in which search and rescue activities are coordinated through the wvarious
rescue coordination centres shown by the red triangles on the map.

For rescue purposes we now have a total of twenty-two specially equipped
aircraft. This fleet will soon be modernized by the introduction of several
twin-turbine Vertol 107 helicopters. This specialized force is augmented with
aircraft from other sources, as required, for search operations.

25. VErRTOL 107

The air force flies about 8,000 hours a year on search and rescue missions.
In 1962, a total of 47 search operations was conducted, resulting in the survival
of 97 individuals who might otherwise have perished.

R.C.AF. AUXILIARY

The R.C.A F. auxiliary, which is the active element of the R.C.A.F. reserves,
comprises 11 flying squadrons, and a number of medical and technical units, all
under air transport command.

The flying squadrons are equipped with Expeditors (which are also used
for a number of other purposes in the R.C.A.F.), and the internationally popular
Otter designed and built by DeHavilland of Canada. These squadrons, as
equipped, are ideally suited for short-range aerial communications and recon-
haissance tasks, and they are being used regularly by air transport command
for such purposes. To maintain proficiency, the personnel of these squadrons
carry out prescribed weekly and annual training. e

The wartime role of these squadrons is to provide such short-range airll t
and aerial reconnaissance as may be required by the Canadian army in national
survival operations.

I have now outlined for you all of the major activities of the R.C.A.F.
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Now let us look briefly at the R.C.A.F.’s financial and equipment situation
generally, and at the manner in which the R.C.A.F. uses the financial and
other resources that the government makes available to us.

27. OTTER
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BUDGET AND FINANCE

It is sometimes suggested that the Canadian armed forces are among
the best paid, best fed and poorest equipped in the world. This is certainly a
highly misleading and inaccurate description. If our armed forces enjoy a
higher standard of living that the forces of certain other countries—and they
unquestionably do—this is simply because Canadians in general enjoy a higher
standard than the people of these same other countries. As for our equipment,
speaking for the air force I must say that most of our operational aircraft
are, at the present time, first class. We do, as I have pointed out, have some
obsolescent and even a few obsolete aircraft in our inventory but this is un-
avoidable if we are to get an acceptable, useful life out of these very costly
items, and also if we are to avoid peak expenditures on capital equipment
that would far exceed our normal budget level. We are, however, quite properly
concerned over the ever-increasing squeeze being applied to the funds available
for equipment and plant replacement. This is caused, on the one hand, by the
relentless increase in normal operation and maintenance costs and, on the
other, by a progressively decreasing defence budget. Let me illustrate this
with a few figures. In 1955/56 the R.C.A.F.’s budget was divided evenly
between capital expenditures and recurring costs. The picture has changed
since then. In 1956/57 the proportion was 44 per cent for capital and 56
per cent for recurring. In a gradual progression we find in 1962/63 and the
current year that about 75 per cent was needed for operations and maintenance
with only 25 per cent left for reequipment and capital outlays.

This persistent change in fund allocation has been due to many things.
In addition to the factors already mentioned, during the past ten years the
R.C.A.F. has had to operate (1) with progressively smaller budgets, (despite
the declining value of the dollar), (2) with the acquisition of more and more
complex equipment which is correspondingly, more expensive to operate
and maintain, and (3) with the acceptance of more and more national and
international commitments.

It could, of course, be misleading to compare one year against another
in isolation, because we will always have some unavoidable variance in capi-
tal spending. For example, a CADIN program or a CF104 program can inflate
the capital budget over a one or two year period. We have, therefore, taken
the average spending in the various categories over the past five years and
put them on the chart. We see that, even with the heaviest years of spending
on CADIN and the CF104 included, an average of only 31 per cent went for
capital. That we have been able to reserve even this percentage for capital
has been due partly to the strides we have been able to achieve in logistic
support operations, and other management improvements, and partly to the
deferral to future years of necessary plant modernization or replacement. In
summary, I do not mean to leave the impression that a 50-50 division of
funds between capital and operating costs is essential, but you should be
aware that something has to give if recent cost trends continue.

R.C.A'F. MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

The R.C.AF. itself has always tried to manage its resources in a way which
will economically achieve and maintain a sound military posture, capable of
effective action in emergencies. Today our management practices are con-
stantly being put to the test: first, by the variety and severity of possible mili-
tary threats; second, by the rapid scientific and technological change which
impacts very heavily on the R.C.A.F.; and last, but not least, by the neces-
sity for restraint in making demands on the country’s resources Of dollars,
scientific brains, and technological skills. ¢

In the air force we have staff whose primary duty it is to keep informed
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on the threat, on the state of the art (both in warfare and technology), and
in the other areas of knowledge required to conceive and make sound recom-
mendations on the kind of equipment which ought to be procured. In making
recommendations these staffs look into all alternatives and examine carefully
all aspects of the problem, including cost versus effectiveness and other fac-
tors which bear on the feasibility and wisdom of possible courses of action.

In managing the development and acquisition of our materiel and equip-
ment we employ many of the most modern management techniques, including
one known as “PERT” (which is a military adaptation of the so-called “critical
path method”, now so widely used by industry).

Finally when the “user” command receives a new weapons system, it
is provided with a predetermined scale of manpower and materiel, and with
instructions on operational, maintenance and management matters and tech-
niques. These are, of necessity, all based on the experience of other ‘‘users”
of the equipment (if any) adapted to our own situation and intended use, on
the basis of our own best judgment. As you will realize, in some cases there
may be little or no previous experience on which to base decisions concerning
these matters, and in such cases some wrong forecasts are bound to be made.
However, as first-hand operating experience is acquired, refinements in pro-
cedures and in the determination of requirements begin, and the new weapons
system is brought to an optimum state of readiness and effectiveness as quickly
as possible while at the same time adjusting the supporting resources, both
direct and indirect, to achieve maximum economy.

Throughout, in developing both major decisions and the myriad of lesser
administrative and operational implementing actions, we strive to keep our
management practices as sound as possible. To this end, we critically examine
our own experience, and that of other armed forces and industry, for ways
and means of improving our efficiency. For instance:

For many years we have devoted considerable effort to the education
and training of our officers and NCOs in the practices and functions
of management. For example, this summer we are introducing a
senior officers management seminar as a means of emphasizing the
importance of good management, and to disseminate current informa-
tion on management improvement techniques.

We provide special staffs to apply and promote the use, throughout
the air force, of modern management improvement techniques. For
example, we have a continuous methods-improvement and time-study
program in being, which results in the tasks performed by over 25,000
of our working force being periodically scrutinized.

We welcome constructive investigation by outside agencies, such as
the Glassco commission, recognizing them as a valuable source of
suggestions for our own constant efforts toward self-improvement.

Perhaps I could sum up in this way—there is usually a gap between what
one strives for and what one achieves, and there is always room for improve-
ment. Having said this, I feel I can truthfully state that the RCAF stands up
well in any comparison with other air forces on the basis of effectiveness per
man and per dollar spent.

And now, gentlemen, in my closing remarks I would like to emphasize
few points. As I hope this briefing has shown, the role of the R.C.A.F. embraces
a wide variety of operational and supporting tasks, all of which have as their
primary purpose the maintenance of peace. However, recent technological
advances in both weapons and delivery systems have made it possible for an
enemy to mount an opening attack, with little or no warning, on a scale that
could be catastrophic. For this reason all of our operational commands must
be ready, at all times, to deter such attack. Indeed most of our units at home
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and abroad are on the job 24 hours a day, day-in and day-out, throughout the
year. This imposes heavy and constant demands upon our aircrew and support
personnel, in their regular tasks associated with the maintenance of an opera-
tionally-ready posture. These peacetime tasks, in fact, are geared to and
similar to those which might be expert under actual wartime conditions.

I think you will agree with me that the operational record of the R.C.A.F.
so far has been the object of admiration internationally, and a source of pride
to Canadians. The principal concern of every officer and man in the R.C.A.F.
is to keep it that way.

THE CHAIRMAN: Mr. Winch.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I am certain we are grateful to the air marshal
for his presentation. One could ask a vast number of questions. However,
sir, may I ask two questions at this moment. In view of what he has said
about early warning, can the air marshal give us the reasons why to a great
extent our DEW line warning system is to be almost cancelled.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, here we go again,
in respect of a document which is divided into sections, we begin perhaps half
way through it. This was brought up at our last meeting. Why do we not start
and take it section by section, thereby working our way through the document.
With 24 of us here to ask questions in respect of this document, would it not
be wiser if we started at the front and worked our way through it section
by section?

The CHAIRMAN: I thought Mr. Winch was going to raise this question and
that is why I allowed him to speak right away. I agree with Mr. Churchill that
it might be preferable to go through it section by section.

Mr. WiINcH: My first question is in relation to the first statement made.
The first one is on the DEW line warning which most certainly is the first
section.

The CHAIRMAN: What page is this on?
Mr. WincH: My second question is on page 5.

The CHAIRMAN: The first three pages are on organization. Are there any
questions on that section?

Mr. CHURCHILL: Yes, Mr. Chairman. On page 1 it is stated that the most
demanding task of the R.C.A.F. is deterrence of all-out war. This is rather
basic to a study of the role of the R.C.A.F. In the opinion of the air marshal
or in the opinion of the minister who is now here, is it the basic philosophy
of the air force planning that our air force is to act as a deterrent to all-out war,
because the organization of our air division in Europe now, when it is fully
equipped, is that of a nuclear deterrent force. Is that the concept we now have
with regard to our air force?

The Hon. PAUL HELLYER (Minister of National Defence): Mr. Chairman,
I think it certainly contributes to the total deterrent. As we have stated before,
Canada’s forces and commitments are contributions toward the total strength
of the alliance, and in his regard they would be part of the total deterrent
to all-out war.

Mr. CHURCHILL: May I ask this question: is it essential to add to the
present deterrent force in the hands of the United States?

Mr. HELLYER: Mr. Chairman, that is a difficult question to answer, because
you have to break the answer down into the strategic and tactical aspects. As
has been stated before in this committee, it is pretty well agreed that *_the
strategic detel.'rent is adequate and the plans for dispersing and hardening
would make it adequate for the immediate future. There is, however, the
feeling that the tactical aspect of the deterrent still could stand some additional
strengthening.
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Mr. BREWIN: At some time, would the minister give us more particulars
in respect of that. This is not the first time he has told the committee there
were deficiencies in the tactical support of NATO. I would be interested in
knowing where such deficiencies are said to lie.

Mr. HELLYER: We might come back to this, but I believe in my opening
statement I referred to the type of targets which were normally assigned to
the tactical forces in Europe. They are in general those targets which would
have an effect on the immediate outcome of a battle in the European area and
would include those short range missiles which are directed toward central
European targets.

Mr. BREwWIN: In this deficiency in tactical nuclear resources, is there a lack
of adequate tactical nuclear weapons and the equipment to deliver them in
Europe?

Mr. HELLYER: In the opinion of the military leaders of the western
alliance there is.

Mr. BREWIN: Can you give us any more detail on that?

Mr. HELLYER: Not at the moment.

Mr. WiNcH: In order to get it clear, I am wondering whether we are to
direct our questions in respect of policy to the minister now. I hope we will
have the minister here at almost every meeting. I am wondering whether we
should direct our questions now to the air marshal because he cannot be
with us at every meeting. It is rather important to decide whether we are
going to direct questions to the minister—and I have plenty if you follow
that course—or whether we are going to direct them to the air marshal.

The CHAIRMAN: In the past we have directed questions both to the Minister
and the main witness and I think we should proceed in this manner again this
morning. Mr. MacLean, is your question related?

Mr. MAacLEAN: Yes, it is, Mr. Chairman, I have one brief question. What is
the approximate number of R.C.A.F. personnel engaged in other duties which
are odd—and I use the word “odd” in the sense of being unusual—and which
have not been enumerated here? I am thinking of such things as postings to
staff colleges, air representatives abroad, air attaches and that sort of thing.
Could you give us a rough figure?

Mr. DuNLaP: I would have to give a very rough figure; I have not a
precise total in mind but I think upwards of 1,000 are involved in installations,
courses and in those areas to which you have referred.

Mr. LAMBERT: Mr. Chairman, I would like to revert to the line of question-
ing developed by Mr. Churchill where you indicate the most demanding task
of the air force is the deterrence of all-out war. On the other hand, since we
are considering defence forces for Canada, what is your conception of the

air force role with respect to defence of Canada and what proportion do you
consider that should play in your over-all role?

Mr. DunNLaP: The forces that we have in Canada—and certainly those
which are concerned with air defence—are playing their part in deterrent
strategy in as much as they are concerned, amongst other things, with the
protection of the forces of military commands in both Canada and the United
States and particularly strategic air command, which is tahe main deterrent
force.

Mr. LAMBERT: Can you put a percentage figure on this or, in your mind
is it not subject to assessment of that kind? ; Z

Mr. DunraP: I do not think I could put g B eentage. Sansnins it
Practically the whole of our operational effort overseas, and our forces in
air defence command at home, and in maritime command on the east coast
are in greater or lesser degree concerned with the deterrent strategy.
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Mr. LamBeRT: The R.C.A.F. is not involved in any retaliatory portion of
the deterent?

Mr. DuNLAP: Quite right, and I should have emphasized that. That is not
part of our role. We play no part whatsoever in the offensive or strategic
aspect of providing a deterrent; ours is more in the subsidiary aspects of the
deterrent.

Mr. LaAMBERT: But would you agree that there is a shaded area here when
you are considering the role of the air division as it is now being developed?

Mr. DUNLAP: Personally, no, I would not; I would not. Having spent a num-
ber of years in SHAPE I am familiar with the targeting and I know that our
forces will be concerned with tactical operations, that is, tactical targets which
are concerned with the conduct of the tactical battle between the land and the
air forces.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Winch, is your question related?

Mr. WincH: I would hope that those questions directed by Mr. Lambert
would lead me to page 5 upon which I would like to ask a question.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr. Chairman, I have one more question in connection
with page 3.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions up to and including
page 3?

Mr. WincH: I thought he was referring to page 5.

Mr. CHURCHILL: Mr. Chairman, I am dealing with the first section, pages 1
to 3 inclusive. Referring to the first paragraph at the top of page 3 the air
marshal reaches the conclusion—and these are his words:

Consequently the Soviet bomber force will continue to be the greater
threat for several years to come . . . .

The information we have received from the congressional investigation in
the United States is that the bomber threat is not considered to be the greater
threat. I read into the record at the second last meeting the statement made by
Mr. MacNamara to the effect that he put the ICBM attack as the most difficult
to deal with and the most dangerous and, secondly, the defence against missiles
launched from submarines. And, if you continue to read the evidence of that
congressional committee you will discover the Soviet bomber threat is not
considered to be the greater threat; it is now in third place. I would like to

ask why the air marshal considers that the Soviet bomber force will continue
to be the greater threat?

Mr. DuNLAP: I think perhaps this is a matter of interpreting what has
been said by Mr. MacNamara.

On January 30th of this year, in speaking before one of the armed services
committees he said:

Last year, in my appearance before this committee, I noted that the
weight of the strategic threat against the United States was steadily
shifting from the manned bombers to ICBMs and submarine-launched
missiles although the balance in megatons is still with the manned
bombers. This trend is continuing and, as I pointed out earlier in this
statement, the Soviet missile-launching submarine fleet is building up-

~ He has indicated there that there is a shift in emphasis. Whether he has
intended to say one is greater than the other at the present moment I cannot
say but one has to read rather carefully in order to interpret it.

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, I have a supplementary question in that
connection.
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The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fairweather, is your question related to the same
problem?

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: No, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: Would you proceed, Mr. Brewin,

Mr. BREWIN: Mr. Chairman, my question is this. Is not one of the reasons
the bomber threat is less serious the fact the warning of bombers would be
given in sufficient time to enable the retaliatory forces to get off the ground
to seek out targets; in other words, they would be prepared to get off the
ground whereas the same is not true of the ICBMs because of their far greater
speed of delivery.

Mr. DunraP: Yes, that is an important factor in this.

Mr. BREwIN: In fact, I might go so far as to say that Major General
Simonds of the army and not the air force, said the Russians would be crazy
to attempt a